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IN THE COURT OF MR. MUHAMMAD BASHIR. JUDGE
ACCOUNTABILITY COURT-L ISLAMABAD.

Reference N0.20/2017 (Avenfield
Apartments N.o_ 16, 16\, 17,
17A).

STATE
V'S,

1. Mian Muhammad Nawaz Shahrif son of Mian Muhammad Sharif, aged

about 69 vears. resident of Shamim Farms. Jati Umrah. Raiwind Road. Lahore.

Maryam Nawaz (Marvam Safdar) Daughter of Mian Muhammad Nawaz

Sharif. aged about 43 vears, resident of Shamim Farms. Jati Umrah. Raiwind

Road. Lahore.

2. Captain (Retd.) Muhammad Safdar. son of Muhammad Ishaq. aged about
54 vears. resident ol Shamim Farms. Jat Umrah. Raiwind Road. Lahore.

4. Hussain Nawaz Sharif s/o Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif, aged about 43

vears,  resident of Shamim arms. Jai Umrah. Raiwind Road. Lahore

tabsconding accused).

Hassan Nawaz Sharif s/o Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif, aged about 41

vears. resident o Shamim Tarms. Jai Umrah. Raiwind Road. Lahore

(absconding accuscd).
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JUDGEMENT.

THE SUBMISSION OF LEARNED PROSECUTOR ARE GIVEN BELOW:

Briel facts of the case are that interim reference ws 18 (g)
read with section 24 «dy of NAO. 1999 is filed against five accused
desceribed i title above. Two of them namely Hussain Nawaz and Hassan
Nawaz did not appear belore this court despite summonses. warrants and
ATTESTED 10 g S ulumately proclamation issued us 87 88 Cr.P.C. Afier completion of

) oF requisite processes. they were declared as absconding / proclaimed offender

in this case.

[ 1Y)

REey Allegedly. documents  PANANA Papers were leaked from the
TRAR . :
')Zggggmssuryc 1 record of PANAMA based Law Firm namely Mossack Fonseca wherein

members of the then First family of Pakistan were01 10 03 accused namelv
Mian: Muhammad Nawaz: Sharit. Marvam Safdar (Nawaz). Capt Retd.
Mubammad Satdar. Fussain Nawaz Sharil. and Hussain Nawaz Sharif were

alleged to have connection ith ofIshore companies. The matter was taken
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up by Honble Supreme Court of Pakistan. During the proceedings before
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stances and submitted letters alongwith other documents.
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Hon'ble Supreme  Court of Pakistan framed questions and

constituted Joint Investieation Team (JITH to investigate the case and collect

evidence in that reeard.

1T was eiven all the powers relating to investigation including those

available  under the Code _of Criminal Procedure 1898, National

Accountabilite Ordinance 1999 and F. ederal Investieation Agency Act,

1973 vide order dated 03-03-2017 passed in CMA No. 2939 of 2017 in the
Constitution Petition No. 29 2016 ete.

1T conducted investication and submitted its investigation report
betore Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan in- shape of ten plus nwo
volumes.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan directed NAB to prepare
and tile following References within six weeks against the accused persons
related to Aventield Flaws bearing no. 16, 16A. 17. 17A situate at Avenfield
House. Park Lane. London on the basis of material collected and referred to
by the T in its report and such other material as may be available with the
Federal Investigating Agency (FIA) and NAB having any nexus with the
assets or which may subsequently become available including material that
may come before it pursuant to the mutual legal assistance (MLA) requests
sent by the JIT w different jurisdictions. a. Reference against Mian
Muhammad Nawaz Sharil (Respondent No. 1). Marvam Nawaz Sharif :
(Marvam Safdary (Respondent No. 6). Hussain Nawaz Sharif (Respondent
No. 7). Hassan Nawaz Sharil’ (Respondent No. 8) and Capt (Retd)
Muhammad Satdar (Respondent No. 9) relating to the Avenfield Properties -
(Flats No. 16, 16-A. 17 and 17-A. Avenfield House. Park Lane. London.
United Kingdom). I preparing and tiling this Relerence. the NAB shall also
consider the material already collected during the course of investigations
conduceted carlier.
bo..........

C.

doo

e. NAB shall also include in the proceedings all other persons
including Sheikh Saced. Musa Ghani. Kashil Masood Qazi. Javed Kiani
and Saeed Ahmed. who have any direet or indirect nexus or connection with
the actions of respondent po. L6.7.8 & 10 leading to acquisition of assets

and funds bevond their known sourees of income.,



f. NADB may file supplementary reference(s) if and when any other

asset which is not prima tacie reasonably accounted for is discovered.

..........

h. In case. the Accountability court finds any deed. document or
aftidavit filed by or on beha™ of the respondent(s) for any other person to be:
fuke. false. forged or fabricated. it shall take appropriate action against the

concermned personts) in accordance with law.

7 Previously investigation was authorized against the accused no | and
others on the same allesations in vear 2000 but fresh investigation was
uthorized afier above directions of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan
vide letter dated 03-08-20]7 and Mr. Muhammad Imran Assistant Director
NAB Lahore was uul}mri/_i\. in this regard.

8. It is turther alleged that accused person(s) were duly summoned
during the investigation but they took the plea that a review petition has
been filed in the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan against its order dated
2R-07-2017 and sought postponement of NAB investigation till outcome of
the review petition.

9. Interim reference dated 07-09-2017 has been filed. While leveling -

allegations against the accused that they have commitled corruption and

corrupt practices as detined under sections 9a)(iv)(v) & (xii) and offence at
serial no. 2 of the schedule which are punishable under sections 10 of

National Accountabilin: Ordinance. 1999 read with schedule attached

ATTESTED To therceto.

< BETRUE cony

10. This court issued processes against accused in accordance with law:.
Two accused namely Hussain Nawaz and Hassan Nawaz did not tum up
and they were declared s proclaimed offenders however. copies of
reference all documents were supplied to the remaining three accused who
appeared before the court.

A joint charge tor three accused was {ramed. Subsequently it was
amended while aceepting thie application filed by accused no. 2 & 3. The
relevant portion of last charge framed against the accused is reproduced
below,

“You accused Mizn NMuhammad Nawaz Sharif were holder of public
office. You and  sowr fanaly dependanmts are owner  in possession  of
Aventicld May fair Proverties namely Apartment No. 16.16A. 17 & 17A Park Lane
tondon and those flais were in possession of vou and vour family since 1993,

Source of imestment Tor purchase of said properties throuch offshore companies’

M s Nielsen Enterprises Lid and M < Nescoll Ltd which owned the said Avenfield
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Apartment is not ju.\‘ti!'u;d and bearer shares of said companies were crystallized
into the said property.

Vou accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Maryam  Nawaz and
absconding  accused  [ussain Nawaz. “zmd Hassan Nawaz failed to justify
legals bonatide sources means for purchase of said property.

You accused Marsam Nawaz was beneficial owner of above mentioned

{
companies which owned Aventield Properties. A false. fabricated trust deed dated
02-07-2006 irs Calibri Font was filed whereas no such Font was available for such
purposes of that deed in that vear. That deed was signed by vou accused Maryam
Nawaz as well as vou co-aceused Capt Retd. Muhammad Safdar. signature of vou

accused Capt (Retdy Muhammad Safdar was as a witness. By filing such

declaration. sou both alleged]y tried to mislead the investigation agency.

You Marvam Nawaz Sharit accused consciously concealed the actual facts
regarding history of ownership of the said assets and the companies and there is -
failure on part of vou al! accused including absconding accused to account for
sources means v ailability ot fund and its lawtul transfer” abroad. Absconding

accused had also no seurce of income at relevant time.

Thereby vou accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Marvam Nawaz
Sharit” and Capt. (Retd.y Muhammad Safdar committed offences as defined under
section 9tV ki as per details given above and offences cited at serial No.
02 of the schedule and punishable under section 10 of NAO 1999 read with
schedule attached thereto™.

The order in respect ol the offence cited at serial no. 3(a) of schedule
attached to NAQO 1999 was made at such that this court shall take
cognizance of that offence cited at 3(a) of schedule to NAO 1999 on
pronouncement of judgment.

The accused lacing tial pleaded not guilty to the charge.

Prosecution produc‘cd as many as Of witnesses when supplementary
reference dated [8-01-2018 was lilcd on 22-01-2018. |

Statements of total 1R witnesses have been recorded in this case.
Prosecution closed its evidence as concluded o 08-03-2018.

The statements of the aceused facing trial (three in number) were
recorded us 342 CrP.Co They opted not 1o produce defence witnesses..
They also not opted 1o be examined w s 340(2) CrPC.

[ have heard the arguments and perused the record.

Aresume o prosecuion evidence is given below:-,

PW-1 Mst. Sidra Mansoor Joint Registrar of Companies Company
Registration Otfice Lahore SECP deposed that in compliance with the

N: ter dated [5-082017 addpecse o




appeared betore [.LO NADB Lahore on 23™ August 2017 and produced
the certitied copies of !r:cord. The record was seized by the 1.O
through a seizure memo which was signed and thumb impressed by
her. Her signature & thumb impression thereon are Ex.PW-1/1 (pg:
(). The documents produced by her are:- 7
i, Covering letter dated 18-08-2017 alongwith report of annual auditr
accounts for the vear 2000-2003 regarding long term loan. Same is
Ex.PW-12 (pg 63 and pg 64). Folder No. 1.
i, Certified copies of annual audited accounts of Hudaybia Papers
Mills Lid tor the vear ended on 30-06-2000. which are EX.PW-1/3 .
(pe 63 topg 7200, '
iii. Certilied copies of annual audited accounts of Hudaybia Papers
Mills 1td for the vear endéd on 30-06-2001. which are EX.PW-1/4.
(pe 76 o pe 82\
iv. Certified copies of annual audited accounts of Hudaybia Papers
Mills Lid tor the year ended on 30-06-2002. which are EX.PW-1/5,
(pe &5 o pg 89, l
v. Certitied copies of annual audited accounts of Hudaybia Papers
Mills Lid for the vear ended on 30-06-20035. which are Ex.PW-1/6.
(pg 90 1o pe 96).
vi. Certified copies ol arnual audited accounts of Hudaybia Papers
ATTESTED TO BE TRUE copy Mills Lud for the vear cndcd' on 30-06-2004. which are Ex.PW-1/7.
(pe 97 to pg 103).
vir. Certified copies of annual audited accounts of Hudavbia Papers
Mills Ld for the vear ended on 30-06-2003. which are Ex.PW-1/8.
(pg 104 to pe 11O,

She has brought original record. again said copies of the above

mentioned record as furnished by the company for perusal of this
court (seen returned). A\ long term loan was amounting to Rs.
494.960.000 - Status of the long term loan remained the same from
30-06-2000 1o 30,06 2003, 1.0 also recorded her statement u’s 161
Cr.P.C.
PW-2 NMuhammad Rnsl:ccd S o Muhammad Maskeen Court Clerk
Orr Dignam & Compant Marina Heights. 2™ floor 109. East Jinnah

Avenue Blue Avea Islamabad deposed that a letter dated 05-09-2017

addressed to Mr. Zaheer Riaz Sr. Partner Orr-Dignam & Co was

etrPLY
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received from NAB Lahore. Some documents were requisitioned

throuch said letter. He went to N AB office Lahore with documents on

06-09-2017. Mr. Muhammad Imran Dogar 1.O met to him in the NAB
I ahore. He handed over the documents wrapped in an envelope. 1.O
opened that envelope where in following documents were available.
(iy. A covering leuer dated 05-09-2017 which is Exh PW 02/1.
tat page 112 Vol-D tunder ohjcction' that the witness is neither |

exceutant nor seribe of the document).

(i, Photocopies of order of Queen’s bench. comprising on
four pages available as pages 113 10 1 16 of the reference which
is mark A (as original or certified copies of the same are not

with the witness).

(iii). Photocopies of Affidavit of Mr. Mazhar Raza Khan
Bangash available on the reference as pages 117 to 122 which
is mark B (not exhibited due to non availability of original or

certitied copies of the same with the witness).

The above said documents were taken into possession by
\Muhammad Imran Dogar 1.0 through a seizure memo whereon. his-
signature and thumb impression were obtained in the presence of
witnesses.  His signature and thumb impression are Exh.PW-02/2. 1.O

recorded his statement u s {61 Cr PC.

PW-3 M\r. Mazhar Raza Khan Bangash. Advocate Riia Barker Gillette
Advocates R o H.No. 68 Nazim-ud-Din Road. Sector F-8/4. Islamabad
deposed that on 30-08-2017 he appeared before 1.0 Imran in NABF
Lahore. 1.O showed him photocopies of certain documents which

included photocopies of Order of Quecn's bench of 1999. Affidavit of

service. and statement of Mr. Shezi Nackvi. The above said affidavit of
service was relating to h.im. He owned the affidavit of service which
was photocopy however. it was not original. He was serving in Orr-
Dignam & Co. He submitied that affidavit of service to his company
however. he do not know. what further process was adopted by his
company emplover. The affidavit was prepared by him. and
photocopies available at pages 117 10 122 (mark B) are evidentlv the

same. The original of the same is Iving with the Orr-Dignam & Co. |
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Same may be requisitioned then. he will be ina position to confirm that

photacopies are of the same. 1.O recorded his statement u’s 161 Cr.P.C.

PW-4 Then Mr. Mukhtar Ahmad Sub [n:\'ﬁcctor Police Station NAB.
Lahore deposed that he was entrusted with five call up notices given by
Imran Afzal LO of the case reference No. 202017 and he went to
Shamim Farms Raiwand Road. Jati Umrah Lahore. The call up notices
were for accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Capt Safdar. Bibi
Marvam. Hussain Nawaz and Hassan Nawaz. He met with one At
Clah who was security ofticer of Jati Umrah. who received three call
up notices of accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Marvam Safdar
and Capt Muhammad Safdar while two call up notices of Mr. Hassan
Nawaz Sharif and [ussain Nawaz Sharil” were returned to him by
saving that they were residing abroad. (Learned defence counsel has
raised objection that this portion of statement is hearsay. (Overruled.
reasoning is given herein discussion). e return the two call up notices

to 1.O. 1.0 also recorded his statement u's 161 Cr.P.C.

PW-5 Muhammad Adeel Akhtar. Assistant Director NAB. Lahore deposed
that he was marginal wimess of seizure memos available at pg 62 and pg

111 and his signature thercon is EX.PW-3T (pe 62) & EX.PW-5/2 (pg 111).

‘\-\hl

He further stated that on 23" August. 2017. joined the investigation.
Muhammad  Imran was Investigating Officer in a case against Mian
Muhammad Nawaz Sharit, Sidra Mansur Joint Registrar of the company

appeared  and  provided certified copies regarding audit accounts of

<

Hudaibiva Paper Mills case. The seizure memo available at pg 62 was

‘“"URT‘ prepared in his presence and it was signed by said Sidra Mansur and 1.0. He

7/[76 also signed the same. The fcmrd produced. was comprising of 48 pages. HiS
statement was recorded on 23-N8-2017,

On 06% September. 2017 Muhammad Rasheed Court Clerk of Orr
Dignam produced the record before 1.0 Muhammad Imran. The record
meluded affidavit High Court Order of Justice Queen’s Bench and a
covering letter. LO prepared the seizure memo and obtained his signature ‘
thereon. That 1O alse obiained signature of Muhammad Rasheed and
others. The record was consisting of 11 pages. His statement w/s 161 Cr.P.C
was also recorded on ne™® Sestember, 2017,

PW-6 Mr. Shakeel Anjum Nagra. Additional Director (Coordination

Operations Divisions NAB Head Quarter). Islamabad deposed that on
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[0.08.2017. an application was written by Additional Director
Coordination  Prosecution Wing, addressed to  Registrar Hon'ble
Supreme Court of Pakistan for provision of certified. attested record of
1T (Joint Investication Team). In that application a request was madg »
in respect of volume | 1 IN. Another application was written for
provision of attested certitied copies of volume- X on 15.08.2017. On
17.08.2017. Assistant Registrar Mr. Muhammad Mujahid. Hon'ble
Supreme Court of Pakistan gave three sets of attested copies of volume
[ to NI ot JIT Report and four sets of attested copies of Volume X. On
the same day i.c. 17.08.2017, he handed over one set of attested copies_ '
of Volume | 1o N to NADB Lahore through a covering letter. On
23082017, he appeared before 1.0 of NAB Lahore and recorded his

statement there.

PW-7 Swuement of  Zavar Manzoor. Assistant Director NAB Lahore
Jdeposed that en 237 August. 2017 he joined investigation being carried
out ugainst accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz  Sharif before 1.0
Muhammad Imran. when Mst. Sidra Mansoor Joint Registrar of
Companies appeared and produced covering letter of two pages. 46
pages of annual auditing account of different vears. Those documents
were seized by the 1.O in his presence and he also signed the seizure
memo as its witness. His signature thereon is Ex.PW-7/1 (pg 62 Folder

[y, 1.O also recorded his statement.

PW-8 Mr. Umar Daraz s o Ghulam Rasool caste Gondal presently
posted as Sub Inspector P{»licc Station NAB Lahore deposed that on
16.08.2017. he went to Flouse No. 179-H Model Town Lahore. which
is residence of Tarig Shali with purpose to serve call up notices. where
he met with one Abdul Latif Security Guard and he inquired from him

about the Tarig Shafi. Security Guard told him that the said Tariq Shafi |
alongwith his family had gone abroad since 20.07.2017. Security -
Guard Latil refused o receive the call up notices hence. he brought call

up notices without any service.

On the same day ¢ 16.08.2017. he went to House No. 7-H
Gulberg I Lahore which was residence of one Musa Ghani where.
Amir Head Constable met to him. He asked HC about the Musa

Ghani. he told him that he had been deputed there since 2013 as
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Incharee Police Guard. The person of name Musa Ghani had not been
residineg therein and that the above said residence was belonging to

\Muhammad Ishag Dar Federal Finance Minister. and said Muhammad

Ishag Dar had been residing in Islamabad. (learned defence Counsel

objected to it that this portion is hearsay and not admissible in
i

evidence. (Overruled. reasoning is given herein discussion)

His statement u s 161 Cr.p.C was recorded by the L.O on the
same day.

On 06-09-2017. he appeared before 1.O namely Muhammad
Imran during investigation against accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz
Sharif. when Muhammad Rasheed Clerk Orr Dignam appeared and he’
produced documcms.inc]uding covering letter comprising on 01 page
order of Queen’s Beneh Comprising on 04 pages and affidavit of Mr.
Mazhar Raza Khan Bangesh comprising on 06 pages. Those
documents were taken into possession vide a seizure memo. which
was signed by him as a witness. His signature thereon is EX.Pw-7/2
(pe 111 His statement was recorded by the .LO w's 161 Cr.P.C.

z
PW-9 Then Mr. Muhammad Abdul Wahid Khan. Director General.
Directorate of Electronic Media & Publications. Islamabad Benevolent
Fund Building. Zcro Point. Islamabad deposed that on 05.01.2018.
two officers of the NAB zame to him namely Muhammad Imran and
Muhammad Nazeer Sultan. They came with all things which were
already sent to them in response to their letters. They showed him all

the said things which were:-

i. Forwarding letter dated 26.12.2017. through which CD of -
interview ot Hassan Nawaz in sl.mpc of CD received from
Express News. which is Ex.PW-9.1 (pg 21. Supplementary
reference). fl_‘mlcr'objcction that the witness is not the
scribe nor the executant of said document nor the addressee
ol the same. so inadmissible in evidence). (Overruled.

reasoning is 2iven herein discussion).

. Letter dated 28.12.2017. vide which transcription of CD of
interview in program KALTAK. that letter is EX.PW-9/2

(p2 220, 0t bears his signature.
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Forwarding letier dated 29.12.2017 vide which CDs and
transcripts ol program Capital Talk and Lekin in which
program interviews of Hussain Nawaz and Maryam Nawaz
Sharif were conducted respectively. were sent o NAB

[ ahore. That letter is Ex.PW-9 3 (pg 23).

- Forwardine leter dated 30.12.2017. vide which two CDs

containing address to Nation and addressed to National
Assembly of Muhammad Nawaz. Sharif and two transcripts
were sent u.\ NADB Lahore. that letter is Ex.PW-9/4 (pg 24).
[etter dated 28.12.2017. of my Director Asim Khichi
which was a reminder sent to Geo and PTV for provision
of video clips and transcﬁptions. That letter is Ex.PW-9/5
(pe 23). (Under objection that the witness is not the scribe
nor the cxccuu:nl of said document nor the addressee of the
same. so inadmissible in evidence). (Overruled. reasoning’
is eiven herein discussion).

Letter dated 27.12.2017. addressed to External Publicity
Wing sent to Mr. Harron Ur Rasheed Bureau BBC by my
Director Muhammad Asim Khichi. that letter is ExX.PW-9/6
(pe 26). tUnder objection that the witness is not the scribe
nor the executant of said document nor the addressee of the
same. so inadmissible in evidence). (Overruled. reasoning -

is given herein discussion).

Clranscription of address of Nawaz Sharif to Nation

comprising on four pages. which is ExX.PW-9/7 (pg 27 to

pg 30).

vitl. Transeription of address of Muhammad Nawaz Sharif -

in National Assembly. which is Ex.PW-9/8 (pg 31 to pg
36). (under objection that it pertains of address of
Muhammad Nawaz Sharif in National Assembly therefore
inadmissible in evidence by virtue of Article 66 of the
Constitution of” Islamic Republic of Pakistan. (Overruled.

reasoning is viven herein discussion).
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ix. Transcript of interview of Hussain Nawaz Sharif” in
program Kal Tak in express news comprising on 22 pages.
i« EPW-0U (pe 37 to pg 53R). (Under objection that
Hussain Nawaz Sharif is neither a witness in this case nor .
he is accused present before this court in the trial).
(Iearned prosecutor has contended that Hussain Nawaz
Sharif is absconding accused and no objection can be
raised by delence counsel). (Overruled. reasoning is given
herein discussion)

x. CD of program Kal Tak mentioned above is Ex.PW-9/10.
while CD pcn!uining to address to Nation is Ex.PW-9/11..
and CD of address to the National Assembly is ExX.PW-
912, (Under objection that this CD is inadmissible in
evidence by virtue of  Article 66 of the Constitution of
[slamic Republic of Pakistan) (Learned prosecutor has
contended that it was address to Nation and no privilege
under said article to that document and admissible in
evidence).  (Overruled.  reasoning  is  given herein

discussion).

All the said material was taken into possession by 1.O
Muhammad Imran Deputy Director NAB Lahore. in presence of

Muhammad Nazeer Sultan and he signed a seizure memo. his

e
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“LITRUECOPY  sienature thereon is EX.PW-9 13 (pg 20 Supplementary reference)

and 1.0 algo recorded his statement.

PW-10Then Sved Mubashar Taguir Shah. Director External Publicity
Wings Information & Broadceasting Division. Ministry of Information

& Broadcasting. National History & Literary Heritage. Benevolent

Fund. Zero Point. Islamabad deposed that on 05.01.2018. he joined
the investigation relating to Avenfield. Investigating officer came to

his oftfice at Benevolent Fund. Zero point. Islamabad. He produced:-

i Acknowledgement letter issued by him. issued in the
name ol 1O same is EX.PW-101 (pg 60).
fi. Letter of the NAB. which is Ex.PW-10'2 (pg 61).

(Under objection).
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iii. F-mail sent by Harron Rasheed for copy of interview
in hard lk. same is EX.PW-10.3 (pg 62). (Under
objection).

iv. CD and wanscript of interview of Hassan Nawaz
with Tim Sebastian in Hard Talk. same is Ex.PW-
10 4. while transeript of the interview is Ex.PW-10/5
(pg 63 io pe 7).

A seizure memo regarding documents and articles mentioned
ahove was prepared by .0, same was signed by him. His signature
thereon is Ex.PW-10 6 (pe 39 Supplementary reference).

PW-11Then Mr. Wagas Ahmed. Senior Coordinator. GEO News;_'
Islamabad Office. 40-Jang Building. Fazal-e-Huq Road. Blue Area. .
Islamabad deposed that on 08.01.2018. a letter was received from
NADB wherein provision of information about two programs Capital
Talk. and Lekin. That on 10.01.2018. he joined the investigation he
produced \'criﬁed' transeripts of said programs one DVD and a
covering leiter to L.O. A seizure memo was prepared which was signed
by him in presence of witness. His signature on that seizure memo is
ExPW-11 1 (pe "5 Covering letter is Ex.PW-11.2 (pg 76);
Transcript of Capital Taik comprising on 13 pages. which is ExX.PW-
13 (pg 77 to pg 89). while transcript of program Lekin comprising
on two pages is EXPW-114 (pg 90 and pg 91). while DVD having

both the programs is Ex.PW-11 5. 1.O recorded his statement.

PW-12 Mr. Zavar Manzoor. Assistant Director. NAB Lahore.
Previously statement in interim reference and after that his was
recorded in supplementary rclfrcncc. deposed that on 10.01.2018 he
Joined the investieation. in his presence Waqgas Ahmad Senior
coordinator GO News Islamabad appeared and submitted record.
That record was taken into possession through a seizure memo. That
seizure memo was signed by him as a witness. His signature thereon is
EXPW-12 1 (pe 75 Serplementary reference). 1.0 recorded his

statement on the same date.

PW-13 Mr. Muahammad Sulian Nazir. Deputy Director. NAB Lahore
deposed that on 05.01.2018. Abdul Wahid Khan DG Directorate

Electronic Media & Publication produced letters. transcriptions. three

CDs. 1O ook into possession those documents as mentioned in
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seizure memo in his presence. Ile has seen his signature on that
seizure memo. same iy correct and is Ex.PW-13/1 (pg 20). [.O

recorded his statement.

Similarly. on same date i.e. 03.01.2018 LO took into possession

record. three letters. transeription comprising on 12 pages and one CD
produced by Syed Mubasshar Tauqeer Shah Director External
Publicity Wing. vide a scizure memo which was signed by him as a
witness. His sienature thereon is EX.PW-13 2 (pg 59). 1.0 recorded his
statement.
PW-14  Mr. Robert William Radley. Forensic Handwriting Document
:xamination Expert. Principal of Radley Forensic Radley Laboratory
deposed that  he has been working in this field since 1976. His
services were eneaged by Quist Solicitors. Initially he was contacted
on 29-06-2017 and his services were effectively engaged on
30.06.2017. He received copies of two Trust declarations from Quist
Solicitors on 30.06.2017. e received those copies for the comparison |
ol’ the documents and also to consider the apparently altered dates
under the signatures of Mr. Jeremy Freeman. He prepared the report
on 47 Tuly 2017 after examination of these documents. He has seen his
first original report dated 4 July 2017. copy of which is Ex.PW-14/1
(pg 93 to pe 121 ¢ Witness also recognizes his signature thereon). His
finding in respect of said two declarations was

ATTESTED T3 BE TRUE ¢85
€ COPY . . . .
From the comparison of two declarations. second and third

page of both the declarations were identical. As a result one set of

these pages were seen 1o be a copy of the other or alternatively they
PECIITRAR
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are both copies of further document. In other words thev were not.

separately exeeuted documents but the second and third pages were
7/% reproduced in both the declarations. From the copies. he was unable to
say. which was not possibie to determine. which one the two copies is
a true copy of original and which bne has the two pages substituted.
On the sceond and third pages. the date against the signature of
Solicitor. Last digit of the vear was altered. The alteration of page
shows that it was 2006 byt six appears that the last digit was over
written then 4. That can appiv for the second and third pages of both

the documents.
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On 6™ July 2017, we also received two sets in his laboratory
containing in scaled cnvelope. what he refer to certified declarations.
These were certified by Solicitor. Each documents had a cover pages. .
which certified the contents as the true and exact copy of the original
and that was certified by Michal Lindsley Notary Public. The two -
documents were the declarations of trust and copy of Nescoll and
Neilsen and second declaration was certified Coomber declaration.
These documents .\\'crc bound together with a green corner piece. He
has scen these said two certified copies of declarations of trust relating
1o Nescoll and Neilsen and certified copy of Coomber declaration of
wust (the said declaration were shown through video link b.\‘r
zooming). Photocopies of declarations of trust of Nescoll and Neilsen 7
are [x.PW-14 2 (pe 123 1o 127) while photocopies of declaration of
trust pertaining to Coomber are Ex.PW-14:3(pg 128 to pg 131) as he
has also annexed those copies with his report. He also prepared his
report in that regard. on &* July. 2017. Original report is shown to
him. he recognize it as his report. attested copy of which available on
reference is Ex.PW-14 4 (pe 137 to pg 147 including other exhibits »l
PW-14-2 and Ex.PW-14 3 as annexure are already exhibited). He also’

recognize his signature on original report shown to him.

tHe compare certified copics with a copies previously examined
by him and [ind that certified Nescoll and Neilsen declaration
corresponds with the copiés previously examined. however. with
respect to certified copy to Coomber declaration. the certified copies
contain. as supposed to 03 copies of the pages. and the second copy of
the certified declaration of Coomber is obviously different from
signature page on the certified declaration is a different page to that
which appears in the copy Coomber declaration previously presented.
Both of the certitied copices were bound together with a green corner

t

picce through which brass evelets had been appended. These are
Hlustrated  from colour photographs in his report. Comments on
binding of the pages 4. 5 & 6. The brass evelet has been effectively
undone. which damaged the evelet and some portions of which was
broken ofT. There is evident on reverse of both the documents that the

erelets were initially binding properly and were splaved out as shown

.. onthe dilustration at pg 04 of his report. There is also evident on
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reverse where some form ol tools was used to lever up the splayed end
of the evelet. Both the documents currently containing a staple as -
iNlustrated in pe 4+ & 3. They can also be seen on both of these
documents. it have Ecen driven through the corner of these documents
and then having been removed. There are two staples holes in
declaration of Coomber and four sets staples holes in the Nescoll and
\elsen declaration. He pointed out at paragraph No. 24 & 25 of his
report (pg 06 of the report). he pointed out vacant staple holes because
as forensic examiner he was not allowed to interfere with the"
documents of potential. He did not remove the bindings. not even the
corners. e potentially issued could be whether or not the documents
<andwiched by the corner also bears the staples holes. That could be
relevant (and obviously it the court wishes. they can unbind the
documents). It seems that the corner picce has been undone on each
document and there is clearly the evelet has been removed and -

documents have been substituted on page 05 & 06 of his report.

He made general examination of the document presented. He
looked to sav copies of the original in this case. they are colour copies
of good qualities. He also considered the general lay out of the.
documents and the npe font of the documents. The general
appearance of the documents typing is amateur and type font is
considered and identiticd what is known as Calibri. This type font is
developed primarily for the VISTA Windows program. This was not
commercially available until the 31.01.2007. Infact the VISTA use
this font as its default fon:. In other words one if uses VISTA machine
the computer would ;u!nommically use Calibri unless the Font is
actually  changed. He summarized his opinion as such that the
documents in question commercially have to be prepared after 31
July 2007, Atfter completion of the second reports copies of those were
returned alongwith the questioned documents to the representative
who attended the office on 9% Tuly 2017. Two gentlemen. who he -
assumed. were responsible. for bringing the documents and one
centlemen from Quist Solicitors. Two copies of first report and second
report alongwith the question documents were sealed in envelopes and-

handed over the report 1o these gentlemen. His statement was recorded

< on [ 3the December 2017,
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PW-13 Mr. Akhtar Riaz Raja Solicitor. Quist Solicitors. London
England  Principal Quist Solicitors at 12" floor the broadgate
Primrose Street Londen LEC2A. JE\W UK deposed that he was
Salicitor. The Taw firm Quist Solicitors was established in 1994. He
was engaged by T on 127 NMay 2017, He was engaged by JIT 10
provide professional legal services in relation with the Supreme Court
proceedings the various petitions brought by various parties against
Former Prime Minister and his family. After he was engaged. he
received. copies of Bundles of papers submitted in the Supreme Court
proceedings in order to ;‘ax'r}' out my instructions when he reviewed
the papers he discoverad a letter dated 05.01.2017 from an English
Firm of Solicitors Freemen Box. That letter was written by a Solicitor
called Jeremy Freeman. MR. Freeman referred to two trust declaration
documents the first trust declaration related to two companies namely
Nescoll and Nielsen and second trust declaration related to a company
called Coomber Group Ine. Mr Freeman stated that Mr. Hussain
Nawaz Sharif attended his offices bearing those declarations and that
he signed them and they were witnessed by Mr. TFreeman on
04.02.2006. (AL this stage fearned defence counsel raised an objection
that this portion is hearsay as Mr. Freeman is not witness in this case.
(Overruled. reasoning is given herein discussion). He confirmed the
letter that shown to him is the same letter. Photocopy of which is
Ex.PW-13 1 (pg 106 of CMA 432). (Auested copy is also shown
which is placed on file. exhibited under objection that attested copy is
in fact is not the copy ol Qriginal and it is also not certified lyving with
article 87 Qanoon-c-.\’huhudm. (Overruled. reasoning is given herein
discussiony. He also found copies of both the declarations in bundles
of papers. He looked at the documents carefully and also at the same
time JI'T were inspecting the documents too. We discovered that there |
were numerous  irreaularities. These documents. appeared to bé
forgery. (Learned-Defence Counsel has raised the objection that his
opinion is not admissible in evidence). The forgery and irregularities
in the documents were so many that they appeared to be a
Frankenstein version. Having discovered these Frankenstein forgeries.
the JIT instructed him 1o proceed and appoint and search for an expert.

These torgeries were apparent to the lay eve and they deserved expert
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oxamination also. With regard to the first declaration. on behalf of JIT

- g . th a
he wrote 1o Mr. Jeremy Freeman of Freeman Box on 27" June 2017.

Copy of his that letter which is shown to him today through video
link is actually copy of his letter but his letter had the letter of Jeremy
Freeman attached to it and also the two declarations of trust were
attached to the same. (First annexure was 05™ January 2017 letter
which 1s :1\fcady exhibited as Ex.PW-15:1. (Overruled. reasoning is
given herein discussiont. The documents at pg 106 to 111 seems to be '
appeared as the copies ot the same as he annexed the same with his
letter. The letter Ex.PW-131 was sent through e-mail. He did not
receive a reply and he sent a chaser on the very next day by hand. His
chaser has a full copy of email letter dated 27.06.2017. On the next
day i.e 29.06.2017 he received an email reply from Jeremy Freeman
from Freeman Box. In that letter Mr. Freeman stated that Mr. Hussain
Nawaz Sharif attended his office with the original documents at that
those documents the trust declaration were the same as the one
attached 1o his one 27.06.2017 letter. As copy of which is at pg 89 of
Volume 4. which 1s Iix.i’\\'-li 2. In that letter Mr. Jeremy Freeman
contirmed the signature of Mr. Hussain Nawaz Sharif and Mr. Waqar
as witnessed the signalurciﬂ. lle also confirmed that contents of letter
03.01.2017 were correct. Around that time 29.06.2017 he also upon
the authorization and direction of JIT approached the expert Mr.
Robert Radley. He had recommended Mr. Radley to IIT. He began
making inquiries as to his suitability to act as witness as an expert.
Those communication continued into the next date i.e 30.06.2017. He'
provided Mr. Radley with the copies of two trusi declarations the |
Niclsen and Nescoll declaration and Coomber Declaration. He also
having contirmed his instruction from JT he provided Mr Radley with
his instructions and those instructions are confirmed in his first report
Jated 04.07.2017. He provided a copy of report dated 04.07.2017 to
HT. On 03072017 he was informed by HT that they are sending
further version of two declarations. Those further versions arrived in’
[.ondon on 06.07.2017. They were delivered directly from Heathrow
Adrport 1o Mr. Radley s Laboratory. Following further examination of
those documents Mr. Radley produced report dated 08.07.2017. The

(wo reports two original copies signed by Mr. Radlev were sealed in

i
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his lab and waken back are delivered in Pakistan. He was present in the
l.ab when the two reports and the second sets of declarations were -
sealed and sent back. He prepared some commentary on litigation
commenced by a company Al Toufiq. (Overruled. reasoning is given
herein discussion). He produced the same commentary at the
nstructions of JIT. e has seen pages 227 to 235 and those seem 10 be
the copies of the same commentary. which is Mark PW-15/A. His
commentary refers to Turther documents. It refers to a judgment made
in March 1999 against the defendants Hudaybia. Mr. Shahabaz Sllariﬂ ‘
and two other gentlemen from Sharif Family. The March Judgment
which is for over 20 million Dollars was subsequently the subject of a
charging order Nisi make on 03.11.1999. the photocopies of which are
available at pg 201 10 226 Volume 4 of the reference. which are Mark
PW-13B. On page 186 td pg 188, of the same volume copy of order is.
available which is included in already Mark PW-15/B. At pg 205 to pg
211 is a copy of draft prepared by a lawyer and photocopies of draft
consent order at pg 189 10 p: 191 can be seen. His commentary in it
refers 1o articles published in Dawn at pe 236 to pg 240 and it is
inherent part of his commentary and cannot be divorced from his :

commentary.

He was not a part of NAB Investigation. Mr. Imran recorded -

his statement.

TYCoTr

&= ﬁ?’gf\--.-

- _Pwaie Mr. Wajid Zia acting Addl. Di ¢ igrati
ATTESTID TO 52 TRUE coPY { j cting Addl. Director General of Immigration

FIA on 20" April. 2017 dcpbscd that the Hon"ble Supreme Court of

Pakistan issued an order of the court whereby a Joint Investigation .

Team (JIT). was announced. he was to be headed by a Senior Officer

APLTYLouRT.4 of Federal Investigation Agency not below the rank of Addl. Director
General who shall head the HT team having the first hand experience

W

ol white collar erime. The other members were to be drawn from
National  Accountability  Lureau (NAB). Securities and Exchange
Commission (SECP). Staie Bank of Pakistan. ISI. and Military
Intelligence (MI). The heads of the organization were to submﬁ the
names ot their representatives. 'Hkis name was in a panel of three

oificers which was sent 1o Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan for

A

o e oyeret nal selection. The court order also illuminated the questions that

Tl e N R ¥
Saeao?
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were to be addressed by the JIT which werc:-

[low did Gult Steel Mills came into being?
What led to its sale”

Whats happened to its lability?

Where did its sale proceeds end up?

How did thev reach Jaddah. Qattar and UK?

Whether respondents No. 7 and 08 (Hussain Nawaz and Hassan
Nawaz. respective!y) in view of their tender ages had the

means in the carlier nincteen’s to possess and purchase the

Has? ‘

Whether sudden appearance of the letter of Hammad Bin Jasim
Bin Jabbir Athani S.A is a Myth or reality?

How their shares crystallized into the flats?

Who in-fact is the real and beneficial owner of Ms Nielsen
Enterprises Pvt. Ltd and Nescoll Lud?

How did hill Metals Establishment come into existence?

How did the money for Flagship Investment Ltd and other
cmﬁpunics setup taken over by respondent No. 8 (Mr. Hassan Nawaz)

- come from and where did the working capital for such companties
come from and where do the huge sums running into Millions gifted
by respondent No. ~. tMr. Hussain Nawaz) to Respondent No. 1 (Mr.
Nawaz Sharif). which go to the heart of the matter and need to be

answered?

ATTESTTR TO DT TRUC COPY The court order continues to state in para 3. the JIT shall =
investicate the case and collect evidence. i any. showing that
Respondent No. 1 Mr. Nawaz Sharif or any of his dependants or
benamidar owns. possesses or has acquired assets or any interest
therein disprupnriionulc to his known means of income. Another

relevant direction of the court in the same para is that the JIT may also -

examine the evidence and material. i’ any already available with NAB
and FIA relating to or having any nexus with the possession or
acquisition of the atoresaid flats (Avenfield Flats No 16. 16-A. 17 &
7=\ or any other assets or pecuniary resources and their origin. The

HT was to complete s work within 60 dayvs.
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[e produced certificd copy of that order of the court. which is

Ex.PW-16"1. (Under objection on behalf of the accused that this order

i« not available on the record of the court. nor its copy has been

supplied to the accused in terms of section 263-C Cr.P.C).

The Hon'ble Supr!cmc Court of Pakistan in its order dated st
May. 2017, setup the composition of the JIT. and the composition was
\Mr. Amir Aziz who is an oi’ﬁccr of BS-21 from SBP. Mr. Bilal Rasool
from SECP. he is the Executive Director in SECP. Mr. Irfan Naeem
Mangi Director BS-20 from N AB. Brig Noman Saeed from ISI. Brig.
Kamran Khursheed from Ml and himsell Wajid Zia to head the J1T.
The court further directed and enumerated the different powers that
were eiven to the J T for its functioning. in para 3(i) to para 3 (ix). he
produced certified copy of order dated 05.03.2017. which is Ex.PW-
16 2. (Under objection on behall of the accused that this order is not
available on the record of the court. nor its copy has been supplied to

the accused in terms of section 265-C Cr.P.C in this regard).

The NT commenced its working on 8" May. 2017 and
submitted its final report consisting of ten volumes but two volumes.
having two parts i.c. volume & and Volume 9 of JIT Report. The JIT- |
collected all the documents that were filed by the petitioners of
Constitution Petition 29 and others. concise statements and documents
filed by respondents of thet petition. the court order itself and analyzed
these documents. T thcn- also started collecting material from
different institutions like' SECP. Banks. FIA. NAB and many others.
The HT also realized thavsince many of the documents/incidence and -
assets were located in foreign jurisdiction. therefore the JIT requested
and got the notification issued for the powers conferred by section 21
ol NAO. that notification is Ex.PW-163 (pg 28 interim volume I).
¢Original is seen and returned). which authorized himself being head
ol II'T 1o exercise the.powers conferred under section 21 of NAO. The‘
HT initiated a number of MLAs (Muiual Legal Assistance). letters of-
request to United Kingdom. British Virgin Island (BVI). Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. United Arab Emirates and others. JIT also started
recording the witness statements of persons who were acquainted with

th facts of the casc including Mr. Nawaz Sharif. Mr. Shahbaz Sharif,

|
i
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\Mr. Tariq Shafi. Mr. Hu\rkun Nawaz. Mr. Hassan Nawaz. Ms Maryam
Satdar. Capt. Retd Safdar. among others. The volume II of the T

Report has statements ot the witnesses and analvsis. The whole file of
the witness statements. summons. the material that was produced by
the witnesses ete. were also placed in separate folders and submitted to-
the Registrar. Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. He has brought :

<

those sets Tolders No. Volumes 1.2.3.4.5.9.9-A and 10 from Hon’ble
Supreme Court of Pakistan as directed by this court. The JT after
eoing through the constitutional petition 29 and the CMAs found that
the questions relating 10 Avenfield Apartment which were raised by
Hon ble Supreme ‘Court of Pakistan were related to the Avenfield
Apartments  17.17-A. 16, &16-A and the whole case had been
defended by the respondents: now accused in this case through
different CMAs. The imost important ones that provided the
explanation to the possession and acquisition of these apartments were
comtained in CMA "531 daed 15112017 which contains:
supplementary concise statements on behalf of Respondents No. 6.7.8.
now accused Marvam Safdar. Hussain Nawaz Sharif and Hassan
Nawaz Sharif respectively. In the above said CMA it was explained
that a Steel Factory by the name of Gull’ Steel was established by the
late Mr. Muhammad Sharif the father of accused Muhammad Nawaz |
Sharif in 1974, That the said Steel Mill was run by Mr. Tariq Shafi as
its owner whereas the real owner was Mr. Muhammad Sharif. That

39, of shares of Gulf Steel Mills were sold for a consideration of 21

AT -
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million Abu Dhebi Dhiram (AED). which were paid directly to BCCI
for settlement of the loan liability and another agreement was signed
with the purchaser Mr. Abdullah Ahli who became a partner of 75%
whereas Mr. Tariq Shafi became the partner of 23% of the shares in
Ahli Steel Mills (previous name Gulf Steel Mills). In 1980 Mr. Tariq
Shati on behalf of Mr. Muhammad.Sharit sold 25% shares that he own
to Mr. Ahli for a consideration of 12 million AED which were
invested with the Qatters Roval Family. The Qattery Roval Family
had purchased the above said Apartments in question through
companies Neilsen and -Nescoll and the sons of accused Mian

Muhammad Nawaz Sharit started living in those apartments. paving

EANP— Jhe ground rent and services charges. That in vear 2006 a settlement
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between Mr. Hussain Nawaz Sharif and the Qattery Royal (Prince’
[Tammad Bin Jasim Althani) resulted in the change of the ownership -
of the flats in question through handing over the bearer shares to Mr.

Hussain Nawaz accused. who has since then been the beneficial owner
of these apartments in guestion. That accused Marvam Safdar became
4 trustee for Mr. Hussain beneficiary in pursuance of a trust deed that
was signed in 2006‘. They were a number of documents that were also
cubmitted with this CMA. CMA 432 lvzx;icall_v elaborated on the
monev trail that already had been provided in the previous noted CMA
and more documents relating to the sale of Gulf Steel. the investment
with the Qatterv Family and the transfer of ownership through the
handing over of bearer shares were provided and explanations of the"
eaps in the money trail were provided. This CMA was filed by
Respondent 7 & & IHussain and Hassan Nawaz on 26.01.2017. (under
objection that that this por.ion is hearsav). CMA No. 7531 is available
at pages 1 oto 7. (Volume CMA-7331:2016). which is Ex.PW-16/4.
(Certified copy is scen’ and returned). (Under objection that the
witness cannot prove the contents of this CMA he is not the scribe. -
witness or executants of the document. Learned prosecutor has
contended that objection is not entertainable under article 85 (3) read
with article 88 ol Qanoon-c-Shahadat 1984, The witness has read and
examined the documents. (Overruled. reasoning is given herein-
discussion). He also produced attested copy of an Affidavit of Mr.
Tariq Shafi dated 12.11.2016 annexed with he above said CMA..
photocopy of which is available at page 39 to pg 62 of Volume CMA
No.7331. and is Ex.PW-16 3. (attested copies returned). (Under
objection that the witness is not executant. scribe and subscriber of the
document and the deponent is not cited as witness in the case).
l.carned prosecutor has tontended that objcction is not entertainable
under article 83 (3) read with article 88 of Qanoon-e-Shahadat. 1984;
The witness has read and examined the documents. (Order lateron).
The other document aftidavit of Tariq Shafi is also annexed as
annexure B of concise statement CMA-432. photocopies of which are
available on pages 20 to pe 21 ¢ Volume CMA-432). which is Ex.PW-

16 6. Attested copy is return). Under objection that the witness is not

/

executant. seribe and subscriber of the document and the deponent is



not cited as witness in the case). Learned prosecutor has contended . -
that objection is not entertainable under ani_cle 85 (3) read with article
28 of Qanoon-e-Shahadat 1984, The witness has read and examined
the documents. (Overruled. reasoning is given herein discussion).In
these aftidavits. the setting of 4 Gulf Steels. its sale in 1978 and 1980
<ale of Ahli Steel in 1980 and the handing over of the 12 million
AEDs to the Qatari. (Under objection of hearsav). The JIT has
analvzed in depth both the affidavits in its report from pg 03 to pg 2.1“ ’
Volume 3 Gulf Steel Mills and found contradictions and anomalies in
them. and such contradiction and anomalies were also found when
Tariq Shafi was examined betore JIT. (Under objection that it is
opinion of the witness inadmissible in evidence. Deponent is not
witness in the case). The Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan have
asked specifically the 11T in one of the questions that how Gulf Steel . '
was setup. The answer to the question appears in para 7 of the
affidavit Ex.PW-16 3. It was setup with zero equity and 100% loan
while para 3 of the said alfidavit clearly stated that there was another
partner Muhammad Hussain who lived in UK British National and -
was never a part of Gulf Steel Mills activelv. Mr. Tariq Shafi and
other witnesses had failed to explain that there was no equity involved
and he was not a working partner then. what was his role in setting of
Gulf Steel Mills. Mr. Tarig Shali as well as the other witnesses i.e. Mr
ATTESTES TO BT TRuE copy | IUssain was asked by the HT to provide any corroborative documents
like Articles of Memorandum of Association. Bank Loan Documents
to substantiate their pos!iliun but no such record was provided. He
produced attested copy L:‘]‘ shares sales contract. photocopies of which

AN e - .
ATV COURT-R are at pe 20 to pg 39 Volume

CMA 753172016 ond is Ex.PW-16°7 wherein there were three

parties Muhammad Shafi. Ahli and BCCIL. All the proceeds of 21
million AED were to go to BCCI. The company had a total of 36-'4

million of AED approximately and after payvment to BCCI still about

I4 million of labilitics were outstanding against Gulf Steel Mill.
These labilities were the responsibility of Mr. Tariq Shafi who \\’as--
running this under the ~cal ownership of Mr. Muhammad Sharif.
These included another about 06 million AED owed to BCCI while
the remaining two utilitn companies jike Water and Electricity

e Seyr-Charges. A partnership agreement of vear 1978 between Mr. Tariq
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Shafi and Mr. Abdullah Ahli was signed. which provided for 23%

<hares to Mr. Tarig Shati and remaining 75% t0 Mr. Ahli. Photocopies

 which are available at page 40 to pg 5l of Volume CMA

O

=53] 2016, same is Ex. PW-16 8. Another agreement dated 14" April.”
1980 placed at pg 32 to pg 33 of Volume CMA No. 7531/2016 was
signed purportedly between parties Mr. Tariq Shati. represented by his
authorized representative Mr. Shahbaz Sharif and Mr. Muhammad
Abdullah Ahli. same is Ex.PW-16/9. The signature block of this
agreement states Tarig Shafi by his authorized representative Mr.
Shahbaz Sharif whereas the signatures on the signature block read for
Tariq Shafi. When contronted with this anomaly both Mr. Tariq Shafi
and Mr. Shahbaz Sharif denied that they had signed this document.
The agreement dated 14.4.1980 which contains clauses specifically
referred to bank guarantee 1o be provided by Mr. Abdul Rehman Ahli.
These guarantees in banking terms are only discharged once pavment
had been received by Mr. Tariq Shafi. He has collected Constitution

petition No. 29 2016 already exhibited as Ex.16/4.

1. CMA No. 432 :1lrcad'\" exhibited as Ex-PW-16/6.

19

Share sale contract already exhibited as EX.PW-16/7.

(VP

Photocopiels of letter of credit as annexure E. available at
pe-36 to ﬁg;39 CMA no. 432/2017 which is Ex.PW-
16 10.iunder objection that this is not a certified copy of
the original witness is not a scribe. and executants not
witness of this document) (learned prosecutor contend
that this is public document and is admissible under
article 83 of Qanoon-e-Shahadat). (Overruled. reasoning '

is given herem discussion)

4. Photocopy of letter of Hamad Bin Jasim Bin Jabir Al-
Suni is submitted in CMA No. 7638/2016 (attested copy
is seen and returned). Attested. copy of which is also

available a1 page 23 volume-V. same is EX.PW-16/11.

o

Letter dated 22.12.2016 written by Sheikh Hamad Bin
Jasim Bin Jabir Al-Thani same is ExPW-16/12 (pg.22

CMA 432 2016),

113
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Photocopy  of  worksheet alongwith  supporting
documents annexed with  CMA 132/2016. same is
Ex.PW-16 13 (pg-63 to pg-74). (Attested copies are
shown and returned).

Photocopy of order of Queen Bench dated 10" day of -
March 1999, annexed with Constitution Petition No.

292016 (pe-113 volume 10). Which is available on

volume 4 as Mark PW-15/B. at page 201). Attested copy

of same is shown and placed on file.

Correspondence between JIT and Prince Hamad Bin
Jasim through Ministry of Foreign Affairs. Photocopy of .
that letter written by me to Secretary Ministry of Foreign
Affairs availuble at .page 60 of Volume 3 interim
reference. which is Ex.PW-16/14 (original office copy is
sown and returned).
thocop_\"iol‘ other letter dated 13.5.2017 sent by me to

1LE Sheikh Hamad Bin Jasim. which 1s Ex.PW-16/15

- (pe-01 volume 3). (Original office copy is shown and

10).

—
—

returned).

Attested copy of Affaq Ahmad Director SSP. Ministry:
of Foreign Aftairs Islamabad addressed to JIT which is
Ex.PW-16 16 (pg-63 volume 3) (Original is shown and

returned).

. Photocopy of enclosed letter mentioned in Ex.PW-

16716, same is ExX.PW-16'17 (pg-62 volume V) under
objection that witness is not scribe. witness. executants

or addressee nor is the documents attested according to

Jaw),

.Photocopy ot letter dated 16.5.2017 issued by me

addressed  to Secretary of M’o Foreign Affairs .

[slamabad. same is EX.PW-16:18 (pe-63).

-Photocopy of Fax message showing delivery of sealed

enclosed letter of 13" Mav 2017 (letter exhibited as

EXPW-16 150, same is Mark PW-16/A pg-64).
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14. Photocopy of letter dated 24.5.2017 issued by me to HE
Sheikh Hamad Bin Jasim Bin Jabar Al-Thani. is ExX.PW-
16 19 (pe-66). (Office copy shown and returned).The
above said letter was sent to Ministry of Foreign Affairs.
The letter \\'riiiell in this regard to Secretary Foreign
AfTairs. Same is Ex.PW-1620 (pg 67) (Office copy
shown and returned).

_Photocopy  of letter received from office of Affaq

—_—
th

Ahmad. Director SSP where with sealed envelope was
cnclosed. That letter is Ex.PW-16:21 (pg-68) (original

is seen and returned).

l

He produced that eh\'elope which is in open state. While
photocopy of that letter which was taken out from that envelope is
produce. same is EX.PW-16 22 (pg &4) (original is seen and returned).
Photocopy of front page of sealed envelope is Ex.PW-16/23 (pg 92)

(original is seen and returned).

Seizure memo vide which attested copy of covering letter etc
were taken over and handing over by the one member of JIT in his
presence. Photocopy of that seizure memo is available at page &5

volume v same is Ex.PW-16:24 (original séen and returned).

N

Photocopy of letter dated 23.6.2017 addressed to JIT Chairman

PP —mee = -
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from Affag Ahmad Director (SSP) enclosed herewith. which is a .
delivery report of the fax transmission and the dispatched receipt of

the courier. same is EX.PW-16235 (pg-76 volume V).

Photocopy of letter which was sent to H.E Sheikh Hamad Bin
Jasim Bin Jabir Al-Thant dated 22.6.2017 is EX.PW-16/26 (pg-74).

(Ottice copy is shown and returned).

Photocopy of Fax report received in our office regarding
delivery of letter dated 22.6.2017 as enclosure of letter Ex.PW-16/25.
That fax report is Ex.PW-1627 (pg-77) (under objection it is
photocopy of the photocopy it is not attested in accordance with law.

the witness is neither addressee. nor the recipient of the document).

Photocopy of DL report regarding transmission of documents

e . - ) o
SRR 477bn 22.6.2017 same is Mark PW-16B (pg 73).
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Photocopy of letter of Affaq Ahmad. addressed to Head of IIT
Wajid Zia alongwith sealed envelope received through Embassy in
Doha (Qatar) addressed to head of the JIT and confirmation of that the -

letter was delivered to Abdul Hamad Abdul Rashid Al-Buredha
secretary to HE Sheikh Hamad Bin Jasim. same is Ex.PW-16/28 (pg-

69) (original is seen and returned).

Photocopy of letter of Hamid Bin Jasim Bin Jabir Al-Thani
addressed to HT. which is Ex.PW-1629 (pg. 87) (original is seen and’

returned).

Photocopy of letter of Shehzad Ambassador of Embassy of
Pakistan in Doha Qatar addressed to Director FSO Ministry of Foreign |
Affairs Islamabad. showing that enclosed letter was delivered by
Abdul Hamid Abdul Rashid Al-Braida same is Mark PW-16/C (pg-
86) and this letter was received as enclosure of other letter already

exhibited as above.

Photocopy of letter dated 28.6.2017 written by Shahzad Ahmad
ambassador to Mr. Sulman Sharif Ministry of Foreign Affairs
Islamabad. That letter is Ex.PW-16.30 (pe88). (Overruled. reasoning

is given herein discussion).

Photocopy of letter dated 26.6.2017. addressed to JIT written
by Hamad Bin Jassim bin Jabr Al Thani same is Ex.PW-16/31 (pg"

Q9. that letter was enclosure ot the other letter Ex.PW-16/30.

Photocopy of letter written by Affaq Ahmad Director SSP to
Ministry of Foreign Aflairs addressed to head of JIT regarding seal
envelope received through our Embassy in Doha (Qatar) addressed to

Mr. Wajid Zia head of HT. same is ExX.PW-16/32 ( pg 78) .

Photocopy of fetter dated 4.7.2017 written bv head of JIT
addressed to Hamad Bin Jassim bin Jabr Al Thani. Doha Qatar same
iy EXCPW-16 33 (pe-79 10 82) (original is seen and returned). that
letter was sent through Ministry of foreign Affairs that covering letter

is EX.PW-16 34 (pe-97). (Original office copy seen and returned).

Photocopy of letter dated 6.7.2017 of Hamad Bin Jassim bin

Jaber Al Thani addressed to HT which is Mark PW-16D (pg. 93). (as
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original is not with the witness) that letter was received through
covering letter which is Ex.PW-1633 (pg-95). an e-mail was also
annexed with said covering letter same is Mark PW-16/T (pg 94). He
produced original letter which is given to him in sealed envelope by
learned  Registrar of Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. That
envelope is opened in courl. An open envelope. covering letter and
another envelope whereon it is written that “seen bv the Honourble
court be kept in sale custody and 1o be subject to the order of the
court. announced today i.e 28.7.20177. That envelope is closed with
tape. That envelope is open a letter and English and Arabic. which is
different from Mark PW-16 D (witness clarified that he had received -
letter from foreign office. and that letter is in' English script.
However. the letter which is recovered from envelope stated above is
ditferent from mark PW-16 D and the witness has contended that he
was under the impression that it was the same letter which is already
available on file. (At this stage learned prosecutor has contended that
he is going to lile an application for placing that document on
record). (All the envelopes are seen and returned). Copy of draft”
consent order bhetween Al-Towfeek Company and Hudabia Paper
Mills. which is Mark PW-16 . (under objection that the document is
not admissible in evidence at page 189 to 191). Photocopies of
“without prejudice draft-2" as furnished by NAB to me bearing stamp
and signature ol one NAB Assistant Director. Photocopies of which
ATTESTED Th oz TRiE copy  are annexed with the reference No. 202017 volume IV as pages from
205 to pg 211. Copies of Directors™ report of Hudaybia Paper Mills
ftd as annexed with CMA No. 432 of 2017 available at reference .
volume CMA 432 17 at pages from 93 to pg 102. Attested copies of
the same are Ex.PW-16 36 (under objection that copy of this |
document has been prepared from photocopy. same is also
inadmissible as irrelevant and also not attested in accordance with-
law). He produced attestzd copies of two incorporation certificates
obtained from Hon bhle Supreme Court of Pakistan from constitution
petition No. 29 2016. Pheilocopies available at pages 63 and pg 64 of
volume CMA No. 733116 which are Ex.PW-16/37 and Ex.PW-
16 38. tunder objection {hat the attested copy produced by the witness

is attestation of a photocopy ). He produced attested copy of oflicial




copy of register of title of 17- Avenfield properties. Photocopy of
which is already available at page 75 to pg 76 of CMA 7531 /16
which is Ex.PW-16739. :Under objection that the attested copy
produced by the witness is attestation of a photocopy).

He also produced aitested copy official copy of register of title
dated 23.7.1996 regarding 17-A Avenfield Properties. photocopy of
<aid document is Ex.PW-16 40 at pg. 77-78 of CMA 7531/16(under -
objection that the attested copy produced by the witness is attestation |

of a photocopy).

[1e also produced attested copy official copy of register of title
dated 31.7.1993 recarding 16-A Avenfield properties. photocopy of
said document is Ex.PW-16 41 at pg. 79 to pg 80 of CMA 7531/16.

I1e also produced attested copy official copy of register of title
dated 31.7.1995 reearding 16 Avenfield properties. photocopy of said
document is EX.PW-16-42 at pg. 81 1o pg 82 of CMA 7531/16.(under
objection that the attested copy produced by the witness is attestation

ol a photocopy).

Photocopies relnlling to declaration of trust of Coombef.
Company  between accused Mhryam Safdar and Hussain Nawaz
which are Ex.PW-16 43 pe 83 to pg &6 of CMA no. 7331/16.
( Attested copies are produced seen and returned). (under objection that

the attested copy produced by the witness is attestation of a

ATTESTER To oo TrEoony  photocopy. same are in adnussible as irrelevant).

Photocopies relating to declaration of trust of Nescoll and
Nielsen between accused Marvam Safdar and Hussain Nawaz whicﬁ
are EX.PW-16 44 (pg 3 10 pe 6) of CMA No. 7661/16. Attested copies
are produced. seen and rtcturncd).- (under objection that the attested

copy produced by the witness is attestation of a photocopy).

e produced auested copy of opinion of Stephen Moverley
Smith. QC dated 12.1.2017. Photocopies of the said opinion available
in volume CMA 432 17 wt page 107. same is ExX.PW-16/45. (under
objection that the attested copy produced by the witness is attestation
of a photocopy. and opinion of expert is not admissible without formal

proof.




ATTE

Ln et

TOCETR

[C R PRt

17

.3 58

CoPY

30

He considered two experts opinion one stated above as Ex.PW- -
16 45 and other (at pg 68 to-pg 88 of volume IV) annexed through

CMA No. 896/2017. which is Ex.PW-16/46. Attested copy seen and
returned. (under objecticn that the attested copy -produced by the

witness is attestation of a photocopy. and opinion of expert is not

admissible without formal proof).

He produces attested copies of mortgage deed Deutsche Bank.
Photocopies of which are available at pages 130 to pg 132 of volume
CMA 4322017, and are Ex.PW-1647. (Attested copy is returned after
perusal). (under objection that the attested copy produced by the’
witness is attestation of a photocopy. the document is not attested in
accordance with article 89¢3) of Qanoon-e-Shahadat order 1984. the
witness is neither privy to the mortgaged deed nor is the witness to

the same).

He produces attested copy of letter of Financial Investigation
Agency. Photocopies of which are available at pg-8 and pg 9 on
volume CMA No. 7311 16() which are Ex.PW-16/48. Attested copy-
is returned to witness. (under objection that the attested copy produced
by the witness is attestation of a photocopy. the document is not
attested in accordance with article 89(3) of Qanoon-e-Shahadat order:

108&4).

He produces attested copy of letter relating to Nescoll Lid
addressed to Financial Investigation Agency from Mossack Fonseca
and company Lid. dated j2.6.2012. Photocopy of which at pg. 37 on
volume CP No. 292016 Pt-1. which is Ex-PW-16/49. (Under
objection that this is unsigned document of which the witness is
neither scribe nor exccutant or witness. the attestation on the
document is attestation of photocopy. the document is not certified in

accordance with Article 89(3) of the QSO 1984).

He also produces attested copy of letter relating to Nielsen
Enterprises  addressed 1o Financial Investigation Agency from
Mossack Fonseca and company Ltd. dated 22.6.2012. Photocopy of |
which is at pg. 38 CP No. 292016 Pi-l. which is Ex-PW-16/50.. -

verruled. reasoning is given herein discussion). He produces

T, ""‘I,“*,"
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attested copies of CMA No. 3942017 in Constitution Petition No.
29 2016. Photocopics are available in volume CMA No. 394/17 Court
Observation. “without noting and CMA No. at first page and without
signature at last page™ as available on attested copy produced by the
witness. (Learned prosecutor has contended that office copy was
delivered to them). Same is Ex.PW-16.51. (under objection that CMA -

consists  of pleadings which are inadmissible in evidence). He
produces attested copy of letter addressed to Minerva financial service
Itd. written by Assistant General Manager Samba financial group
dated 3.12.2005. photocopy available at pg 18 of volume CMA No.
311 20106, same i1s EX.PW-16°52, (under objection that the witness is
neither scribe nor executant or witness or addressee. the attestation on
the document is attestation of photocopy. the document is not certified
in accordance with Article {9(3) of the QSO 1984). He produces
attested copy of affidavit of one Shazi Naqvi. photocopies of which
are on volume CMA No. 4322017 (at pg from 75 to pg 77). same is
EXPW-16°35. (Under objection that the document is an attestation of
photocopy which is not admissible in evidence. The witness is neither »
the scribe. nor executant or witness of the document). He also

collected letter of Jeremy ireeman. that letter is already exhibited as

EX.PW-157T (at pg 106 of CMA 432:2017). Attested copies of notes to

the Financial Statements (Continued for the vear ended 31% March.

2007) Que Holdings lef same is ExX.PW-16/54 (pg 261). (Under

objection that the document is an attestation of photocopy which is not |
admissible in evidence. The witness is neither the scribe. nor executant

ATTZCTTT TOEE TRUE COPY : .

or witness of the document. The document is inadmissible as it is

irrelevant). Autested copies of notes to the Financial Statements

(Continued) for the year ended 31 March. 2008 Que Holdings Ltd.

17y CoURT.4 SAME is EX.PW-16 55 (pe 278). (Under objection that the document is
an attestation of photocopy which is not admissible in evidence. The

witness is neither the seribe. nor executant or witness of the document.

The document is inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copies of
nutes 1o the Financial Statements (Continued) for the vear ended 31
March. 2008 Flagship Securities Ltd. same is Ex.PW-16/36 (pg 279).

tUnder objection that the document is an attestation of photocopy

— i

vhich is not admissible in oy idence. The witness is neither the scribe.
;“",x!":v'-’
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qor executant or witness of the document. The document is
inadmissible as it is irrclevant). Attested copies of notes to the =
Financial Statements (Continued) for the year ended 31 March, 2008
Quint Paddington Ltd. same is Ex.PW-16:37 (pg 282). (Under
objection that the document is an attestation of photocopy which is not
admissible in evidence. The witness 1s neither the scribe. nor executant
or witness of the document. The document is inadmissible as it is
relevant). Attested copies of notes to the Financial Statements
(Continued) for the yvear ended 31 March. 2009 Que Holdings Ltd.
<ame is EX.PW-16 38 (pe 291). (Under objection that the document is -
an attestation of photocops which is not admissible in evidence. The
witness is neither the seribe. nor executant or witness of the document. .
The document is inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copies ol
notes to the Fin:mciai Statements (Continued) for the year ended 31"
March. 2009 Flagship Securities Ltd. same is Ex.PW-16/59 (pg 300).
(Under objection that the: document is an attestation of photocopy
which is not admissible in c\'idcncé. The witness is neither the scribe.
nor executant or witness of the document. The document is
inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copies of notes to the
Financial Statements (C(gmtinued) for the vear ended 31* March. 2009
Quint Paddington Lid. same is Ex.PW-16/60 (pg 302). (Under
objection that the document is an attestation of photocopy which is not
admissible in evidence. The witness is neither the scribe. nor executant
or witness of the document. The document is inadmissible as it is

irrelevant). Attested copies of notes to the Financial Statements

ATTESTED YO DETRUE COPY

(Continued) for the vear ended 317 March. 2010 Que Holdings Ltd. _.
same is Ex.PW-16 61 (pg 303). (Under objection that the document is
an attestation of photocopy which is not admissible in evidence. The
witness is neither the seribe. nor executant or witness of the document.
The document is inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copies of _'
notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) for the vear ended 31™
March. 2010 Flagship Securities Ltd. same is EX.PW-16/62 (pg 311).
tUnder objection that the document is an attestation of photocopy
which is not admissible in evidence. The witness is neither the scribe. "
nor executant or witness of the document. The document is

inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copies of notes to the
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Financial Statements (Continued) for the vear ended 31 March. 2010

Quint Paddington L id. same is Ex.PW-16/63 (pg 313). (Under
objection that the do«.unkm i< an attestation of photocopy which is not
admissible in evidence. The witness is neither the scribe. nor executant
or witness of the document. The document is inadmissible as it is.
irelevant). Altested copies of notes 10 the Financial Statements
(Continued) for the vear ended 31" March. 2011 Que Holdings Ltd.
same is Ex.PW-16 64 (pe 325, Volume VID). (Under objection that the
document is an attestation of photocopy which is not admissible in
cvidence. The witness is neither the scribe. nor exccutant or witness of"-
the document. The document is inadmissible as it is irrelevant).
Attested copies of notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) for
the vear ended 31 March. 2012 Quint Paddington Ltd. same is
Ex.PW-1663 (pg 328 Volume V). (Under objection that the
document is an attestatibn of photocepy which is not admissible in

ovidence. The witness is neither the scribe. nor executant or witness of
the document. The document is inadmissible as it is irrelevant).
Attested copies of notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) for
the vear ended 317 March. 2012 Que Holdings Ltd. same is Ex.PW-
16 66 (pg 339. Volume V1), (Under objection that the document is an.
attestation of photocopy which is not admissible in evidence. The -
witness is neither the scribe. nor executant or witness of the document.
The document is inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copies of
notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) for the year ended 31%
March. 2012 Flagship Securities Ltd. same is Ex.PW-16/67 (pg 336
\'olume VI (Under objection that the document is an attestation of
photocopy which is not admissible in evidence. The witness is neither
the seribe. nor executant or witness of the document. The document is
—— inadmissible as it is irrelevant). Attested copy of chart showing a lot of -
things including flow of imoeney. funds. also the profit and loss of thslz-
company ete. Attested copy of which is Ex.PW-16/68 at pg 400
Volume V1L (Original chart is shown and returned). (Under objection
that the chart is purportediyv prepared by the JIT. which is inadmissible
under the law as it forllns part of the investigation report. which is
inadmissible in evidence.) (Witness has shown the original chart in -

Volume VL ol JIT Report. which was submitted before Hon ble

&
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Supreme Court of Pakistan. Witness is directed to provide copy of the

same in the same size te this court and for accused). Letter dated
22.06.2017 received from Linited Arab Emirates M/o Justice. attested

copy of which is Ex.PW-16 69 (pg 236 and pg 237. Volume III). -
(Original is seen and returned back). (Under objection that copies’
provided to accused u s 263- C. Cr.P.C as volume III. such pages are
not available in their volume which ended at pg 235 and it is not

mentioned in Index of said volume). Meanwhile it is pointed out that

copies ol the same are available at pg R0 and pg 81. Volume IIL in

response to it learned defence counsel did not raise objection as stated

above). (Further objecti?n that the letter in response to which the

above letter is allegedly received is not on record. copy of which has

not been provided to the accused. The document does not comply with

the requirements of section 21 of NAO. 1999. Furthermore. it is not

admissible under .S.0 1984). He produces the annexure of that

fetter as received. attested copies of which are at pages 118 to 121..
same is Ex.PW-16-70. (Under objection that this witness is neither the |
author nor the executant of the letter. the letter is in Arabic and the

translation of the same is not available on record. the document does -
not meet the requirement of section 21 of the NAO. 1999 and the
provision of Q.S.0 1984). He produces original letter in Arabic Script.
while English version of the same letter is already exhibited as
Ex.PW-16-70 and attested copies of Arabic Version is EX.PW-16/71

(pg 78 to pg 79 volume 1I1). (Under objection that copy of the letter of
request in response to which Ex.PW-16/69 and Ex.PW-16/71 are
claimed to have been received is not provided in addition to that these”
exhibits do not {ultill the requirement of section 21 of NAO 1999 and
mandatory requirements ol QSO 1984). He produces original reports
of Robert W. Radley. copies of which are already exhibited in

statement of Robert W, Radley as Ex.PW-14/1 to 4 and Ex.PW-14/2.

EXPW-14 3 and Ex.PW-14 4 (Volume 1V). (Original seen and

returned). He produces two Trust Deeds as produced by the accused
Maryam Safdar on 03" Julv. 2017, claiming as original. Photocopies

oF which are already exhibited as Ex.PW-14.2 (pg 122 to pg 127) and

EXPW-T4.3 (pe 128 10 pe 131, Volume IV of JIT Report). (Under

objection that saying claiming as original is hearsav). He produces
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original letter dated12.05.2012 addressed to T from Director
Financial ln\'cstigmioﬁ Ageney in British Virgin Island. Attested 60py |
of which is Ex.PW-16 72 (pe 32 volume IV). (Under objection that
the letter which above letter is response of is not available on record
and copy has not been provided to llv1e accused. Furthermore. the letter
does not meet the requirement of section 21 of NAO 1999 or the
requirement of QSO 19:\‘4!. Witness is neither the scribe. nor executant
or witness of the letter). He produces original enclosure of the above’
said letter. attested copy of which is Ex.PW-16/73 (pg 33 to pg 54
Volume V). (Under objection that the witness is neither the scribe.
por executant or witness of the letter. Furthermore. the letter does not
meet the requirement of section 21 of NAO 1999 or the requirement of
OSO 1984). He also produced letter dated 22.06.2012 from Mossack '
Fonseca (Nescoll). same is Ex.PW-16/74 (pg2 35 to pg 56). (Under
objection that the witness is neither the scribe. nor executant or

witness of the lener. Furthermore. the letter does not meet the
requirement of section 21 of NAO 1999 or the requirement of QSO
1984, The letter in response to which the above letter is claimed to be
received is not on record and éop}‘ of the same has not been provided
1o the accused). He also produced letter dated 22.06.2012 from
Mossacka Fonseca (Niclsen Enterprises Pvt. Ltd). same is Ex.PW-
16 75. (Original seen and returned). (Under objection that the witness .
is neither the scribe. nror executant or witness of the letter.
Furthermore. the letter does not meet the requirement of section 21 of
NAO 1999 or the requirement of Qanoon-e-Shahadat Ordinance
(QSO) 1984, The letter in response to which the above letter is
claimed to be received is'not on record and copy of the same has not
been provided to the accused). He produces the original certificate -
‘rcgnrding Capital FZE. attested copy of which is at pg 312 Volume
VI which 15 EXPW-16 76, (Under objections that it is not a public

document. morcover it is not certified within the meaning of section

Article 89(3) of QSO. 1984 and it is not addressed to JIT or any other

court of Pakistan. Certificate has not been procured in accordance with
section 21 of NAO 1999). Copy of Form 9 JAAFZA and employment
record annexed with said certificate available at pages 318. pg 316 and
pe 31715 EX.PW-16 77. (Under objections that it is not a public
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document. moreover it is not certified within the meaning of section
Article 89¢3) of QSO. 1934, it is not being produced from proper
custody and it is not adddessed to IIT or any other court of Pakistan.
Document is undated and has not been procured in accordance with
section 21 of NAO 1999). Screenshots annexed with the said
certificate attested copy which are available at pages 313. pg 314 and
pe 313, which are Mark PW-16 G. (witness is directed to provide'
better copy of the same. The HT analvzed the documents collected
from CMAs pending before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. He
has referred in his statement above about the bank guarantees. This
agreement dated 14 April 1980. was submitted as annexure to the
concise statement of CMA 432, This concise statement explained that
nwelve millions AED were made available as a result of this
agreement to Mr. Tarig Shafi. and subsequentl}' handed over to the
Qattari Roval Mr. Fahad Bin Jasim Al-Thani in cash. This investment
as per the concise statement provided for the funding of not only the
Aventield Apartments through a settlement in 2006 but also for the
establishment of a Steel Factory by the name of Al Azizia in Kingdom ;
of Saudi Arabia as \\'cll'as the settlement of loan of Al Taufiq
Investment Fund of USS cight million which had to be paid due to
litigation in UK. and similarly. the setting of companies by accused
Hassan Nawaz in the UK was also started with the provision of funds
by the Qatari Royals to i-lassan’ Nawaz Sharif from this investment.
(Under objection that contents ‘of documents are inadmissible).
Theretore the subject agreement tried to provide the only documentary
proof” that this amount as sale procceds of Ahli Steel did take place.
(Under objection that it is opinionzinference of the witness not
admissible in evidence). The ';igrccmcm itsell is stamped on each page
showing the stamp of Dubai Court Notary Public. dated 30™ May.

2016 with true copy written underneath. (Under objection that

contents of documents are inadmissible). The response from the

United Arab Emirates regarding an MLA (already exhibited under

objection as EX.PW-16 69). on page 02 responded to the question

about this agreement afier scarch in the record of Dubai Courts, thev
O . |

certified that this agreemient dated 14-04-1980 of share sale of 23%.

agreement of Ahli Steel Mills does not exist and also that there was no
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ransaction worth 12 million AED as sale proceed of 25% of share of
Ahli Steel Mills ever took place in the name of Mr. Tariq Shafi. also
that no record could be found which indicate that notarization of this
document was ever done by the Notary Public of Dubai Courts on
30.05.2016. (Under objection that contents of documents are
inadmissible. witness is reading out the contents from the documents
hence not admissible). This showed that the said agreement of 14™
April 1980 submitted with the CMA is a fake and falsified document.
(Under objection that it is opinion inference of the witness not . .
admissible in evidence). Another document filed with CMA No. 432
(which have already been exhibited under objection as Ex.PW-16/10)
is the LC for the transportation of Scrap Machinery of Ahli Steel Mills
from Dubai to Saudi Arabia. The response of the MLA from the
United Arab Emirates also showed that according to their record. there -
was no such transportation. (Under objection that contents of
documents arc inadmissible). The JIT has concluded that the
respondents have misstated about the LC. (Under objection that it is
opinion-inference of the witness not admissible in evidence). The
concise statement in CMA 432 dnd 7531 have also contended that the
amount of twelve million AED was collected from Mr. Ahli in cash
and deposited with Mr. Fahad Bin Jasim Al-Thani also in cash by Mr.
Tarig Shafi. (Under objection that contents of documents are
ATTESTES TO S TRUECOPY  inadmissible). No document to support this contention i.e. any receipt
from Mr. Ahli. Mr. Fahad Bin Jasim Al-Thani and Mr. Tariq Shafi
was provided 1o the II'T. (Under objection that it is opinion/inference
of the witness not admissible in evidence). (Learned prosecutor has -
contended that witness is saving fact). JIT have also analvzed cash

payment by Mr. Tarig Shah in our report at pg 26 of Volume I1I.

tUnder objection that it is the part of the JIT report therefore not
admissible in evidence). The liabilities of Gulf Steels Mills as per the
agreement of 1978 werc'to the tune of 36 million out of which 21

million approximately had been paid as the full sale proceed of 75%

shares according to the agreement. (Under objection that contents of

documents are inadmissible).  The liabilities to the tune of 14 million

-

vere responsibility o Mr. Tariq Shafi who was workine on

behalt of Mr. Muhammad Sharif as per the concise statement of
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CMAs. (Under objection that contents of documents are inadmissible).
The Hon ble Supreme Court of Pakistan had specifically asked the
question about what happened to the liabilities. (Under Objection that
What the Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan had asked was for the
purposes of facilitating to Ion'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan under
article 184(3) of Constitution of Pakistan and the same is not
admissible in these proccedings). No document was produced by Mr..
Tarig Shafi or any of the accused Mr. Mian Muhammad Nawaz
Sharil, Mr. Hussain Nawaz Sharif. Mr. Hassan Nawaz Sharif and Miss B
Marvam Safdar about how these liabilities were clear. The UAE
Authorities vide their response to the CMA already exhibited under
objection as Ex.PW-16 69 pg R0 to pg 81 Volume 3) have also
confirmed that Mr. Tariq Shati was sentenced for defaulting a loan of -
BCCI. (Under objection 1lh:n this portion is inadmissible as irrelevant).
Mr. Tariq Shati obtained this lém} from the same bank i.e. BCCl to -
which he had owed about six million AED in the 1978 agreement of
73 0, of share sale of Ahli Steel Mills. (Under objection that he is not -
witnessed to this fact). This clearly shows that liabilities were cleared
as a further loan is never provided 10 someone who has not cleared
previous loans and the liabilities. (Under objection that this is.
inference and speculation). The JIT has provided the answers to the
questions raised by Honble Supreme Court of Pakistan (on page 33 to
pe 38. Volume 3) of our report and the finding by the JIT from (pg 38
:TTESTE:‘ TAPETRUECOPY pe 40). My signatures as weli as the signatures of all JIT Members
appear on page 40 of volume 3. which I recognize. (under objection
that those answers were meant for the consideration of Hon'ble
Supreme Court of Pakistlan in proceeding under article 184(3) of the
i Constitution ol Pakistan and are not admissible in the instant
% proceedings being inference drawn by the JIT. and same is the
4

objection applies regarding the findings of HT deposed to by the.

witness and further more -his portion of the statement of witness is
part of the JIT report which is not to admissible in evidence). He

produces the original volume 3 of investigation report of JIT. attested

copies ol the report are available in Volume 3 from pages 01 to pg 40. -
original seen compared and returned). (Under objection that this
portion of statemeni cannot come on record being part of the

i Cosirtq
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investigation report). (Under objection that contents of documents are
inadmissible in evidence). Respondents namely accused Maryam
Qafdar. Hussain Nawaz Sharif and Hassan Nawaz Sharif had.
submitted a letter dated 05.11.2016 from Prince Hamad Bin Jasim Al-
Thani (already exhibited as Ex.PW-1611 at pg 25 of Volume V) vide
CMA No. 7638, Another etter dated 22.12.2016 (already exhibited as -
Ex.PW-16 12 at pe 26 of Volume V) was submitted by accused
Hassan Nawaz Sharif and Hussain Nawaz Sharif vide CMA No. 432
of vear 2017(dated 26.01.2017). IT Report Volume V contains the
contradiction and observation of the two letters at pg 03 to pg 05.
(Under objections that this is part of JIT Report. and not admissible in
evidence). Both the letters at the end provide for use of these letters by -
the Pakistani Court. The second letter dated 22.12.2016 mentions that
it is for the clarification of certain issues that have been raised. (Under |
objection that contents of documents are inadmissible in evidence). It
is contended in these letters that Mr. Tariq Shafi handed over twelve
million AEDs to the Qatari Rovals in cash and without any receipts.
(Under objection that contents of documents are inadmissible). No.
documentation regarding the investment of twelve million AED by the
Sharif Family through Mr. Tariq Shafi with the Qatari Roval Family
wis provided by Mr. Tariq Shati or any other accused. The second
letter also provided tor some payments that were made by the Qatari
Royals on the direction df Mian Muhammad Sharif. (Under objection
that witness is deposing on contents of documents which is not
admissible in evidence). 1t also refers to the settlement in 2006
between accused IHussain Nawaz Sharif and the Qatari Rovals
resulting in handing over the bearer shares of Neilsen and Nescoll the
companies  owning the Avenfield Mavfair Apartments. (Under --
objection that witness is deposing upon the contents of the documents.
it is not admissible in evidence). No record of any agreement between
the Sharif Family and the Qutari Rovals regarding investment in 1980
was provided nor, any agreement or document between Hussain
Nawaz Sharif accused and the Qatari Rovals at the time of settlement
of 2006 resulting in claimed change of ownership to the JIT. The
annexure of CMA 432 at pe 63 (already exhibited as Ex. PW-16/13).

Iy i worksheet which the concise statements explains shows the details

e irtt
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of the investment of 12million AED converted into Dollars. the profit .

carned vear on year and the disbursement made by the Qatari Royals

on the instructions of Miar Sharif from time to time. (Under objection
that witness is deposing as to the contents of documents. which is not
permissible in evidence). The disbursements made include four
payvments to Hassan Nawaz Sharif accused. which the CMA contend.
were used for setting up of his companies including Flagship h
Investments. (Under objection that witness is deposing as to the

contents of documents. which is not permissible in evidence). No

documentary evidence for transfer of these four transactions or receipt

was provided by accused Hassan Nawaz Sharif or other accused.
Similarly. there are three transactions shown to have been made to Mr. .
Hussain Nawaz Sharil accused. which the CMA explains. were used

to set-up the Al Azizia Steel Mills in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by that
accused. (Under objection that witness is deposing as to the contents

ot documents. which 1s not pcrmiss:ible in evidence). No documentary
evidence for transfer of these funds from Qatari Royals to Mr. Hussain
Nawaz Sharif accused was provided to the JIT. Another transaction of
cight Million Dollars ngade in vear 2000 for the payment to Al
Towfeeq Company for investment funds is shown in the worksheet |
and it is explained in the CMA that this disbursement was made on the
instruction of Mian Sharit” by the Qatari Royals. (Under objection that

witness is deposing as 1o the contents ol documents. which is not

ATTESTID TR TE TRUE COPRY

permissible in evidence). At page 71 to pg 74 of CP No. 29 and same '
is available at pg 201 Mark PW-13.B while charging order nisi dated

05-11-1999. at pe 202 1w pg 204 Volume I'V. which pages are Mark
PW-16 H. The High Court placed a caution on the Avenfield -
Apartments which were specifically referred to schedule which was
attached against defendants which were Hudaybia Paper Mills, Ltd.
Mian Muhammad Shahbaz Sharit. Mian Abbas Sharif and Mian Sharif
lor having beneficial interest in these properties. and this caution was
placed in the lingaton for payvment of Debt by the defendants to the
plaintitt which was the Al Towfeeq Company for investment funds.
(tUnder objection that witness 1s deposing as to contents of documer.xt
and this 10 which is not exhibited but merely mark). The accused

Hussain Nawaz Sharif and Hassan Nawaz Sharif have annexed two
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further documents in CMA 4322017. The first one is the affidavit as
annexure J (already exhibited under objection as Ex.PW-16/33 pg 75 |
to pg 77). while the seCOnI(l is the Directors Report of Hudaybia Paper
\ills. Lid (already exhibited unde'r objection as E\ PW-16/36 at pg
93 1o pe 102). which is Annexure 1-2. In this report on page 98 the
long term loan is shown settled against a payment of USS eight
million on 03.01.2000 which is shown as a Long Term Loan. and it is
not indicated who has pmvidcd this loan for settlement of the debt. "
(Under objection that witness is deposing as to contents of document.
hence not permissible in evidence). Both these documents. the-
worksheet already referred as above as well as the concise statements
clearly show that this loan settlement against the caution was made by
the Sharif Family. (Under objection that it is opinion/inference based
on speculation of the witness not admissible in evidence). On the other
hand there 13 no documeht provided to JIT which could show that the
Oatari Rovals had anything to do with the settlement of this litigation.
The said charging order nisi alongwith the statement of Shazi Naqvi
was served upon the defendants in Pakistan by Orr Dignum. (Under
objection that witness is not witness to this fact. hence inadmissible in
evidence). The JIT observed that the Qatari Royals had nothing to do.

with these apartments and were not the owners. this is because if the

ATTZECTID TR DS TRVE COPY

apartments have belonged to the Qatari Royvals Family. who had 'A
nothing o do with the debt of Al Towfeeq Company for In\festmenf_
Fund. the subject of the litigation. they would have gone to the court
stating that the charging order nisi has being wrongly imposed on the

properties which belong to them and not to the Sharif Family. (Under

objection that it is opinion interence of the JIT as well as speculative
and areumemative hence. not admissible in evidence). The JIT
concluded that at the time of Al Towfeeq settlement in 1999 the true
owners of the aparuments were members of the Sharif Famil;\-' :
including Mr. Nawaz Sharit accused who seems to have employed his
children and the BV Companies to conceal the ultimate true
beneficial ownership. Under objection that it was opinion /inference -
and moreover forms part of the JIT Report. hence not admissible in .
evidence). These dishurscmc'ms shown in the worksheet (already

exhibited under objection as Ex.PW-16/13 pg 65 CMA-432) are as




42

observed by the T are for filling the gaps which came to light during '
the proceedings of Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan between the
first and second letter. (Under objection that it is opinion/inference of
the JIT as well as speculative and arcumentative hence, not admissible -
- evidence). The worksheet itself is unsigned without any notarization "
or authentication. [t was also observed that according to the concise
statement in the said CMA the bearer shares of the companies Neilsen
and Nescoll which own the apartments. were said to have been
rransterred from the representative of Mr. Hamad Bin Jasim Al-Thani
to the representative ol !\lr. Hussain Nawaz Sharif accused. (Under
objection that contents ‘ol documents which is not admissible in
evidence). No receipt or document for handing over these bearer
<hares of the two companies and assets worth 08 million dollars was
provided to the JIT to support this claim. (Under objection that this is.
argumentative not admissible in evidence). The JIT made efforts to.
record the statement of Mr. Hamad Bin Jasim Al-Thani and a brief of
the efforts made by showing the letters /summons sent to Mr. Al-
Thani and his response arc mentioned at pg 20 to pg 22 of JIT Report..
volume V. (Under objection that this is part of JIT Report hence not -
admissible in evidence). The correspondence between the JIT and Mr.
Hamad Bin Jasim Al-Thani has already been exhibited above. The _-
st TITITANCCOPY  correspondence shows that ll.1e T made all the possible efforts to
record his statement but Mr. Hamad used delaving tactics at first by

not responding promptly and then raising the issue of legality

especially the issue of appearance before any Pakistani Court and-
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T ultimately refusing to accede to the jurisdiction of any Pakistani Court
/M and asking for reassurance from JIT that he would not be asked to

appear in any court. (Under objections that it is partly inferential and

also referred to contents of documents which is not admissible in

evidence). The JIT holvever. . assessed the evidence and material

betore it and found that the respense of the UAE Government. the

BVT Attorney General Office. the Reports of the Forensic Experts Mr.

Radley and the observation on worksheet (non-production of any
documents) observed that the testimony of Prince Hamad was in anv

case not of much value. (Under objection that it is opinion/inference of



————— T

Al

//?/7/%

~ = TRUE COPY

- B

N
siara 8 N

AN

N

43

answers the specific questions raised by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of

Pakistan and the conclusive finding by JIT at pg 19. (Under objection

that witness is deposing with respect of JIT and also respect of report
of JIT and also admissible in e\'idet{ce). I produce the original volume
\' submitted before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan bear on my
signatures. and signatures of JIT members are at page 24. (Attested
capies of the report are :’n':\ilablc at pages 1 to pg 24) (original seen
and returned) (under objection that neither the JIT report not the
signatures referred 10 by this witness are not admissible under any
provision of law). As regards the possession and acquisition of the.
Avenfield Apartments. The respondents 6. 7 & 8 i.e. accused Maryam
Safdar. lussain Nawaz Sharif and Hassan Nawaz Sharif have
submitted their versions (already exhibited) through CMA No. 7531.
CMA 432 and OMA 394, Very brieflly it was stated that the.
apartments were purchased by the Qatari Rovals ‘through the BVI -
Companies and as a settlement in 2006. the bearer shares of
companies were transferred to the representative of Mr. Hussain. two
trust deeds one for the two BVI Companies Neilsen and Nescoll and |
the other for Coomber. (Under objection that witness is deposing as to
contents of documents which are not admissible in evidence). The
Trust Deeds were signed by accused Marvam Safdar as Trustee,.. .
accused Hussain Nawaz as Beneficiary and accused Capt. Safdar as 'a-
witness. The CMA 7531 pg 75 is already exhibited as Ex.PW-16/39.
is the land registry record of apartment 17 owned by Nescoll on 01-

06-1995. On pg 77 is a document EX.PW-16/40 is for Nescoll for

- courT-fapartment 17-A showing:date of 23-07-1996. pages 79 & &1 relates to

the title of Apartment 16 and 16-A. both showing date of 31-07-1995. . '
(Under objection that witness is deposing as to contents of documents
which are not admissible in evidence). The accused in their CMAs
filed have stated to have iuken possession of these apartments at the
time Mr. Hussain Nawaz was a student i.e. between 1993 to 1996
studying in UK. (Under cbjection that witness is not witness to this
fact and witness is deposing as 1o contents of documents which are not
admissible in evidencey. 1hs chronology of taking possession of these
apartments matches closely to these dates while he gave statement to

IFT. (Under objection that this portion of the statement is not
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admissible being statement ot; the 1.0). Both Mr. Hassan and Mr.
Hussain accuscd and g\fIr.l_\'a\\'az Sharif in their statements have stated
that Apartment No. 16 has been in exclusive use of Mr. Nawaz Sharif
accused except for a brief period when it was used by his father Mian
Sharif while he was under treatment in London for a few months in
carly 1990s. (Under objection that this portion of the statement is not-
admissible being statement of the 1.O/T). The accused have also -
through their CMAs filed have stated that they were paying the ground
rent and services charges of the Apartments from that time. (Under
objection that witness is deposing as to contents of documents which -
are not admissible in c\\'idcncc). InCMA 7531 at pages 83 to pg 86 are
documents of their trust deed regarding Coomber. Page 84. 85 & 86
are the Trust Deed Documents itself. The second trust deed regarding
Neilsen and Nescoll is filed with CMA 7661 of 2016 at pg 02 to pg 06
whereas trust deed itself is at pages 04. 05 & 06. The JIT found that
the second and third page of these two Trust Deeds was very similar to
cach other and that on both the second and third page there was a - |
cutting of the date under the signature of the Solicitor Jeremy Freeman -
which was an alteration made which could be read as either the vear
2006 or 2004 because of the over writing. (Under objection the
witness is deposing as to the contents of the documents moreover. it is
opinion‘inference of the witness which is not admissible in evidence). -
The JIT also observed that the year-2006 was a vital vear as because of -
change in legislations i.c. BVI Company Act 2004. the bearer shares
had to be deposited with a custodian by the vear 2006 providing
details of the owner to the custodian. this meant that the identity of the
holder of bearer shares was no longer possible to remain anonymous.
(Under objection that }\'itllc;s Is deposing as to contents of documents
and the statement is based on speculations and is argumentative). The .
IIT keeping in view the importance of this vear took two actions. The
HT through its Solicitors Firm. Quist Solicitors which it had engaged
solicited the response of Freeman Box Solicitors on the two trust
deeds with relation o their letter at page 107 CMA 432, which is
already exhibited as Ex.]’{\\ -16:43. The letter of Quist Solicitors is at
pages 90 o pe 92 of \-(!»Iumc IV. which is Ex.PW-16/78. (Under.

objection that document is not admissible for want of formal proof).
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The response of Mr. Freeman Box is at pg 89 (already exhibited as
Ex.PW-152). In their respense they have indicated that they had seen

the original of the documents which were same as the copies sent by~
Quist as Enclosures. (Under objection that witness is deposing as to

contents of documents which are not admissible in evidence). The JIT
also decided to get the documents examined by -Robert Radley a .
Forensic Document [xpert who was hired through the Quist
Solicitors. The Report of Mr. Radley regarding these trust deeds
documents submitted with the CMAs has already been exhibited. as
Radely Report 1. The JIT based on report concluded that the trust deed
documents had been falsified. (Under objection  the witness 1s
deposing as to the contents ol the documents mOoreover. it is -
opinion inference of the witness which is not admissible in evidence).
The JT keeping in view the importance of the documents issued
summon to accused Marvam Safdar to produce the original trust deeds
while appearing before the JIT on 05.07.2017. She on the said date
handed over to the JIT the two Trust Deeds which she said were the
originals. (copies of which are available at reference at page 122 to pg
127. Ex.PW14 3 at pg 128 10 pg 131). Under objection that statement
being before the LOJIT is not admissible in evidence). The JIT also
sent them to the Forensic Expert Mr. Radley for opinion. His report
Radley Report 02 has already been exhibited. The JIT concluded that
accused Maryvam Satdar have submitted a falsified / fake document to
the JIT. (Under oh_i;ection that it is opinion/inference of the witness
which is not admissible in evidence). Accused Hussain Nawaz Sharif.
Marvam Safdar and Cuptk Safdar had signed a falsified document and
presented it before the Hon'ble éupremc Court of Pakistan as well. °
(Under objection that witness is not a witness to this fact moreover

this is opinion based o;w speculations).  Accused Hassan Nawaz had

also submitted the copies of these trust deeds which was falsified

through the CMA filed before the Honourable Supreme Court to

mislead it (Under objection that witness is not a witness to this fact

and he is deposing as to the contents of documents. moreover this is

his opinion- inference which are not admissible in evidence). The‘
accused Hassan and Hussain vide CMA 432 at page 107 alread}'"

exhibited as Ex.PW-16 45, have submitted an opinion of Expert
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Stephen Moverly. The JIT observed that it was a short opinion without
consulting him trust deeds or other related documents and stated that
there was no requirement under the laws of England and Wales and
British Virein Island to Register a trust deed. (Under objection that
this portion of the statement is an opinion over the opinion of an
expert so inadmissible in evidence). Another Expert Opinion already
exhibited under objection at pg 68 to pg 88 Volume 1V is the opinion
of GILAED Cooper which is detailed and given after considering the
trust deeds and related documents. (Under objection that witness is not "
a witness of this fact). This opinion states that the trustee in case of a
bearer share had to hold that shares so as to make it a valid trust.
(Under objection that witness is deposing as to opinion of an Expert
who is not witness in this regard) the JIT observed that none of the
CMAs filed or the statement of the accused Marvam Safdar and
Flussain Nawaz ever stated that Nﬁwymn Safdar accused ever seen let
alone held these shares (under objection that witness is deposing as to
contents of documents morcover he has referred to the statement of
accused betore JITT.O. which is inadmissible in evidence). The
second opinion of GILAED Cooper is that the bearer shares once :
deposited with the Authorities terminated the trust. (Under objection
that witness is deposing as to the opinion of Experts. who is not a-

prrmprem T mr TR COPY witness in this case). Vide CMA R95 a Deutsche Bank document

Fod bl e

which provided for a charge on the Maytfair Apartments to provide
loan o Coomber  has been submitted. at pg

an 261.278.279.282.291.300.302.305.311.313.325.328.339 & 336 of
ST STR AT
st S ;Tu:r\ug‘r:{ . . - . . .
St B Volume VII are the !linancial statements of Hassan Nawaz's

3
% ﬁ Companies “Que Holding. Flagship Securities and Quint Padington™

for the vears 2007 1o 2012, These documents are the basis for the chart
already exhibited as Ex.PW-1668 at pg 400 Volume VII. The
documents show that loans from Coomber was provided to Que
Holdings Ltd. a company also owned by  Hassan which further “
provided funding to Quint Paddington in the vear 2008. (Under
objection that witness is deposing as to the contents of the documents.
which is not admissibler. The same Company i.c. Quint Paddington
was also provided -with a loan of 614.000 Pounds by Capital FZE a

company based in Dubai where accused Hassan Nawaz is the owner
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and accused Nawaz Sharil is an employee according to the documents
procured by a T Team. ( Under objection that witness is not a witness
to this fact and he is deposing as to the contents of the documents).
Another document in CMA 7511 at page 08 and pg 09 already
exhibited as Ex.PW-16 48 is a letter dated 12.06.2012 from Director 1
of Financial Investigation Agency Mr. Errel Jeorge addressed to

Money Laundering Reporting Officer Mossack Fonseca and Company

secking information about Nescoll and Neilsen Ltd. (Under objection

he is deposing about contents of document of which he is not the

quthor or addressee the same is inadmissible in evidence). In CP- -
292016 at pg 37. (Ex.PW-1649) is the response of Mossack Fonseca
dated 22.06.2012 regarding Nescoll Ltd whereas at pg 38 (Ex.PW-
16 50) is their response regarding Neilsen Enterprises. (Under
objection he is deposing about contents of document of which he is ]
not the author or addressee lvhc same is inadmissible in evidence). In.
response to the MLA the BVI Authorities have responded vide their
covering letter. which is Ex.PW-16:79 (Original seen and returned
back). (Under objection that the document does not fulfill the
requirement of section 21 of NAO 1999. moreover the LOR for
mutual legal assistance in response of which this letter has been
written has not been supplied to the accused). has enclosed the
response of Financial Img'esligmion Agency which is placed at pg 52 to
pe 36 Volume IV talready exhibited under objection as Ex PW-16/72
1o Ex.PW-16:75; which confirmed and certified the copies of
documents attached i.c. from Director FIA to Mossack Fonseca dated
12.06.2012 regarding Neilsen and Nescoll and the response from_“
Mossack Fonseca dated 22.06.2012 respo‘nding to queries raised by
FIA (Financial Investication Agency). it also confirmed that the FIA |
received the reply from Mossack Fonseca regarding Nescoll Ltd

through its letter cl:nicd 22-06-2012. (Under objection that witness is
not witness to the tact he is deposing I'roxﬁ the document which 1s not

admissible). The response from Mossack Fonseca regarding Nescoll ’
Lid duly certified by 1A states that basing on their due diligence.'
record. the beneficial owner of the company is Marvam Safdar and |
wovides the address of Saroor Palace Jeddah. (Under Objection that

the due Diligence record 1s not available on the court file, moreover -

oo st T Dot



,x:r:_g

AR

~onuaTannITY COURT-%

3

. “f\’f*‘-‘

48

witness is deposing to the contents of the documents under objection it
is inadmissible in evidence). It also states that they did not have any
names of trustees. beneficiaries of any trust concerned with this
company. Similarly. the response from Mossack Fonseca regarding
\eilsen Ltd duly certitied by FIA states that basing on their due
diligence record. the bcncﬁcialv owner of the company is Marvam
Safdar and provides the address of Saroor Palace Jeddah. (Under
Objection that the due Diligence record is not available on the court
Tfile. moreover witness is deposing to the contents of the documents
under objection 1t is inudn‘:issible in evidence). It also states that they
did not have any names (-wl" trustees. beneficiaries of any trust.
concerned  with this company. Letter of Financial Investigation
Agency dated 12.06.2012 refers 1o two legal instruments. the BVI anti
money laundering regulations 2008 and the BVI money laundering
and terrorist financing code ol f)ractice 2008 which provide for
detailed procedures for customers due diligence and verification of the
identity of the customers introduced business. (Under objection that
witness is deposing abmlt the contents of the document. moreover he
also deposing as to foreign law which he is not competent to depose
too). Based on the BVI's response to the MLA. the JIT concluded that
Marvam Safdar is the beneficial owner of the BVI Companies Neilsen
and Nescoll which owned the Avenfield Apartments. (Under objection '
that this is opinion of the witness and it is not admissible in evidence). -
Also that. the lrust.decds presented were not only fake but also were |
never registered or presented to the relevant company. (Under
objection that this is bpinion of the witness and it is not admissible in -
evidence). The JT had responded to the épeciﬁc questions raised by
the Hon"ble Supreme Court ol Pakistan. on page 35 and pg 36 Volume
IV, of the JIT Report is having answer of relevant those questions.'
(Under objection that what the Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan
asked for the purposes of facilitating the Hon"ble Supreme Court of
Pakistan under Article 184 (3) of the Constitution and the same is
inadmissible in this proceading). The T has also analvzed in Vo]uxﬁe
IX-A of JIT Report (and the same volume of the present reference).

the income tax and weal'h tax statement of accused Marvam Safdar

from pages 02 to 04 and a chart at page 29 which is Annexure B. the
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chart is Ex.PW-16°80 (1wo pages 19 & 29-A). (Original is seen and
returned with the direction 10 provide copy of the same to accused as
well as this courty. (Under objection that it is being part of the nT
Report and is not admissible in evidence). Assets of Hussain Nawaz
Sharif from page 06 & pa U7 of the Volume IX-A and a chart based on
Income Tax and Wealth Tax Filing at pg 227 Annexure L. the chart is -
Cx PW-16.81 (wo pages 227 & pg 227-A). (Original is seen and
returned with the direction to provide copy of the same to accused as
well as this courty. (Under objection that it is being part of the JIT
Report and is not admissible in evidence). Also the analysis of assets
based on Income Tax and Wealth Tax and other record- of Hassan
Nawaz at pe 0% to pg 14 and a char based on Wealth and Income Tax
at Annexure O. at page 280. the chart is Ex.PW-16/82 (two pages 280
& pe 280-A). (Original is seen and returned with the direction to
provide copy of the same 10 accused as well as this court). (Under
objection that it is being pait of the 1T Report and is not admissible in
cvidence). All the three accused did not have income that could justify:
the acquisition and possession of these Apartments in the early 1990°s. -
(Under objection that this is opinion of the witness which 1is
inadmissible in evidence). This letter from Saamba to Minerva
Financial Service Lid is dated 03.12.2005 (available at pg 18 as-
Ex.PW-16'52 CMA 7511 (A). which links Marya{n Safdar accused
with Minerva bet'ofc 2006. the said document has been acknowledged
ATTZSTED TO BE TRUE COPY by Marvam Safdar in CMA 304 Under objection that witness is
deposing to the contents of document already exhibited under
objection and also relerring to contents of CMA which 1is not

REGISTRAR competent proof. hence this portion is not admissible in evidence). He

TADLITY COURT-¢

owns JIT Report from pg 01 10 pg 36. his signature as well other”
members of 11T are available at last pg 36. original report is seen and
returned.(Under objection that neither the report nor the signature are
admissible under any provision of law). He produces Volume | of JIT
Report. Final Investigation Report is available at pages (1) to (viii)
whicli contains his signatures as well as other members of JIT at last
page attested copics of which are available at pg (i) to (viii) of

Volume 1. (Under objection that neither the report nor the signature

R are admissible under any provision of law). Summary of investigation
L Gety : - <
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(at pg 1 to pg 254 volume 1). which contains narrative part of each

volume of JIT Report excepl Volume (x). Each of the detailed volume"

contains not only the narrative report but also full annexure of that
particular volume. Volume 11 of JIT Report (volume II of the
reference). statement of the witnesses and analysis is not part of
summary ol inv estigation mumon:.d above. (Under objection that this
part of the JIT Report is not udmxssnblc in evidence under any
provision of law). He produces the original letter brought by him from
Hon ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. with its covering letter and letter
of foreign office. of Hamad Bin Jasim Bin Jaber Al Thani. dated 17"
July. 2017 addrcsécd 10 1T PANAMA Case. scanned copy of which is
Ex.PW-16-83 (separately placed). (Original is seen and returned). He
also produces original authorization letter dated 19.06.2017. scanned
copy of which is Ex.PW-16.84 (separately placed). (Original is seen
and returned). (S.1.0). He appeared before NAB Investigator Mr.
Imran Doggar at Lahore NAB on 30" of August 2017. and got his.

statement recorded.

PW-17 Mr. Zahir Shah. Director General Operation at NAB HQ and .
looking after the matters of international cooperation deposed that the -
documents pertaining to Avenfield Properties / Reference No. 20/2017
were received from UK High Commission through representative Mr.
Osman Ahmad on 27.03.2018. Mr. Osman Ahmad handed over the _

- documents on behalf of UK Central Authority with which the request'
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for Mutual Legal Assistance (MLA) were forwarded by the JIT and
subsequently the jurisdiction was changed to National Accountability
Burcau. (under objection of hearsay regarding handing over the
7.4 documents ~on behalf of UK Central Authority™. because Osman

!

Ahmad is not a witness in this case). (Overruled. reasoning is given -

herein discussion).  Ie produced the original letter of 20" March.v
2018 of Paul Crome UK Central Authority. photocopy of which is
Ex.PW-17-1 (02 pages). (Under objection that the witness is neither
the recipient nor the scribe or the executant of the document).
tL.ecarned prosecutor contended that the  said covering letter isr

addressed to witness and the original record was handed over as

mentioned in said covering letter). (Overruled. reasoning is given

- herein discussion).
N *:,} -O&rf'
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* He produced-original official copy of register of title regarding

House No. 16. Aventicld House. edition date 04.04.2016, same is .

Ex.PW-172 (consisting upon 02 pages). (Under objection that it is

neither original nor attested as required by law). (Learned prosecutor .

contended that the witness has produced original document of official

copy of register received in response to MLA Requests, moreover -

there is no requirement of attestation of the document received
through MLA in view of section 21 (g) of NAO. 1999). (Overruled,

reasoning is given herein discussion).

He produced official copy of register of title regarding House

No. 16-a. Avenfield House. edition date 01.04.2016, same is Ex.PW-

17 3 (consisting upon 02 pages). (Overruled. reasoning is given herein -

discussion).

He produced official copy of register of title regarding House

No. 17. Avenfield House. edition date 01.04.2016. same is Ex.PW-

174 (consisting upon 02 pages). (Overruled. reasoning is given herein

discussion).

He also produced original official copy of register of title

regarding House No. 17-a. Avenfield House, edition date 29.11.2016,

same is Ex.PW-17/3 (consisting upon 02 pages). (Overruled,

reasoning is given herein ciscussion)

He produced orig%nal record pertaining to Water Bills of Flat

No. 16.16-a. 17 and 17-a. Avenfield Houses which is ExPW-17/6.

T7orT R TOBETRUE CCP¥ (consisting upon four pages). (Overruled. reasoning is given herein

— discussion).

WITRAR

Ex.PW-17/7 (consisting upon 11 pages).. (Overruled. reasoning is

given herein discussion).

He produced original record received by him. pertaining to
Council Tax Statement tor flat No. 16-a Avenfield House, which is
Ex.PW-17:8 (comprising on 02 pages). (Overruled. reasoning is given

herein discussion).

He produced original record received by him. pertaining to-

s 7y court-¢ Council Tax Statement for flat Ne. 16 Avenfield House, which is |
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He produced original record received by him. pertaining to
Council Tax Statement for flat No. 17 Avenfield House, which is

Ex.PW-17/9 (comprising on 08 pages). (Overruled, reasoning is given

herein discussion).

He also produced original record received by him. pertaining to
Council Tax Statement for flat No. 17-a Avenfield House, which is
Ex.PW-17/10 (comprising on 08 pages). (Overruled, reasoning is

given herein discussion).

PW-18 Mr: Muhammad Imran was serving as Assistant
Director/Investigation Officer in NAB Lahore deposed that during the
authorization of investigation of the instant case, in the light of
judgment of Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan dated 28.07.2017.-
competent authority has authorized an investigation against the
accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif, Hassan Nawaz Sharif,
Hussain Nawaz Sharif . Marvam Nawaz Safdar and Capt Retd
Muhammad Safdar relating to Avenfield Properties which are Flat No.
16.16-a. 17. & 17-a Avtnfield House Park Lane London. The said
investication was authorized vide authorization letter No.
1(61)YHQ/911'NAB Lahore dated 03 August. 2017. same is Ex.PW-
181 (pg 24 of interim reference). (Overruled; reasoning is given

herein discussion).

During the course of investigation. complete JIT Report was
collected from Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan and volume I to
IX-A are integral part of this reference and were also submitted in this.
court along-with reAference. (At this stage leamed prosecutor
contended that Volume I to IX-A of the J I'f Report may be exhibited.

Both sides want to argue it in detail. Time 30 minutes was granted to

prepare their arguments as per.their request).

Record regarding Panama Case before Hon'ble Supreme Court
of Pakistan was also collected which includes CMAs through which
accused persons submitted their stance regarding acquisition of. |
Avenfield Properties before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan an.d

also provided money trail in this regard. Same record of proceedings

of Panama Case before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan was also

ﬁﬂurggubmitted before this learnzd court alongwith the reference. Miss
(738 ;

- ".;‘:;1;
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. » . AT
Sidra Mansoor Joint Reomrar SECP 1omed investigation on 23

August 2017. and produuec. record regarding annual Audited Accounts

of Hudavbia Paper Mills from \e'1r 2000 to 20035 alongwith the report '
and a covering letter. alreadv exhibited as Ex.PW-1/2 to0 Ex.PW-1/8
(pg 62 to pg 110 Interim Reference). (Learned Defence Counsel
contended that already subjected 1o objection). Same record was.
scized through seizure memo dated 23-08-2017 in presence of
witnesses and statements of Miss Sidra Mansoor and witnesses of
seizure memo were recorded ws 161 Cr.P.C. the said seizure memo is.

Ex.PW-18/72 (pg 62. Interim Reference).

Mr. Shakeel Anjum Nagra (PW-6). Addl Director
(Coordination) of Operations Divisions, NAB HQ, Islamabad joined

investigation on 23-08-2017 and his statement was recorded u/s 161

Cr.P.C.

Mr. Wajid Zia. Head of JIT (PW-16) joined investigation on

30.08.2017. and his statement u’s 161 Cr.P.C was recorded.

Mr. Mazhar Raza Khan Bangesh (Pw-03) joined investigation '

on 30.08.2017. and his ctatement was recorded u/s 161 Cr.P.C.

Mr. Muhammad Rasheed (PW-02). Orr Dignam and Co. joined
investigation on 06" September. 2017, and produced record pertaining '
to photocopies of order of Queen’s Court London and affidavit of Mr.
Mazhar Raza Khan Bangesh along-with a covering letter (already
marked as Mark A and B and Ex.PW-2/1 pg 112 to pg 122 of Folder I,
Interim Reference). (already subjected to objection). and same was -
seized through a seizure memo dated 06™ September, 2017 in thé
presence of witnesses. that seizure memo is Ex.PW-18/3 (pg I11.
Interim Reference Volume 1) and statements of Mr. Muhammad
Rasheed and witnesses of seizure memo dated 06™ September, 2017 |

were recorded u/s 161 C1.P.C.

Call-up notices were issued to Mousa Ghani and Tariq Shafi

and same were handed over to Umar Daraz Gondal Sub Inspector -
Police Station NAB. Lanore. and his statement ws 161 Cr.P.C was
recorded on 16" August 2017. Call-up notices to accused Mian

Viuhammad Nawaz Sharf. Hassan Nawaz Sharif. Hussain Nawaz

R TNEER S LY o1, Y7 s X ]
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Sharif. Marvam Nawaz Safdar and Capt Retd Muhammad Safdar were
issued and handed over to Mukhtar Ahmad Sub Inspector. (PW-04)
P.S NAB Lahore and his statement u’s 161 Cr.P.C was recorded on .

18-08-2017. Tt was also written in the above said call-up notices

addressed to the accused persons that in case of their non-appearance '
t would be construe that they have nothing more to offer in their

defence. (Learned Detence Counsel contended that this portion of
statement pertains to contents of the document, moreover that

document is not even part of the record and this witness is not

competent to draw any ilg‘nference as stated by him). Accused persons.
did not join investigation proceedings however on behalf of accused

\Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Maryam Nawaz. Capt Retd.

Muhammad Safdar. two letters from their counsel Mr. Amjad Pervaiz
Advocate dated 22" August. 2017. were received through his "
authorized represehtati\'e -Mr. Sultan. (Learmned Defence Counsel "
contended that this portion of statement pertains to contents of the
documents. morcover thosc documents are not even part of the
record). He produce original those letters whose contents were noted .
at pg 05 & pg 06 of Interim Investigation Report. (At this stage'
Learned Defence Counsel comended that these are not appended with
the reference. the witness is neéither scribe nor executant of these three ‘
documents. the scribe and executants are not cited as a witness in this
reference. As far as the reference of documents in investigation report
is concerned same refers to only one letter and not to three documents.,. -
On the other hand learned prosecutor has contended that the letters are
addressed to the witness and he is producing the said letter in original
in the court. reference of letter is also given in interim report). (Court
Order: The witness is producing original letters and hand written
statement the contents qf both the letters already reproduced in its
report prepared ws 173 Cr.P.C and the said letters are allegedly on .
behalf of accused througl: their counsel therefore. those letters as well

as hand written statement of the counsel will be exhibited in hisA
statement subject to objection if any on behalf of accused about their

admissibility. Photocopies of the letters and hand written statement are

nded over to both the counsel of the accused). Both the letters dated

22.08.2017 on behalf of accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif and
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on behalf of Marvam Safdar and Muhammad Safdar, and hand written '
statement of Mr. Sultan Mehmood Khan are EX.PW-1 8/4. Ex.PW-18/5
and Ex.PW-18/6 respectively. (Photocopies of the same are handed
over to Learned Defence Counsels). (Under objection that witness is

neither scribe nor the executant. and no notice of the document was
!
given to the accused). !

On the basis of material collected and referred to by the JIT in
JIT Report he prepared: interim investigation report dated 06
September. 2017. which bears his signature, available at pg 20 to pg
22 of interim Reference) and recommended filing of reference against -
the accused persons namely Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Hassan |
Nawaz. Hussain Nawaz. Marvam Nawaz Safdar and Capt Retd
Muhammad Safdar. Competent authority after the perusal of Interim- '
Investigation Report and material available on record filed the interim

reference against the accused persons on 08™ September. 2017.

During the course of further proceedings He along-with case
officer Mr. Sultan Nazir visited UK and recorded statement of Mr.
Raja Akhtar (PW-13) Principal Quist Solicitors u/s 161 Cr.P.C on
14.12.2017 and recorded statement of Mr. Robert Radley (PW-14) on -
15.12.2017 wis 161 Cr.P.C as both were associated with the'l
proceedings by the IIT. Mr. Sardar Abdul Wahid Khan (Pw-09) DG

Directorate of Electronic Media and Publication joined investigation

On 05" Januarv. 2018 he produced record regarding address
and speech of accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif and Hussain
Nawaz Interview with laved Chaudhry. which include transcripts,'-
CDs and relevant correspondence letters already exhibited as Ex.PW-.
91 to Ex.PW-9:13 at pages 21 to pg 38 of Supplementary reference.
(Already subjected to objection as noted in statement of PW-09),
which he seized through seizure memo dated 03-01-2018 in the
presence of witness, that seizure méno is Ex.PW-18/7 (pg 20 of
supplementary reference). and statements of Sardar Abdul Wahid

Khan and witness of seizure memo were recorded w/s 161 Cr.P.C on
03.01.2018.
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Mr. Syved \/Iubassh!ar Taugqgeer Shah (PW-10) Director External.
Publicity Wing M/o Information joined inv: estigation on 05.01 2018,
and produced transcript of interview of accused Hassan Nawaz in
program Hard Talk of BBC along-with CD and other correspondence _
already exhibited as Ex PW-10/1 to Ex.PW-10/5 (pg 60 to pg 74 of | '
supplementary reterence). (Already subjected to objection as noted in
statement of PW-10) and same was seized through seizure memo
dated 05.01.2018. in the presence of witness. that seizure memo is
Ex.PW-18/8 at pg 59 of supplementary reference. and statements of -
Mr. Sved Mubasshar Taugeer Sﬁah and witness of seizure memo were

recorded ws 161 Cr.P.C on 057.01.2018.

Mr. Wagas Ahmad (Pw-11). Senior Coordinator Geo News
Islamabad joined investigation on 10.01.2018. and produced'
transcripts and CDs containing conversation of accused Maryam
Nawaz in program LEKIN and interview of accused Hussain Nawaz ™
with Hamid Mir along-with a covering letter already exhibited as
ExPW-11/2 to ExPW-11.3 (pg 76 to pg 91 of supplementary
reference). And same were seized through seizure memo dated
10.01.2018. same is Ex.PW-189 (at pg 75 of the supplementary
reference). in presence of witness. Statements of Mr. Waqas Ahmad

and witness of seizure memo were recorded u/s 161 Cr.P.C on -
10.01.2018.

Once again call-up notices were issued to accused Mian
Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Marvam Nawaz Safdar and Capt Retd .

i lile ) 31
ApromTen T8 DT TR COP‘f\Iuhammad Safdar on 28-12-2017. however accused persons did not -

join investigation proceedings and a letter from their counsel Ch.

W Naseer Ahmad Bhutta dated 30.12.2017 was received. He produced '

original two letters. one is on behalf of Capt Muhammad Safdar and
REQISTAD

< v couxrother is on behalt of Marvam Safdar which are Ex.PW-18/10 and

' %% Ex.PW-18/11 (Under objection that these documents have been

available with the prosecution since 30.12.2017 and they did not even

L.
append these documents with the supplementary reference which was-

filed on 22.01.2018 and now it is being produced after five months
during the course of recording of deposition of this witness.

Furthermore. this witness is neither scribe nor executant of these
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documents. nor is the actual scribe or executant of these documents ’
which have been cited as witness. No notice ufs 263-C of Cr.P.C has .
been given to the accused). (Overruled. reasoning is given herein
discussion). It was written in the above said call-up notices that in case
of their non appearance it would be construed that they have nothing
more to offer in your defence. (Learned Defence Counsel contended
that this portion of statement pertains to contents of the document,
moreover that document is not-even part of the record and this witness
is not competent to draw any inference as stated by him). Then he
prepared supplementary investigation report dated 12.1.2018 and
which bear his signatures (available at pages 06 to 18 of
supplementary reference) and recommended filing of supplementary"
reference against the accused persons. Competent authority after the
perusal of supplementary investigation report and material available
on record filed supplementary reference against the accused persons
on 22.01.2018. On the b?sis of material collected and referred by the
JIT. NAB also followed the MLA requests initiated by the JIT. On
2733018, He received a call from Mr. Zahir Shah(PW-17) DG
Operation NAB Headquarter Islamabad and he was informed that
reply of MLA from UK Central authority has been received. On the
next day on 28.3.2018 he visited the office of DG Operation and he
handed over the photocopie‘s‘ of the record received from UK Central
Authority to proceed further. The said record contained land registri‘es
of Flat NO. 16. 16-a. 17 and 17-a of Avenfield House London.
Utilities bills and council tax and that record was placed on record of
_ this court through an application. ‘On the basis of material collected
ATTESTED TO CETRUT COPY
and referred to by JIT in JIT report. It is found during the investigation
that accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif being public office
holder owned and posséssed Avenfield properties which are bearing

~ERISTRAR :
’””'“‘P, -~urtaNo. 16, 16a. 17 and 17-a Avenfield House through offshore

companies namely Nielson and Nescoll in the name of his benamidars. »
and has tailed 1o account for sources for acquisition of said properties

and these properties are in possession of accused Mian Muhammad

Nawaz Sharif and other accused persons since 1993. (Learned defence -
\% counsel has objected to it that this entire portion constitutes inferences '

R T drawn by an opinion of the 1.0 which is not admissible in the eye of
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law. On the other hafxd learned prosecutor contended that the said
portion of the statement of the witness is Based on the facts/record.
material collected. and analyzed /examined during the course of
investigation). (Overruled. reﬁsoning is given herein discussion).
Accused persons Hassan Nawaz Sharaf. Hussain Nawaz Sharaf,
Marvam Safder and Capt. Muhammad Safdar filed various documents
including the trust deeds of Nielsen. Nescoll and Coomber before the .
Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. during the hearing of Panama .
Case in the support of stance taken by the accused persons regarding
the acquisition of Aventield Properties. Trust deeds of Nielson,

Nescoll and Coomber were also submitted by accused Maryam Nawaz

before the JIT as originalshowever. later on these trust deeds found to - -

be faked and fabricated in the light of forensic reports of Robert -
Radlay. (Learned defence counsel objected that this witness is not
witness to whatever transpired before the JIT and to this extent this -
portion of the statement is not admissible. (Overruled. reasoning is
given herein discussion). Accused persons Hassan Nawaz, Hussain -
Nawaz. Marvam Nawaz and Capt Muhammad Safdar being
benamidars and associates aided. abetted. conspired and connived with ‘
accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif and were found involved in |
commission of offences of corrugtion and corrupt practices under
NAO 1999 and schedule attached ﬂ1ereto. (Learned defence counsel
objected that this portion is inference/opinion of the 1.O., on the other
hand learned prosecutor contended that the said portion of the

N .
statement of the witness is based on the facts/record. material

_ collected. and analvzed-examined during the course of investigation).

(Overruled. reasoning is given herein discussion).

While relving upon the JIT Report and in addition to
documents already produced by other PWs, He have also relied upon '

the following documents and material:

1. Family assets settlement agreement (available at pg 152 to - -
184 of volume TV of interim reference) which is ExPW-
18/12 (Under objection that document is photocopy, the

witness is neither scribe nor executant nor witness of this

i ot document. tie scribe. executants or witnesses of this
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document are not cited as witnesses nor the stamp of -
attestation is affixed as copy of the original, rather the

original was not available with the Hon’ble Supreme Court -
of Pakistan. and this document was never received nor taken

into possession by the witness/1.O.. on the other hand
learned prosecutor has contended that the same is the
attested copy and has been received and collected from

Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan by the witness to

peruse. examine and relied on the same and the same is part

of judiciary proceeding). (Overruled. reasoning is given
herein discussion).

2. Analvsisichart of assets and liabilities of accused Mian
Muhammad Nawaz Sharif prepared by JIT,~ available at pg
418 of volume IX.- (consisting upon two pages), same is -
Ex.PW-1813. (Under objection that firstly that this
document is not prepared by this witness, secondly Mr. :

Wajid Zia appeared as head of JIT as PW-16. and he never

stated that this document was prepared by JIT, nor did he
get this document exhibited nor produce this document
during his deposition. and therefore this document is not
admissible in !the statement of this witness). (Overruled,:
reasoning is given herein discussion).
(Witness is directed to provide better copies of the same).
3. Report of JIT available at pg 01 to pg 40 of Volume III.
(Under objection that this is not admissible in evidence). 4
4. Report of JIT available at pg 01 to pg 36 of Volume IV. ’
(Under objection that this is not admissible in evidence).

Report of JIT available at pg 01 to pg 24 of Volume V of .

n

JIT Report. (Under objection that this is not admissible in

evidence).

ARGUMENTS CF LEARNED PROSECUTOR

Learned  Prosecutor made interalia  following.
submissions while summing up case of the prosecution.

» Mossack Fenseca is the fourth largest law firm of the -

b‘] \X }\'orld.‘Thc international consortium of investigative"

\ L journalists ICIJ released certain information that had
“ Iy been hacked from the database of a Panama based law
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firm (Mossack Fonseca). Approximately eleven million -
documents were hacked. Those papers are known as

Panama Papers.
That information reveals the names of hundreds of

persons who fomed off-shore companies in various tax -
haven jurisdiction for obtaining secrecy and tax
immuniiy of private property and wealth secured by
means that interalia. include fraud, money laundering
and tax erosion. The list included names of heads of the
states. their relatives. associates. public official,
politicians. rick people etc. from all over the world.
Members of the then First family of Pakistan was also
alleeed to have connection with off-shore companies.
Sharif familv  owns  off-shore companies and
properties assets which never declared. _
After release of Panama papers. the Avenfield
Apartments which are subject matter of this reference
were also taken up by Hon'ble Supreme Court of"
Pakistan in constitution petition no. 29/2016, 30/2016
and 032017. Those apartments were never declared by
the accused no.1. Certain documents/consite statements
and aftidavits were filed by the accused in their defence.
While deciding the matter. Hon'ble bench of five
members was split in their decision. Hon’ble three
members af e bench formed JIT to probe into the
allegations. Certain questions were enumerated for the
JIT. Investication was to be completed within 60 days.
Order dated 20-04-2017 Exh. PW-16/1 is pertaining to
announcement of formation of JIT while order dated 05-
05-2017 speaks about composition of JIT which started
s work on 08-05-2017. JIT submitted its final report
consisting of ten volumes on 10-07-2017. ,
JIT had all powers given by the law relating to
investigation including those available in the Cr.P.C :
1998. NAO 1999 and Federal Investigation Agency Act
1975. The JIT was also having the power to engage an
associate Jocal andior foreign experts to facilitate the
investigation and collection of evidence and line with -
the letter and spirit of the order dated 20-04-2017 of -
Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. He referred to order
dated 03-05-2017 Exh PW16/3 in this regard.

He has further contended that it was observed by
Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan that a prima facie
tribal case was made out against the accused and NAB
was directed to prepare and file the reference(s) on the "
basis of material collected and referred to by the JIT in. |
its report and such other material as may be available
with the FIA and NAB having any nexus with the assets
or which may subsequently become available. NAB was
directed to file reference within six weeks.

Charge in the case was framed on 19-10-2017 and
amended on 08-11-2017. Supplementary reference was
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disproportionate. to his known sources of i.ncome to -
prove charge of corruption and corrupt practices .und§r :
NAO 1999. Once such burden is satisfactorily 1s
dischareed. onus is shifted to accused to prove the
contrar; and give satisfactorily account of holding
pr_opert'ies. In case of failure of accused. court may raise

presumption of a guilt,

\Y;

He has also referred to a case authority PLD 2017 SC
265 and contended that in para 10 and 1lof the
judgment. it is held that where there is an allegation that
a holder of public office or any of its dependants or
benamidars Owns or possesses any assets or pecuniary
resources which are disproportionate to his known
sources of income which cannot reasonably account for
he can be convicted of an offence of corruption and
corrupt practices. He has further contended that
prosecution has succeeded to discharge its initial burden.
Admittedly accused paid ground rent of avenfield-
apartments. ground rent is paid by owners. FIABVI.~
documents. settlement in vear 1999 in respect of Al
Taufig Company. concise statement Exh PW 16/4 also
indicates ownership of the accused. Tariq Shafi is
statedly” benamidar of Muhammad Sharif. this family

has been using benamidar since long time. '

Y

The stance taken by the accused (respondent no. 6,7 & . -
8) in supplementary concise statement Exh PW 16/4 is .
that Muhammad Sharif was their grand father. who
alongwith his family owned Ittefaq Foundries which
manutactured heavy machineries. It was nationalized on
02-01-1972 by the then Government of Pakistan without
any compensation. Additionally the owners and their .-
families had kept their precious possessions like cash

and jewelry in safe deposit lockers of Ittefaq Foundries
_ at the time of its forced and abrupt nationalization,
apIaTs S TA T TN A0PY which were also confiscated along there with.....

In the vear 1973, late Mian Muhammad Sharif -
moved to UAE and had set up Gulf Steel Mills (The
company) iin the vear 1974 in Dubai and he carried on
this vary business through his nephew Tariq Shafi. Mr. -
Muhammad Hussain was a partner in the company. The
steel factory belonging to the company was established
by obtaining loans from domestic bank in Dubai. No
amounts were transferred or remitted from Pakistan for
the purpose of setting up. financing or running of this
business. Mr. Muhammad Hussain (partner) passed
away. His legal heirs through a cessation letter
transferred their share including the rights and liabilities,
in favor of Mr. Tariq Shafi who was holding the share
n ’b on behalf of late Muhammad Shafi. )} ;

. In vear 1978, late Mian Muhammad Sharif
decided to sell off 73% shares of the company to Mr.
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Abdallah Kaved Ahli. inter alia to settle the company’s
outstanding liabilities with the domestic bank in Dubai.

Consequently: in 1978, Tariq Shafi sold 75 % shares of
the company through a try partite agreement. The money
obtained frqm sale of 75% shares of the company was
utilized exclusivelv to settle its outstanding liabilities.-
The business of the factory was run under the name of
Ahli Mills company (The Ahli company) of AED
28.300.000 capital of the Ahli company, Mr. Abdallah
Kaved Ahli subscribed to 75 %, while the remaining
239, were treated as having being contributed by Mr.

Tariq Shafi in accordance with try-partite agreement. A
fresh partnership agreement was executed between -
Abdallah Kaved Ahli and Tariq Shafi.

[n vear 1980. Mian Muhammad Sharif decided to
disengage himself from his steel business in Dubai. 25% -
share in Ahli company were sold to Mr: Abdallah Kaved -
Ahli against a total sale consideration of AED 12
million. In the same vear. the consideration of AED 12
million received from sale of 25% share was entrusted to
Al-Thani family- of Doha’Qattar to invest in the real
estate business of the Al-Thani family. The Flats no. 16,
16-A. 17 & 17-A were purchased by the Al-Thani-
family and their ownership was secured through two
companies namely Neilson Enterprises Limited and
Nescoll Limited. the bare share certificates of which..
were kept by ihe Al-Thani family in Qattar. On account
of the long standing business and personal relations of
the Al-Thani family with late Mian Muhammad Sharif,
Al-Thani family allowed late Mian Muhammad Sharif
and his family to use properties whilst bearing all
expenses relating to the properties including the ground
rent and ser}'ice charges.

Alter his exile from Pakistan on 10-12-2000 late -
Mian Muhammad Sharif advised Al-Thani family that
the said investment. together with its cumulative return.
would be for the benefit of his eldest grand son i.e,
respondent no.7. Respondent no. 6 is trustee for the
benefit of respondent no. 7 in pursuance of a trust deed
of 2006. executed between respondent no. 6 and 7. Since
the vear 2006. the properties are owned by respondent -
no. . .
Learned prosecutor has referred to section 4 (1)(b)
section 4 (2) d&g. section 4 (4) of Virgin Islands
Financial Investigation Agencv Act 2003 which are
reproduced below:
4 (1) In the exercise of its functions under subsection
(2). the Agency shall be responsible for receiving.,
obtaining. investigating. analyzing and disseminating
information which relates or may relate to. )
(@r....... !
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(b) A request for legal assistance from an authority in a

foreign jurisdiction which appears to the Agency to
have the function of making such requests.

4 (2) Without limiting subsection (1) and

notwithstanding any other law to the country the Agency

(ay ........

(€).ooennne.
(d)Mav require the production of such information,

excluding information subject to legal professional
privilege. that the Agency considers relevant to the

performance of its function.

(ﬂ ........

(g) may provide information relating to the commission

of a financial offence to any foreign financial
investigation agency. subject to any conditions as
may be considered appropriate by the Attorney
General.

4 (4) Anv person failing or refusing to provide the

information required under subsection (2)(d) commits an-
offence and ‘s liable on summary conviction to a fine
not exceeding twenty thousand dollars or to
imprisonment for a term not exceeding two years or to
both.

He has contended that the information of MLA
request received through FIABVI due to the above said
provision is reliable. The money was sent through
money laundering. The bearer share certificate lost their
utility due to BVI business companies act 2004, he -
referred to s 69 which is reproduced below for a ready

reference: »
69 _ISSUE OF BEARER SHARES AND CONVERSION OF -
REGISTERED SHARES

(1) Where a company issues a bearer share or transfers a
treasury share that is a bearer share, it shall not deliver the
share to any person other than a custodian who has agreed to

s T2 2ETRVESOPY hold the share.

(2) A company shall not deliver a bearer share converted
from a registered share to anyv person other than a custodian
who has agreed to hold the share.

(3) The delivery of a bearer share to a custodian in
accordance with this Division does not constitute te custodian
as a share holder of the company. in relation to the bearer share.
notwithstanding that the custodian may exercise voting and
other rights on behalf of the beneficial owner of the bearer
share.

(4) Where a company acts contrary to provision 1 or 2, it
commits an offence and is liable on summary conviction to a
fine of 50.000S.

S 70 of BVI business companies act 2004 provides
bearer shares not held by custodian are disabled.

He has submizted that this was a compulsion that name
_of'exact owner was to disclose in respect of bearer '
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share recistered share. A registered share is a stock which is -
registered to the name of exact owner. If owner of such a share
sells it. the new owner has to register it with his name and other

personal information. _
Under s 71 of BVI business act 2004 full name of

beneficial owner of the bearer share, the full mame of any other -
person having an intercst in that share. other information as
required are to be provided. At the time when bear.er shares are
deposited with the authorized custodian or delivering the same
to any person. : : _
As per FIABVI letter accused Maryam Safdar is

indicated as beneficial owner of the companies Neilson and-
Nescoll Ltd. 7

> The Avenfield Apartments were in the name of the said
two offshore companies, the real identity of the.
ownership was concealed till 2006 when the British
version island laws were changed and it became no
longer possible to conceal the real identity of beneficial
ownership as per legislation mentioned above. Learned
Prosecutor a!so referred to anti money laundering
regulation 2008 and anti money laundering and terrorist
finance code of practice 2008. The bearer share
certificates were converted into registered shares. .
To justifv the acquisition of Avenfield Apartments .

accused has produced letters (Exh PW16/11 and Exh
PW 16/12) of Hamad Bin Jasim Bin Jaber Al-Thani.

Para 4 of Exh PW16/11 is about Avenfield Apartments
which is reproduced below for a ready reference:
The properties Flat no. 17.17-A.16.16-A at Avenfield
house. Park Lane. London were registered in the
ownership of two offshore companies, bearer share .
certificates of which were kept during that time in Qatar.
These were purchased from the proceeds of the real
estate business. )
On account of relationship between the the
families. Mian Muhammad Sharif and his family used
=TT COPYE the properties whilst bearing all expenses relating to the
properties. including the ground rent and service
charges.
The said Hamad Bin Jasim did not appear before
JIT even helis adamant to appear before the court and he
avoided his appearance on different pretexts. even
before any court of Pakistan. He referred the pages 20 to
22 of Vol-V. The letter is found myth by the JIT. The
documents received through MLA and produced by
Zahir Shah PW as well as previously available
documents indicate that the apartments were purchased
by Neilson and Nescoll Companies on 01-06-1993 (flat -
no. 17 by Nescoll). on 23-07-1996 (Flat no. 17a by
Nescoll Ltd). on 31-07-1995 (flat 16,16a by Neilson
Ltd). The sors (co-accused) of the accused no.l had
lived in Avenfield Apartments during the said years
which indicate their possession of said.apartments since .
then. Interviews of sons (co-accused) of the accused '

Y/
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no.l clearly manifest that those apartments were in their
use. around rents was paid which is the duty of actual

owner. _
Trust deeds are also found bogus. Writing in Calibri font

on those deeds indicates that those were not prepared in

vear 2006. Expert reports of Robert Radley already
exhibited in evidence, falsified the deeds. The said
expert has categorically stated that Calibri font was not
commercially available before Jan 2017. The contents of .

trust deeds are not infact creating any trust. Some duty |
as per trust deeds was assigned to be performed after
death of purported settler. :

The accused person had not produced any evidence in
their defence whereas they had a chance to produce
witnesses or documentary evidence to rebut the
prosecution case. No witnesses were produced to verify
the purported Trust deeds to confirm the signatures
thereon. He further argued if the JIT as alleged .

intentionally did not record statement of Qatari Crown

Prince then the defence had a chance to produce him

with documentary evidence and accused did not even
produce any document to show the ownership of
London Apartments. Similarly evidence regarding

companies could have been produced however it was -

not done intentionally. 7.
That the Mayfair Apartments were in possession of

accused since 1993 and Maryam Safdar is beneficial
owner of Neilson and Nescoll as per the documents
presented by the prosecution in this case. It was also
contended that the accused paid the ground rent since
1993 which is always ‘paid by owners. It was also stated
that accused Mian Nawaz Sharif, Maryam Safdar,
Hassan Nawaz and Hussain Nawaz failed to prove
source of income. Added that Maryam Nawaz hid actual
facts and Capt (Retd) Safdar signed a fake trust deed as
witness and both tried to misguide Investigation Agency
and Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan.

The learned prosecutor also read the statement of
absconding accused Hussain Nawaz giver before the JIT
wherein he stated that he was residing in said flats since
1993. and that the family took possession of other flats
in 1995 and 1996. ' :
The prosecutor also added that the letters of Qatari
Crown Prince were proved unsubstantiated. There was
no documentary proof of investments made to the Qatari
and that the bearer shares of Neilsen Enterprises and . -
Nescoll Ltd never remained at Qatar and were handed
over to Minerva service in 2006. It means that both:
companies and flats were already in possession of Sharif
tamily since 1993. Added that there is record of transfer
of bearer sharcs of flats to Hussain Nawaz from Qatari .
Crown Prince as claimed before the JIT so. statement of
Hamad Bin Jasim is irrelevant however, even the JIT .
tried to record his statement. The JIT had summoned
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Hamad Bin Jasim on 24-05-2017 and 22-06-2017,
however he did not appear before the JIT. He further -
added that JIT said that they can visit Doha for
recording of statement however. he said that he will
neither record statement at Embassy nor will appear in
Court. The learned prosecutor argued that if the JIT did
not record his statement then he could have appeared
before the court as defence witness. Request for
recording of his statement through video link can be
made by the accused. The prosecutor contended that
according to JIT findings his letter is a mere story. The
prosecutor also added that the JIT analyzed affidavit of
Tarig Shafi. however it did not find any proof of sale of
23% shares of Gulf Steel in 1980 in the Dubai Court
Svstem.
The learned prosecutor argued that PW 14, Robert
Radley confirmed his report and it was not rightly -
rebutted or contradicted through any expert produced as .
defence- witness. It is important to understand the
connection of letter of Samba Bank which connects
Marvam Safdar to flats prior to 2006 as well, and further
establishes that the Two Trust deeds were not only
forged but also an after-thought. It was also argued that
absconding accused Hussain Nawaz in his TV interview
accepted that according to Sharia his father is owner of
flats.
# According to trust deed. in case of death of Hussain
Nawaz Maryvam Nawaz will have the authority to divide
the propem When the Trust deed was analyzed for sake
of its legality the importance is to be given to the legal
opinion provided by Gilead Cooper QC as he thoroughly
examined the Trust deed and has concluded on issue of .
distribution as per Sharia that if the intention was only =
U this matter then the same could have been achieved
through a will. In documents however, the accused did -

not produce any documents. whereas prosecution case is
made of a set of documents proving the guilt of the
accused in this matter.

~rrysurt-kearned Defence Counsel Mr. Khawaja Haris Sr. Advocate on behalf ,
of accused No.l has made interalia following submissions durmg

"7/ arguments.
The powers of the JIT are mentioned in order dated 05-05-2017

Exh PW16/5. Para vi is repmd{lced below:

\ 74

The JIT shall have a!l the powers given by the law relaiing to
investigation including those available in t he Code of Criminal
Procedure. 1898. National* Accountability Ordinance 1999 and t_e'r-
Federal Investigation Agency Act. 1973,

According to s 4 (I Cr.P.C investigation means collection of

' gur'f\ idence. While according to s 3 of FIA Act 1974, subject to any
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order which the federal government may make in this behalf the
members of agency shall. for the purpose of inquiry or investigation

under this act. have sucil powers as the officers of the provincial
Police have in relation to the inveétigation of offences under the code
(Cr.P.C 1898) or any other law for the time being enforce. Cr.PC 1898
has been made mutatis muiandus applicable by NAO 1999 so for all
intent and purposes IIT has conducted investigation and its report is
also investigation report. The volumes filed by JIT is having title on
first page at each volume as “Investigation Report of the Joint
Investigation Team. Panama Case”™. He has further contended that vide -
order dated 20-04-2017 certain questions were formulated and it was
noted that a thorough investigation in this regard is required. In para 3
of the order it was also directed that the JIT shall investigate the case
and collect evidence.

Final order of the tourt dated 28-07-2017 also shows that NAB
was directed to prepare and file before the Accountability Court
Rawalpindi/Islamabad the references on the basis of material collected
and referred to by the JIT in its report and such other material as may
be available with the FIA and NAB. Therefore, the analysis, opinion,v
inference of JIT are not made basis 'for the filing of references. He has .
also referred order dated 14-06-2017 para 6 was read with the -
contention that statements were being recorded u/s 161, 162 Cr.P.C. '
He has also contended that application was filed by the accused before
recording of statement of head of JIT as PW 16, the matter was kept
open ended in that order. At present decision may be made in the
judgment.

1. Review petition was filed by the accused the judgment is reported
as PLD 2018 pg 1. Some portion as pointed out by learned defence

counsel of para 14 of that judgment dated 15-09-2017 is -

reproduced below:

“The argument that this direction implies unambiguous
approval of the material cellected by the JIT whose probative worth is

vet to be established is also misconceived as none of our observations

projects any such impression. The trial court in any case would be at
iberty to appraise evidenc: including the material collected by JIT -
L @\7\\ according to the principles of the law of evidence without being

T - 5
. F ‘Lr’}ffn”'
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influenced by anv of our observations. Even otherwise. all the

observations made in the judgment. being tentative would not bind nor
would restrain the trial court from drawing its own conclusions from
the evidence recorded before it in accordance with the principles and
provisions of the law of evidence™.

> Learned defence counsel referred to following authorities.

1. 1993 SCMR 550 titled Sved Saced Muhammad Shah and

another Vs. the State. para 10 is reproduced as below:

~Section 173 Cr.P.C is most important section in this Chapter
for the reason that under!this section final report of investigation is to
be sent by the police officer to the Magistrate empowered to take
cognizance of offence. This report is to contain names of the parties,
nature of information and names of persons who appeared to beki
acquainted with the facts and circumstances of the case. Names of '
accused are to be nientioned whether I custody or not. Report of police "
officer under section 173 is merely an information of the police officer
and the same is not admissible in evidence. Presumption of innocence
of accused involved in it is not diminished by mere fact that the case .
has been sent up for trial or that particular witness or person formed
opinion against the accused. In support of this proposition, reference -
can be made to the case of Raja Muhammad Afzal v. Ch. Muhammad |

Altaf Hussain and others 1986 SCMR 1736.

2 P L D 2018 Supreme Court 178 titled Province of Punjab

RTTESTIN T DT TRIUE COPY

i:

through Secretary Punjab public Prosecution Department and other

Vs. Muhammad Rafique and others para 13 is reproduced as under:

“The learned counsel has mainly relied upon the report of JIT and also
R oy URT read certain paragraphs there from but the said report is an opinion of -
h% % the members of JIT. and it can be considered. at the most as a report -
% under section 173 Cr.P.C. It is éettlcd bv now that report under section
173 Cr.P.C is inadmissible in evidence. as laid down by this court in
the case of Sved Saced Muhammad Shah and another V. the State
(1993 SCMR 530). The trail Court will appreciate the same if

) ‘\% supported by some admissible material/evidence because the Court
,:.“s"i*?gf’;

KRS Sy

R Cnuﬁ-f*}las to see the maten'al and cannot decide the case upon any opinion of -
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Police Officer/s. even of a high rank of Inspector General of Police™.

P L D 2011 Supreme Court 350 titled Muhammad Arshad

and others Vs. The State and others para 33 is reproduced below:

“We feel that the time is now perhaps ripe when we need to remind
ourselves of the legal role of the police in the matter of investigations
and the law regulating the admissibility and relevancy of evidence

which could be recorded at a trial in the said context™.

2003 M L D 676 (Karachi) title Asif Jameel and others Vs. The State

Tt is further pointed out that in several other cases it has been found

that the Judges while recording the statements of Police Officer/I.O.,

recorded the statement of witnesses 4/5/6/GPO given to the - .

Investigating Officer during the investigation period, without realizing
the fact that statements under Section 161 Cr.P.C cannot be used by
the prosecution for any purpose. It can be used by the defence for the-

purpose of corroboration or contradicting a witness. As such the

statements of PW's given to the Investigating Officer during the course -

of investigation are not required to be recorded in the evidence
through the Investigating Officer as it is inadmissible in evidence
therefore. the same are not required to be tendered by the prosecution

or recorded or brought on the record by Judges™.

1999 P Cr. L J 1198 (Lahore) title Magbool Ahmed Vs. Station

House Officer. Police Station Changa Manga, District Kasur and

another

1991 M L D 2005 ( Laho'ré) Title Munawar Ahmad Vs. The State.

2007 M L D 372 (Karachi) title Attaullah alias Qasim and another
Vs. The State.

1991 P Cr. L J 62 (Peshawar) title Haji Muhammad Javed Vs The

State and 2 others

1998 P_Cr. L J 56 (Lahore) title Mist. Masood Begum vs.

Muhammad Maroof and 2 others. Para 6 D is reproduced under:

" The admissibility of the evidence or credibility of the witnesses, the
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quality and the standard of evidence for decision of the case at trial is
not adjudicateable by the agency discharging the function of collection

. !
of evidence to dig out theitruth™.

10. P L D 1958 (W.P) Lahore 300 titled Darghahi and others Vs. The

State. Para 22 F & 23 F are reproduced as under:

Para 22.....We have carefully read the judgment of the learned
Sessions Judge and have tried in vain to find out, if his decision '»
requires the application of the principles laid down in the aforesaid’
ruling. The order of acquittal of the respondents is not based on any
judicial determination of the points involved. The learned Sessions '
Judge felt as if he was helpless in the matter it is matter of regret that
he allowed his mind tc be influenced by the opinion of the
Investigating Officer. which in our view as irrelevant and was not -~
admissible under any of the provisions of the Evidence act. While
investigating a case. an Investigating Officer is within his rights to
hold any opinion about the guilt or innocence of an alleged offender, - .-
and he can either grant bail to such an offender in the exercise of his"-.
powers under section 169 of the Code of Criminal Procedure or cant
move in the matter to get him discharged. But after the challan is put
in Court. then it is entirely the function of the Court to determine the
guilt or innocence of the accused on the basis of legal evidence

;
produced before it. We have not been able to find any provision of law- -
or any authority under which the opinion of an Investigating Officer as
SCETRLE Ccp‘iregards the guilt or innocence of an accused could have been brought -
on the record. No opinion about the fact to be proved is relevant unless

the opinion is of a person and is about the matter mentioned in

__sections 43 to 51 of the Evidence act. Surety, an Investigating Officer .

EEL N, . " is not one of the persons mentioned in these sections. and his opinion
%M regarding the guilt or innocence of an accused does not relate to any
matter specified therein. The learned Sessions Judge ought to have
realized that the opinion of the Investigating Officer was not legal
evidence and no Court of law could have based its finding on it. We
have already pointed out tha- in this case the Investigating Officer was -

i
allowed by the learned Skssions Judge to assume the role of a Public

Prosecutor. The case appea:s to have been conducted and tried with
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little regard for the rules of evidence. and of procedure prescribed by

l[aw.”

Para 23: “ We. wish to emphasize that we cannot permit our :
judicial officers to allow their judicial conscience to be moulded by
the opinion of the Investigating Officers. The guilt or innocence of an
accused must be judged according to accepted rules of law. It will be -
extremely hazardous to place reliance upon the opinion of police .
officers. And to make it a cornerstone of one’s decision is to allow
oneself to be a tool in the hands of the police. This is likely to shake
the very confidence of the people in the judiciary. We need not remind
that the judiciary is under a solemn pledge to keep the fountain of
justice pure and clear. We strongly hope that in future the learned

Sessions Judge will act and judge. strictly in conformity with the law™,

11. P L D 2000 Lahore 216 titled Altaf Hussain and 4 others Vs. the

State. Para 17 C is reproduced below:

The opinion of the Investigating Officer which is backed by i
supportive data. and qualifies. as observed above, like expert opinion,
to be almost a statement of fact. can be given and should be given -
defence in appropriate cases. such an opinion may not provide a legal
basis for conviction of an accused in a criminal case but it can create a
small dent. a minor crack or a vawning gap in the prosecution case,
depending on. and proportionate to weight of material behind it an due -
benefit of he same can also be extended to the accused. By tradition -

TRTDTOLETREE FOP?(and also by training), police officers are ruthless prosecutors and all :

their efforts are directed towards success of the prosecution case once

the same is set up in certain terms. Giving of concession to accused is

. ﬁagainst the very nature of the traditional investigating officer and
when one is forthcoming. and the giver of such opinion is also
unbiased. non-partisan ar]d impartial it would not be right to reject it

by terming it as a mere word of mount of an individual ™,

2. P L D 2013 Supreme Court 472 title Rao Abdul Jabbar Khan Vs.

Lahore High Court. Lahore. Para 4 B is reproduced as under:

" 27 It is a settled law that the opinion of the Investigating Officer -

regarding the innocence or guilt of the accused persons is not biding
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on the court. rather. the same is inadmissible in evidence but it has

been settled by the Hon ble Lahore High .Court. Lahore in case-law .

PLD 2000 Lahore 261 that the evidence of police officials can be -

considered at the time of {inal judgment”

=28, It appears trom the .passage of the petitioner’s judgment

reproduced above that the petitioner was of the considered view that

opinion of an investigating officer regarding guilt or innocence of an

accused person is inadmissible in evidence being irrelevant but he was

constrained to rely upon such opinion of the investigating officers

appearing in the present case only on the basis of a judgment rendered

by a learned Division Bench of the Lahore High Court. Lahore in the

case of Altaf Hussain and others V. The State™

P L D 1992 Lahore 314 Title Haji Muhammad Hanif Vs. The State..

Para 25 & 27 are reproduced as under:

=25.... therefore. the statement of an 1.O. that according to his
investigation. a particular person was innocent or guilty, as the case
may be, is an expression of opinion which expression or statement is

irrelevant and inadmissible in evidence™

~27....The function of drawing inferences from facts is a judicial

function and has to be performed by a Court alone. If a witness was

permitted to state not just the facts which he had perceived but also

about the opinion which he had formed on perceiving threes facts,

then the same would amount to delegation of essential judicial
functions to witness and! investing them with the attributes of a Judge

which the law cannot and does not permit”.

P.L.D 2015 Peshawar 157 tiled Sayvar Vs. the State para 43 is

reproduced as below:

" The statement recorded under section 161 Cr.P.C.. 1898, by either
accused or any other prosecution witness carries no evidentiary value

and could not be provec against c-accused, being inadmissible in

evidence. However. there under the provisions contained in Article 43

of the Qanun-e-Shahadat Order. 1984, which envisaged that when

more person than One are being tried jointly for the same offence, and



74

a confession made by one of such person was proved. such confession
mayv be taken into consideration against the co-accused, being tried

jointlv for the same offence. as circumstantial evidence™.

[
Uh

1997 M L D 1257 titled Akmal Vs. The State para 4 of judgment is -

reproduced below:

~the long and short of the matter is that such statement under section
161 Cr.P.C is not even admissible against the very maker thereof.,
muchless. a co-accused. It is utterly inadmissible in evidence and
should not even be recorded as a usual statement placed in-“Nathi-
Bev™ of Police file. The correct way of alluding to such conversation -
with the accused is to mention the same in “Nathi-Alif” of Police

diaries”™

16. 2010 SCMR 660 titled Muhammad Ahmad (Mahmood Ahmed) and

other Vs. The State para 37 Q is reproduced as under:

“ It may be mentioned here. for the befit and guidance of all
concerned. that determination of guilt or innocence of the accused
persons was the exclusive domain of only the Courts of law
established for the purpose and said sovereign power of the Courts
could never be permitted to be exercised by the employees of the
police department or by anyone else for that matter. If the tendency of
allowing such-like impressidns of the Investigation Officers to creep .
into the evidence was not curbed then the same could lead to

disastrous consequences. If an accused person could be let off or

#TTSTTSTORETRUECOFY  acquitted only because the Investigating Officer was of the opinion
that such an accused person was innocent then why could not, on the
same principle. another accused person be hanged to death only .
because the Investigating Officer had opined about his guilt. It may be :
added that the provisions of sections 155.157 and 174 of the Criminal - .
Procedure Code permit a police officer only to investigate a case.

“Investigation™ stands defined by the provisions of section 4(D() of

the said Code in the following terms:--

“Investigation includes all the proceedings under this Code for thé

Collection of Evidence conducted by a police officer.....(emphasis and




underlining has been supplied)™.

This then clearly indicates that the job of the Investigating
Officer is only to collect evidence and to place the same before the
competent Court. Therefore whatever expertise, if at all. could be
claimed by an Investigating Ofﬁcer would be vis-a-vis his field of h
operation. namely. collection of evidence. Could his opinion ever
become admissible in the medico-legal matters which is the area .
reserved for medical doctors or with respect to archeological matters
to determine whether an item was or was not an antique or about
hand-writings or foot-prints 61' finger-prints or to find out whether a .
painting was the actual work of a renewed painter or a fake? It the
answer be in the negative. which it has to be, then how come he could |
be considered an expert and his opinion becoming admissible vis-a-vis.
the guilt or innocence of an accused person? It may be added that in
the last 110 vears since the Code of Criminal Procedure had been in

existence in its present form. not once had it been authoritatively

declared that an Im‘estig’ating Officer was an expert in the matter of
determining the guilt or innocence of accused persons whose opinion
was admissible for the purpose. under the law of evidence. The

prohibition contained in section 161 Cr.P.C and in Section 172 of the_-
said Code regarding in-admissibility of the statements recorded by an "
Investigating Officer under the said section 161 or the case diaries -
prepared by him under the said section 172, would further clarify the
said proposition. Reference may also be made to a judgment of the

Lahore High Court. authered by one of us which is reported as Haji

Muhammad Hanif v. The State PLD 1992 Lah. 214.7

2011 P Cr. L. J 895 (Lahore) titled Abdul Hameed and 3 others Vs.

TS e §

= =HRYY the state and others para 10 A & B is reproduced as under:

“However. the question arises whether the opinion of the police ,
officers. regarding the innocence or guilt of an accused is admissible: |
in evidence? The answer is very simple that the opinion of the police
regarding the guilt or innocence of an accused is inadmissible in
evidence and court is required to decide the case on the basis of
legally admissible evidence which has been produced before it. In a
X

eourt? |
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recent judgment reported ‘as “Muhammad Ahmad (Muhamood Ahmad

and another V. The State™ (2010 SCMR 660), the Hon’ble Supreme -

Court of Pakistan was pleased to observe. as under:-

#37.... It may be mentioned here. for the benefit and guidance

of all concerned that determination of guilt or innocence of the’
accused persons was the exclusive domain of only the Courts of law
established for the purpose and the said sovereign power of the Courts
could never be permitted to be exercised by the employees of the-
police department or by anvone else for that matter. If the tendency of
allowing such-like impressions of the Investigating Officers to creep
into the evidence was not curbed then the same could lead to
disastrous consequences. If an accused person could be let off or
acquitted only because the Investigating Officer was of the opinion
that such an accused person was innocent then why could not, on the
same principle. another accused person be hanged to death only
because the Investigating Officer had opined about his guilt. It may be

added that the provisions of (As above).

18. 2005 S C M R 1175 (Supreme Court of Pakistan) title Agha Wazir
Abbas and others Vs. The state and others para 13 A & B and 14 A are .

reproduced as under:

Para 13A. “we have given our' anxious through to the
contentions made at bar and have gone through the judgments of the - -
trial Court as well as that of Appellate Court. In our opinion the

ATYZSTTI L DT TRUE COPY impugned judgment is based on proper appraisal of evidence. The
reasons advanced for the acquittal of respondents Kaka Kishan Chand,
Raj Kumar. Ismail Rahu and Asher Jan are cogent and cohvincing. It
_ is settled principle of law that the findings of acquittal can only be'
" upset if the same are found perverse. arbitrary. foolish or based on
misreading or non-appraisal of evidence. Learned counsel for the State
has not been able to show that the judgment of acquittal suffers from

anyone of the above legal infirmities.
i

Para 13B: The above referred letter said to have been written bv-
absconding accused Mehruimal Jagwani to the Chairman NAB is not

admissible in evidence at all. It cannot either be considered as a.

4
confessional statement as contemplated in Article 43 of the Order nor
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it would amount to a sta*ement referred in Article 46 of the Order. -
Article 43 of the Order provides that when more persons than one are -

being tried jointly for the same offence and a confession is made by
one of such persons and if it is proved against its maker, the same can
be used as circumstantial piece of evidence against other accused. The
letter said to have been sent b}»; absconding accused Mehrumal
Jagwani in any case would not be a confession in the terms of the
Order as he is still absconder and \-vas also not tried with the other
accused. Even on plain reading of Article 46 of the Order, it is evident
that it relates to the statement of a person who is dead or cannot be
found. In this case. absconding accused Mehrumal Jagwani is alive

and is available in India™.

Para 14. At this juncture it would be relevant to mention that a =
specific procedure has been laid down under sections 164 and 364, -
Cr.P.C. for recording the confessional statement of an accused which
admittedly lacks in this case. The said letter cannot even be equated
with a statement under section 161 or 162,-Cr.P.C. which even are to
be reduced in writing by the Investigating Officer on the oral
statement of accused which procedure too is missing in this case. The -
said letter is not admissible in evidence as it has been produced by. a':
P.W. A.D Khuwaja. Additional Director Investigation F.I.A, who was

not competent to produce the same. The documents said to have been .
sent from India. as such. invoice and envelope might have been":'

: received by Fedex Oftice in Pakistan but no one from such office was

HIRTTSTOLITRUE COPY o xamined to prove its delivery. Even address of A.D.Khuwaja,

Additional Director Investigation F.ILA has not been written over it.

Moreover, a perusal of letter shows that it was attested by a Notary

i .
Public of Mumbai. India. whose signature was verified by Section
S TCOURTA : 7 .
Officer. Home Department. Government of Maharashta. Since it is not

a judicial record of a foreign country. therefore. its genuineness and .
authenticity cannot be verified. Irrespective of above, it has neither
been certified by anv officer of Embassy of Pakistan in India nor it has
been routed through the Embassy of Pakistan, as such, it cannot be

said to be a document worth admissible in evidence at all”,
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The authorities in respect of admissibility and proof of contents of

the documents were also cited. same are recorded below:

1. 2010 CLC 722 jiitled Sved Imdad Hussain Shah Vs Syed

Makhdoom Hussain Raza and 3 others. Para 11 G is
reproduced as below:

~ Certified copy iz the one which forms part of the public
record and has been issued by the authority competent to issue’
while comparing with the original document or register. Mere -
fact that the signatures of the copyist or the Secretary of Union
Council are appearing on the said instrument, is not sufficient
to hold that the said document was admissible in evidence until -
the certified copy s brought on the record and the same is
proved by bfinging the original record and the Secretary Union
Council or the Copyist. Relevant portion of the judgment afore-

noted i.e. Muhammad Aslam’s case 2000 MLD 1581 reads:---

“The learned counsel submitted that the term ‘displaced’.,v -

relates to entirelv different situation and an affectee need
not necessarily be a displaced person. Leaned counsel™”
for the respondents took the stand that while filing reply |
to the application for amendment, the respondents had
categorically disputed the legalitv, admissibility and "
genuineness of the certificates and their reply. dated
07.11.1992" is on record at page 182. The learned
counsel also submitted that the certificates were not
certified in accordance with the provisions contained in |
 COURTA Articles 87 and 89 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat Order, 1984‘
and placed reliance on 1991 CLC page 1201 where it
%7/ ﬁ was held that the provisions of Qanun-e-Shahadat with

respect to certification of documents is mandatory and

any document not certified in accordance thereof cannot .
be relied upon. Reliance was placed on PLD 1962
Lahore 492 in which.it was held that copy certified in
terms of sectian 76 of the Evidence act (Article 87 of
Qanun-e-Shahadat  Order. 1984) onlv is the certified

copy and thaat a copy must coniain note that it is true and
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correct copy of the original and mere signature of
~Nagal Koninda~ and “Tasdeeq Koninda™ is not
enough™.

1991 CLC 1201 (Lahore) Titled Mehbood Ali and another Vs.

(&%)

Mst. Sharifan Bibi and 21 others .
3. PLD 1962 (W.P) Lahore 492 titled Khizrat Muhammad and

others Vs. Ghulam Muhammad and others

4. Financial Investigation Agencv Act, 2003 Virgin Islands

5. 1995 C L C 531 (Peshawar) titled General Manager, HBFC and

others Vs. Ali Rehman. Para 13 G and 14 are reproduced as below: - -

“In the instant case only one marginal witness and scribe
had been examined but Fazal-e-Mehmood. appellant, had not,
been confronted with his signatures on both the aforesaid
documents. The definition of the word “proved’ in section 3 of_ .
the Evidence Act must. when applied to documents, be read in’
conjunction with section 67 of the Act. A document cannot,
therefore, be held to be proved. as required by the Evidence -
Act. where there is no evidence that the signature purporting to
be that of the executants is in the handwriting of the executant,
even if the Court consideljs. as in the instant case it did. the -
execution so probable that a prudent man ought, under the.
circumstances of the case. to act upon the supposition that there.
had been execution In the case of a document required by law
to be attested. proof of execution in addition to proof of
attestation is necessafy. We are. therefore. of the considered.

opinion that. besides the evidence of an attesting witness and -

that of the scribe of the two aforesaid questioned documents,

LN VR o

T CZURTA

SR the signatures of the executants, namely, Fazal-e-Mehmood,
(7/” appellant. ought to have beén proved first by confronting him
and if he disowned it then the provisions of the Evidenced Act

would be attracted and one or more of modes of proof of

signature of Fazal-e-Mehmood. appellant. shall be pursued.

The following are modes of proving a signature or handwriting
recognized by the Evidence act:-
}\ \? () By calling the person who signed or wrote the

document.
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(i) By calling a person in whose presence the document was

signed or written.
(iii) By calling a handwriting expert.
(iv) By calling a person acquainted with the handwriting of

the person by whom the document is supposed to be signed or

" wTitten.

(v) - By comparing in Court the disputed sigr}ature or writing

with some admitted signature or writing.

(vi) By proof of an admission by the person who is alleged

to have signed or written the document that he signed or wrote™
It

(vii) By the statement of a deceased professional scribe, made

in the ordinary course of business. that the signature on the B
document is that of a particular person.

(viii) A signature is proved to have been made if it is shown to
have been made at the request of a person bv some other
person, e.g. by the scribe who signed on behalf of the.
executant.

(ix) By other circumstantial evidence.™

6. 1996 CLC 79 (Karachi) titled National Bank of Pakistan Vs..

General Tractor and Machinery Co. Ltd. and other:

“the rule as to proot of a document. therefore. is that, firstly, the.

contents of a document must be proved by either primary or secondary

ZTruE ogpyidence as provided by Articles 72 to 76 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat;

by proof of the signatur e!and handwriting; thirdly that the oenumeness

.....

secondly. that proof of ‘contents” of a document is not proof of its

uthenticity or genuineness which must be proved. under Article 78,

* “2URTJr authenticity ol a documcnt may be proved by any of the methods
recognized by Qanun-e-Shahadat or by reference to its contents or
other evidence on record which the Court may. in its discretion,

consider sufficient proof of its authenticity or genuineness™.

" .,-;:E
e R f‘cdﬂ-

2004 P Cr. L. J 371 (Federal Shariat Court) titled Muhammad .
Arshad Naseem Vs. the State. Para SA & B are reproduced below:
"We have given our arxious consideration to the respective
contentions of the learned counsel for the parties and have also'_»
perused the available record with their assistance. Admittedly, the

application wherein. the alleoauon regarding Zina was leveled against -
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PLD 1984 SC 192: (iii) Fazal Muhammad v. Mst.
j Chohara and others 1992 SCMR 2182; (iv) Bishwanath -

81

the complainant was not exhibited. at the trial whereas, legally, the - -

person relying on a document is under obligation to prove the same.

Article 72 of the Qanun-c-Shahadat Order, 1984 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Order™ lays down that contents of documents may be proved
either by primary or by secondarv evidence whereas. Article 73 of
“the Order™ provides that primar_\"evidence‘ means the document
itself produced for inspection of the Court and it is the requirement of
Article 75 of “the Order™ that the document must be proved except in
the cases in which secondary evidence mav be given™.

“Having regard to the above provisions, it may be noted here
that though documents | not formally admitted in evidence and -
available on Court’s record or else;\fhere even, may. for the purpose of |
elucidation of certain facts. be looked into vet, the same, by no stretch
of imagination. can be termed or regarded as “evidence” unless proved
and exhibited. at the trial. in accordance with law. Further, since -
documents do not prove themselves and truth of the ‘contents of the
documents cannot be proved by merely producing the same for
inspection of the Court within the purview of Article 2(c)(ii) of the -
Qanun-e-Shahadat Order. 1984. therefore. the document upon which a
party places its reliance must. at first. be placed before the Court andk
then be got proved by calling a witness/witnesses. In this view, we are
fortified by the following reported judgments:-

(i) Abdul Qaytum v. Muhammad Rafique 2002 SCJ 300;.

(11) Muhammad Azam v. Muhammad Igbal and another

v. Sachhidannand AIR 1971 SC 1983 Bom. 1; and (vi)

Y COURT-4 Rajwati  Devi v. Joint Director Consolidation, -

o . ]
A .
W% government of Bihar. Patna and others AIR 1989 Patna.

66",
8. PL D 2016 Lahore 570 titled Mst. Rehana Anjum V.

Additional Sessions Tudge and 6 others. Para OF is reproduced as-
below:

“To tender a document in evidence is something different from

proving it in contents thereof. Admissibility of a document in evidence -

by itself does not absolve the party from proving its contents in terms



. 82

of article 79 of the Order (ibid). an electronically generated document,
would not require any signature to be put on it by virtue of Electronic
Transactions Ordinance 2002. Production of a document and proof of
the document were two different subjects. A document can be
produced in evidence. which is always subject to proof as required
under Article 78 of the Qrder (ibid). If a document was relied upon by
a party and it had been formally exhibited but was not proved in
accordance with the law. therefore, it could not be relied upon in

circumstances. A medical officer having scribed a medico-legal report -
or a necropsy report is required to prove each and every bit of the

descriptions/contents. so as to prove the said documents, the reason .
being that the reports prepared by him do not have the coverage of.
provision of secﬁoﬁ 510. Cr.P.C.. which underlines that *“any

document purporting to be a report. under the hand of any Chemical
Examiner or Assistant Chemical Examiner to Government or of the

Chief Chemist of Pakistan. Securiiy Printing corporation Limited or

any Serologist. finger print expert or fire-arm exper appointed by
Government upon anyv matter or thing duly submitted to him for

examination or analysis{and report in the course of any proceeding -
under this Code. may without calling him as a witness, be used as

evidence in any inquiry. trial or other proceeding under this Code. *“ It

is further provided that = the Court may if it considers necessary in the

interest of justice summon and examine the person by whom such
report has been made.”

9. P L D 1973 Supreme Court 160 title Khan Muhammad Yousuf _‘
Khan Khattak V. S.M. Avub and 2 others.

FTTESTTD 7O 07 TRUE COPY

“The Form "E’ (Exh.P.E.) filed by the company itself under

«‘;r_-___;-.,-cgugr.i section 32 of the Companies Act with the Registrar of Joint Stock
, Companies showing Khan Muhammad Yousaf Khattak as one of the

»%n
é/ 7 ﬁé Directors of the Company even on 31* of December 1970. This form

also contained a certificate end to the following effect:-

"1 Mohammad Yousuf Khan Khattak, do hereby certify
that the above list and summary trulv and correctly

states the facis as they stood on the 31% day of December

\7\\ | 1970.

H -
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~. 3% “CURT'The onus obviously lav on the respondent to prove this fact and his
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(8d.)
Mohammad Yusuf Khattak

Managing Director.™

When [ sav that the document Exh. P.E. is unproved. I have -

mind the mandatory provisions of section 67 of the Evidence act,

which lav down that “if a document is alleged to be signed or written

wholly or in part by any person. the signature or the handwriting of so

much of the document as is alleged to be that person’s handwriting

must be proved to be in his handwriting™. If the case of the respondent

was that the appellant had signed the original of Exh. P.E. or the

certificate appended to it: it must have been proved that it was in the
appellant’s handwriting. for which no effort whatsoever was made. In
the case of Bengal Friends & Co. v. Gour Benode Saha & Co., this
Court had expressed itself on this point as follows:-

“Documents which are not copies of judicial record. should not
¢ - .

be received in evidence without proof of signatures -and -
handwriting of persons alleged to have signed or written them.” - -
I am of the view that even if such documents are brought on record

and exhibited without "objection. they remain on the record as
“exhibits™ and faithful copies of the contents of the original but they

cannot be treated as evidence of the original having been signed and -

written by the persons who purport to have written or signed them,

unless the writing or the signature of that person is proved in terms of -
the mandatory provisions of section 67 of the Evidence act. If instead

of the copy Exh.P.E.. the original form “E™ which formed the primary . .

whomavas its author can it be argued that by merely exhibiting it, the ,
ocument should be taken for granted as bearing the signature of the

appellant without proot that in fact it was written and signed by him.-

failure to prove it did not cast any responsibility on the appellant to

negatively disprove it.

On the view that I have taken regarding the suspicious .

authorship of form “E* (Exh.P.E.) and that it was not proved to be in

the handwriting of the appe!lant. as required by law, it is not necessary

to examine the contention that it contains an admission on the part of

fthe appellant that he had functioned as the Managing Director of the.

evidence. had been exhibited on the record without proving as to -
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K.K. & Co. Ltd.. up to the 31" of January 1971, as Indicated in this -
document. However. Companies under section 32 of the Companies
Act. The Electronic Tribunal as well as the High Court has placed full
reliance on this document.

It was contended before us that Exh. P.E. was a forged
document which had been surreptitiously smuggled into the record.
that it had not been proved in evidence according to law. and that in
anyv case it could not be used age;inst the appellant as he was not
confronted with it as required by section 145 of the Evidence act. The
learned Chief Justice has repelled all these contention whereas Sajjad
Ahmad Jan. ].. has accepled them. with the result that he has held that-
Exh. P.E. could not at all be used in evidence against the appellant.

As regards the contention that the document was not proved in -
accordance either law. I find that there is merit in the submission that
the provisions of section 67 and 47 of the Evidence Act were not ._
complied with. as there is no evidence on the record regarding the
identity of the handwriting and the signatures of the appellant as :
appearing on the certificate appended at the end of Exh. P.E. It is true . -
that the document was produced before the Tribunal by an official of -
the Registrar. Joint Stock Companies, Peshéwar, and it was exhibited
thereafter. without any question having been put to the witness in =
cross-examination about the genuineness and the authorship of the

arymrmem s ne TRUE‘ET)‘éQCulllent’ but the fact remains that this ofﬁéial did not say a word
about his familiarity with the handwriting and signatures of the
appellant. On the date of the production of this document, the..
appellant himself was not present in Court. although his counsel was |

- " Sorprksent. However. after the close of arguments on the 19" of February

(e
,\y 1972, an application was moved on the appellant’s behalf on the 28"
%] /@ of February 1972. requesting the Election Tribunal to remove Exh.

P.E. from the record on the ground that it had not been duly proved,
and there was no compliance with the provisions of rule 4 of Order -
XHI of the C.P.C and section 145 of the Evidence Act. The
application was refused by the Tribunal. observing that to the best of

his recollection the learned counsel for the appellant had, during the

course of arguments. admitied the document saying that the appellant -

must have signed it erroneously or illegally. The Tribunal also added
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that the document was not being used as a previous admission of the -
appellant and, therefore. the provisions of section 145 of the Evidence

Act were not attracted.

While it is true. as observed by the Privy Council in Gopal Das
v. Sri Thakurji and by this Court in Abdullah v. Abdul Karim and
Malik Din v. Muhammaél}\slam. that an objection as to the mode of
proof should be taken at the trial before the document is marked as an
exhibit and admitted to the record and a party cannot lie by until the
case comes before a Court of appeal and then complain for the first
time of the mode of proot. it will be seen that in this case an objection‘ ‘
as to the admissibility and the proof of this document was taken before - .
the Election Tribunal itself. A cursory glance at the original of this
document. which was summoned By this Court, shows that there is an
overwriting on the signatures of the appellant. It is recorded by the\.
Election Tribunal that the original. as produced by the Registratiori
Assistant. was seen and returned. I cannot held feeing that the. -
Tribunal clearly failed to perform its duty if it did not see the
overwriting on the original of Exh. P.E. Even in the attested copyf
obtained by the respondent there appears a note to the following
effect:- |

“Attested 10 be true copy. However, the signatures bf .

Muhammad Yusuf Khattak appear to be over-written.”

In these circumstances. it was obviously necessary for the Election

Tribunal to have the :,mn“tures and the handwriting of the appellant

ATTZITTO TR RE TRIE COBY
\ proved in accordance with the mandatory provisions of section 67 of .

the Evidence Act but this was not‘done. The onus of proving this
document lay on the respondent. and the fact that the appellant or his
counsel did not take anv specific objection at the time of the

producnon fo this douumcm does not mean that the same stands duly

%j Qé prove. in view of the patent overwriting existing in the original and
noted in the attested copy-.

It was contended by the learned counsel for the respondent that -
the document Exh. P.E. was actually a public document under
subsection (2) of section 74 of the Evidence Act, and therefore, in
accordance with the view taken in Katikineni Venkata Gopala

Narasima Rama Rao v. Chitluri V enkataramayya. It stood proved by




 the application made by the appellant to the Election Tribunal and the_ -
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the mere production of the original from the public records of the
Registrar. Joint Stock Companies. The learned counsel appears to me

to be right. as form E is in the nature of a return compulsorily required

to be filed by a public company under section 32 of the Companies -
Act. and it is . therefore, a public record of a private document under

sub-section (2) of section 74 of the Evidence act. But, as held in

Bengal Friends & Co. v. Gour Benode Saha & Co. documents which

are not copies of judicial records could not be received in evidence

without proof of signature and handwriting of person alleged to have

signed or written them as required by section 67 of the Evidence Act.

It seems to me therefore that in the circumstances of the case, namely,

overwriting appearing on the original and reflected in the attested

copy. the Exh. P.E. could not be said to have been duly proved

without compliance with the mandatory provision of section 67 of the

Evidence Act.

10._1999 S C M R 1245 (Supreme Court of Pakistan) title Abdul

Majeed and 6 others V. Muhammad Subhan and 2 others. Para 11 _

E is reproduced as unde::

“The learned counsel furiher argued that the registered sale-deed, ,'
mutation and Revenue Record are admissible in evidence and as the
plea of the appellant finds support from all these documents, therefore,

the High Court was not correct in discarding them, he referred to

several cases to support his view-point. This is a sweeping and very

wide argument and it is not so that every thing which finds mention in * -
the registered deed or Revenue Record must invariably be accepted .

without proot of their execution, genuineness and authenticity. It is

exiomatic principle of law that a registered deed by itself, without

proof of the execution and the genuineness of the transaction covered

by it. would not confer any right. Similarly. a mutation although acted
upon in Revenue Record. would not by its own force be sufficient to
prove the genuineness ¢f the transaction to which it purports unless
the genuineness of the transaction is proved. There is not cavil with
the proposition that these documents being part of public record are

admissible in evidence but they by their own force would not prove
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the genuineness and execution of that to which they relate unless the
transaction covered bv them is substantiated from independent and h
reliable source. Admissibilitv is to be distinguished from proof
required by law for determining the execution and genuineness of . -
document. The plea of res judicata and estoppels were also raised
against the plaintiff on accoumt of the earlier litigation. But we find
that thev have been satisfactorily resolved by the High Court as it has - :
been said that the documents relied upon by the defendants were take
and fraudulent and. thus. could not form basis for declaring the
present suit as barred by res judicata or for applying the principle of
estoppels against the plaintiff. This is found without merit and is,.;_ '
accordingly. dismissed with costs.

11. 1992 M L D 283 (Karachi) Title President of Pakistan Vs.

Ms. Benazir Bhutto. it is bv now well-settled that even where a
document is admitted in evidence and duly exhibited. that incident,

in itself. does not constitute the proof of truth or veracity of the

contents. though contents themselves simpliciter would thereby be .

proved and that may be all which is needed in a given case, for
instance. where the document contain recitals or stipulations or -
conditions applicable to parties to a dispute, such as, an agreement,
a deed inter parties or other bilateral arrangement. When a-
document is produced through its author or in any other
permissible mode and exhibited in due course, the author or the
witness producing it is open to cross-examination and the
correctness of the contents may be questioned or denied through
cross-examination of other evidence. failing which even that could |
be deemed established. Likewise, the mere fact that a document
has been duly proveq and exhibited will not establish its relevancy,
P
for relevancy is a coynccpt of law arising in given facts. Similarly,
relevancy and proof of a document while such in themselves are -
different in character: they. at the same time, usually. do not
involve any implication that either of them constitutes proof of
correctness or-veracity of a document, which must be separately
established through oral evidence in an appropriate manner. Even

here a document is admitted bv consent, in any permissible -
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admissibility thereof though admission in evidence, without
reservations. ma'_\' also imply acceptance of correctness of contents.
Relevancy. however. is always subject to the facts of a case and
conditionality’s of law™,

12. 2017 C L C 1090 (Sindh (Sukkur Bench) Titled Mohammad

Uris Vs. Zawar Haji and 3 others. Para 13 (c) & (d) is reproduced

as under:

" Article 72 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat Order, 1984 (hereinafter to
as ““Qanun-e-Shahadat™ provides that the contents of documents may
be proved either by primary or by secondary evidence. Primary
evidence is defined in Artiéle 73 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat as the
document itself produced for the inspection of the Court. Whereas, _"
secondary evidence is defined in Article 74 of Qanun-e-Shahadat -
which means and includes copies made from or compared with the
original:

(d)  Article 78 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat provides that if a do;ument is
alleged to be signed or to have been written wholly or in part by any person, -
the signature or the hand writing of so much of the document as is alleged to
be in that person’s hand writing must be proved to be in his hand writing. 3
Whereas. Article 79 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat provides that if a document is
required by law to be attested. it shall not be used as evidence until two
attesting witnesses at least have been called for the purpose of proving its
execution. On the other hand. Article 80 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat provides
that if no such attesting \\'imess can be found, it must be proved that the
witnesses have either died.!or cannot be found and that the document was.

“TTESTTD 70 BE TRuE EQRted by the person who purports to have done SO;

It is also submitted that nature of the offence cited in interim

reference is 9 (a)(i\")(\')l-xii) NAO 1999/ serial no. 2 of the schedulé ,

attached thereto. There is no evidence in respect of s 9 (a)(iv) A

: ;_;‘ QL T.
Lt

aradigm shift can be noted in supplementary reference. He has -

?///Z referred to folowing authorities with the contention that

prosecution is under onus to prove ingredients of the offence
betore saving that onus of proof is on the accused u/s 14(c)CrPC. .

The ingredients of the offence are:-

(i) It must establish that the accused was holder of public

bﬂl}g office.




89

(il)  The nature and extent of the pecuniary resources of

property which were found in his possession

(iii) It must proved as to what were his known sources of -

income i.c known to the prosecution after thorough

investigation.

(iv) Tt must prove. quite objectively, that such resources or

property found in possession of the accused were

! -
disproportionate to his known sources of income.

2011 SCMR 136 ttled Khalid Aziz Vs. the State wherein it is

held that in order to prove the case. the prosecution is required to prove -
the ingredients of the offence. which are (1) it must establish that the
accused was holder of a public office. (2) the nature and extent of the .
pecuniary resources of property which were found in his possession, 3)it:
must proved as to what \.vere his known sources of income i.e. known to

the prosecution after thorough investigation and (4) it must prove, quite

objectively, that such resources or property found in possession of the

accused were disproportionate to his know sources of income. Once these

four ingredients are established, the offence as defined under section

9a)(v) is complete, unless the accused is able to account for such
I

resources or property. Thus! mere possession of anv pecuniary resources

or property is by itself not an offence, but it is failure to satisfactorily

account for such possession of pecuniary resources or property that makes-

the possession objectionable and constitute offence. If he cannot explain,

presumption under section 14(c) of the Ordinance that accused is guilty of

& =N 7 i . .. .
TTESTED TO BE TRyg Cardrruption and a corrupt practice is required to be drawn.

Reference is invited to a case Biswa Bhushan Naik v. State (Air 1954

SC 350) in which identical provision in Prevention of Corruption Act,

PECIET AR . .
: TANLITY COURT. 1947 were interpreted.
Foad N

/ . Similar view was also taken in the cases of Farrukh Javed

Gumman and State of Mzharashtra supra. Thus, it is clear that the
prosecution has to establish the above mentioned four ingredients and
then the burden would :hift upon the appellant to explain his
possession as required under section 14(c) of the Ordinance.

b
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" PLD 2011 Supreme Court 1144. titled Ghani Ur Rehman Vs.

NAB

The same principle cited above is reiterated:-
’

a. The law now stzingis settled that in order to prove -

commission of an offence under section 9 (a)(v) of the NAO, 1999,

it has to be proved by the prosecution as to what were the known

sources of income of the accused persons at the relevant time and

that the resources cr property of the accused person were:
disproportionate to his known sources of income and it is after .

such proof has been led and the necessary details have been

provided by the prosecution that the onus shifts to the accused’

persons to account for such resources or property because mere

possession of any pecuniary resburces or a property is by itself not

an offence but it is failure to satisfactdrily account for such

possession of pecuniary resources or property that makes the

possession objectionz{ble-and constitutes the relevant offence. In
the case in hand the appellant’s sources of income had never been

brought on the record by the prosecution and had never been
quantified by it at any Stage of this case and, therefore, it was not;
possible for the learned trial to conclude or to hold that the

appellant or his dependants or so-called benamidars owned or"-

possessed assets or pecuniary resources disproportionate to the =

appellant’s income. It is unfortunate that the investigating officer ',

of this case as well as those responsible for prosecution of this case -
ATTESTED TO BE TRUE copy before the learned wrial court had. probably on account of their
sheer incompetence. utterly failed to do the needful in this regard
and it is regrettable that even the learned trial court as well as the
learned appellant court had completely had failed to advert to this
S critical aspect of the present case. According to the reference - filed
%ﬂ and the charge framed against the appellant he had, through ~
indulging in corruption and corrupt practices, accumulated assets . -

in his own name and also in the names of his wife and sons and the

worth of such assets was to be tune of Rs. 3.13,35,000/- which was
disproportionate to the appellant’s known sources of income. The -

wife of the appellant and his sons were set up in this case as
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benamidars and admittedlv the said wife and sons of the
appellant had never been summoned by the learned trial court -
for providing them an opportunity to produce evidence in

support of their claims regarding ownership of the relevant -
assets in their own right or to substantiate that they had .

sufficient sources of their own to acquire the relevant

properties.

2010 SCMR 1697 -titled Muhammad Hashim Babar vs. the

State and other. citation a. b and ¢ are reproduced as under:

it is pertinent to mention here that in order to prove the
case is the duty and obligation of the prosecution to rove the.

ingredients of the offence which are as follows:

(i) It must establish that the accused was holder of a.
public office.
(i), The nature and extent of the pecuniary resources -
of property which were fond in his possession. 7 |
(iii) It must be proved as to what were his known
~sources of income.
(iv) It must prove, quite objectively, that such.

resources or property found in possession of the
accused -were disproportionate to his known :{ ,

sources of income.

- The aforesaid ingredients are proved then the offence s defined
ATTESTED TO BE TRUE COPY . . .
under section 9(a)(v) is complete, unless the accused is able to account

uch resources or properi_v. It is also settled proposition of law that ’.

mere possession of any pecuniary resources or property is by itself

T ey "OURTn‘cOt an offence. but failure to satisfactorily account for such possession

St of pecuniary resources or property that makes the possession
, W/g objectionable and constitutes offence meaning there by that if an
accused canmot explain,Ipresux'nption under section 14(c) of the
Ordinance that accused is guilty of corruption and corrupt practices is |
required to be drawn. See Biswa Bhushan Naik V. State (AIR 1954
SC 350). The evidence brought on record read with the presumption

é)]‘]‘)\P under section 14 of the said Ordinance established the charge against
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the petitioner beyond any reasonable doubt. As the learned counsel of
the petitioner has failed to point out any piece of evidence which was |
misread or non-read by the Courts below while rendering finding of
guilt against the petitioner by merely mentioning Rs. 14 lac in the
expenses head cannot discharge the onus of the petitioner to furnish
explanation with regard to having Rs. 14 lac. The explanation of
sources with regard to the amount mentioned hereinabove is not
furnished by the petitioner as is evident from the finding of guilt
recorded by the courts below reproduced hereinabove. It is also settled
principle of law that the initial burden of proof is on the prosecution to
establish the possession of properties by an accused disproportionate.
to his known sources of income to prove the charge of corruption and.
corrupt practices under NAB Ordinance, 1999 and once this burden is
satisfactorily discharged. onus is shified to the accused to prove the .
contrary and give satisfactory account of holding the properties and in- -

case of his failure. Court may raise the presumption of guilt.

2009 SCMR 790 titled Sved Qasim Shah vs. the State, citation “c”
reproduced as under: '

~ Hence. notwithstanding the presumption contained in’
section 14(c) of the Ordinance, the initial burden of proof
a]\\:a_\'s rests on the prosecution. It is well-settled that the.
burden to prove all the ingredients of the charge always lies on®
the prosecution and it never shifts on to accused who can stand
on the plea of innocence. assigned to him under the law, till it is
dislodged. In other words unless he presumption of innocence
imputed to the accused is crossed out by the force of suspicious
circumstances he cannot be called upon the prove that the .,:
charge was false or he was innocent. The prosecution,
therefore. is never absolved of from proving the charge bevond
reasonable doubt and burden shifts to the accused only when

the prosecution succeeds in establishing the presumption of

guilt.

PLD 2017 Lahore 23 titled Brig. (R) Imtiaz Ahmad Vs
the State. Para 19 is repreduced below:

“Scanning the above evidence as well as findings of the trial

Iy Court-#0Urt. We are constrained to hold that the said properties cannot be
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confiscated for the simple reason that the findings were based on the

statements of approvers who were not permitted to become as such by
the order of the Chairman. NAB and in case of the above said

properties. the vendors were not produced. Moreover, the ingredients
of Benamidars transactions as held in the dictum laid down by the
apex Court in Mst. Zahida Sattar and other v. Federation of Pakistan
and others (PLD 2002 Hon ble Supreme Court of Pakistan 408) could.
not be produced. The possession of the property., the written
transaction. the circumstances under which Benamidar transactions-

were made were required to be disclosed before the court by the

prosecution.

2016 YLR 2547 para 11 are reproduced as under:

Before adverting to the evidence in support of charge qua the
above mentioned properties. it is necessarv and advantageous to -

examine the necessary ingredients for proving and offence under

section 9(a) (v) of ~ NAO. 1999™. It is by now well settled that the
prosecution in order to prove the culpability of an accused in terms of

above referred penal clause has to prove following ingredients:-

(1) the accused is a holder of public office.

(i1)  he accumulated. owns or possess title or interest in the.
properties.

(iif)  his known lscurceé of income.

(iv)  and the expenditureé incurred the accused on acquisition'

properties or disproportionate his known sources of income.

ATTESTE B o . ) . .
C'T0 BE TREE copy It is manifest from the above that mere holding of assets in the

shape of moveable and immovable property in his own name or in the

name of his dependant is not the sole fact to determine the culpability -

"
cou; 5
«-A»“‘AP:;) LITY COURT-y

of an accused in term of section 9(a) (v) of “NAO 1999~ Thé

é/% /4 prosecution is alwavs burden with: heavy onus to prove that assets so

acquired do not commensurate to the known sources of income of the

accused.

‘ 6{{1!:[8 2016 P Cr. L.J 300 titled Sardar Muhammad Naseem Vs. The State,

~engunttRiiny Courte1

s nd
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head note is reproduced below:-

TED TO BE TRUE COpY

b

k‘.\{;' i} : ‘Q"U

Sl OUnEs i
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L/llf

g

et

---Ss. S(da) & 9 (a) (v)---Assets beyvond known sources
of income---Appreciation of evidence--- Benami properties--- .
Sources of income---Proof---Accused was holder of public
office and he was convicted and sentenced by Trial Court of
seven vears imprisonment along with fine--- Validity--- No\_
notice was issued to alleged Benamidar prior to confiscation of
property. the same was fatal to prosecution case--- In order or . .
case of assets be_\'ond‘means, prior to discussing assets, the

known source of income both legal and illegal had to be

brought on record--- Trial Court fixed value of properties but o

nowhere salary of accused for last 41 years, his savings and his -
other emoluments were ever discussed--- Court had no formula_ _
to apply in order to ascertain as to what were the assets beyond-.
means--- High Court disagreed with the findings of Trial Court
and set aside conviction and sentence awarded to accused, '_ ,
resultantly. he was acquitted of the charge--- Appeal was
, .

allowed in circumstances.

2016 P Cr. L I 1343 titled Ghulam Sarwar Khan Lalwani vs. -
The State.

2013 PCr. L1697

2007 P Cr. L T 1972 (Kafachi) titted Muhammad Akram
Nadeem Vs. NAB Sindh citation of para 9 A is reproduced

below:

“Under this provision of law, the prosecution is required

to prove the following points....

(1) The accused was holder of public office.
- .

(2)  Nature and extent of pecuniary resources of
property which were found in his possession.

(3) What were his known sources of income i.e.,

known to the prosecution after through

investigation.

ourt-y
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(4)  Such resources or property found in possession of
the accused were disproportionate to his known -

" sources of income.

2007 P Cr. L J 1957 (Karachi)_titled Muhammad Irshad
Khan Vs. Chairman NAB and 2 others.

2007 MLD 910 (Karachi)_ titled Hakim Ali Zardari Vs.

the State. Citations A. B & C are reproduced as under:

“In order to prove the case, the prosecution is-
required to prove the ingredients of the offence,

which are (1) it must establish that the accused»

was holder of a public office, (2) the nature and .

extent- of the pecuniary resources of property -
which were found in his possession. (3) it must be -

proved as to what were his known sources of

income. i.e.. known to the prosecution afterf" ‘
thorough investigation and (4) it must prove,
quite objectively. that such resources or property’
found in. possession of the accused were

disproportionate to his known sources of income.
Once these four ingredients are established, the
offence as defined under section 9(a)(v) is
complete. unless the accused is able to account
for such resources or property. Thus, mere
pos%ession of any pecuniary resources or property
is b\ itself not an offence, but it is failure to
satisfactorily account for itself not an offence, but -
it is ‘failure to satisfactorily account for such

possession of pecuniary resources or property that .

makes the possession objectionable and constitute

A M » offence. If he cannot explain, presumption under .
@ section 14(c) of the Ordinance that accused is

guilty. of corruption and corrupt practices is

e ~ required to be drawn -

07

JUDE As regards the third and fourth ingredients of the offence and
sk Uiy Gourtst :

R
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about the known sources of income. the expression “known sources of
income™ must be taken to the sources known to the prosecution on a .

thorough investigation of the case. It does not mean sources known to
the accused for the simple reason that the prosecution cannot, in the.. .
very nature of things. be cxpected to known the affairs of an accused
person. Those will be matters = specially within the knowledge™ of the
accused within the meaning of Article 122 of Qanoon-e-Shahadat

Order. 1984. which reads as under:-

* When any fact'is specially within the knowledge of any

person burden of proving that fact is upon him™.

This also does not mean that the prosecution is absolved from_,‘ ,
holding any enquiry or investigation about the sources of income.
There are two types of persons within the scope of holder of public
office under the Ordinance: -public servant and other persons holding_‘
public office. The cases of public servants and other persons are -
required to be dealt with separately and differently. as in the former
case his known source of income would be salary and for other
sources he is required to declare ‘then in the annual declaration of -
assets filed with the department of income received from any lawful
sources. the receipt of which has been intimated in accordance with
the provisions of any law. rules or order for the time being applicable .
to public servant, therefore. such sources can easily be obtained by .
examining such documents. Secondly, he can earn income from his
properties and investments that are also required to be mentioned in
such statement. V\herea: the case of other persons holding pubhc
ATTESTED 70 b= Thite EoPy office is quite dxfferent and distinguishable from the public servant, as -
' the source of income of a particular individual depends upon his -

position in life with particular reference to his occupation or avocation

clorann in view. Thus. known source of income in the case of other persons, .
‘;’»C(‘JU .:';‘Hr": Ty Court.,  the prosecution is required to hold a detailed enquiry and investigation
. o ascertain the said sources of income. Furthermore, the word -
“income™ used in the above ‘provision is also a very significant, its
meaning has been defined in Chambers 21 Century Dictionary as
“money received over a period of time as payment for work, etc., or

interest or profit from shares or investments™.
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2006 P Cr. L J 1409_titled Jameel Akhtar Kiyani and another

Vs. The State para !0 is reproduced as under:

“According to section 9(a)(v) of the NAB
Ordinance. the prosecution is required to prove that (i)
the accused is holder of Public Office; (ii) the nature and
extent of the pecuniary resources or property found in -
his possession: (iii) what are his known sources of
income (i.e known to the prosecution); (iv) such
pecuniary resources or the property found in possession
of he accused are disproportionate to his known source
of income. Once these ingrédients are established then ,
the offence of corruption and corrupt as defined under .
section 9(a)(v) is complete unless the accused is able to '
reasonably account for such resources from which the
properties were purchased. as provided under section
14(c) of the NAB Ordinance. In this section the word «

satisfactori!_\‘" has been used, whereas in section 9(a)(v)

the word “reasonably™ has been mentioned™.

P L D 2004 Lahore 155 titled Farrukh Javed Ghumman Vs. The .

State para 135 D is reproduced as under:

" The expression “Known sources of income™ means the i _
sources of income known to the prosecution after .
thorough inx*eétigation of the case. Obviously the
prosecution is not expected to know every detail of the |
income of the accused. But-to bring a charge against-
ATTESTED TO BE TRUE COBY some one under the law under consideration, the
prosecution has 1o give details of the “Known sources of -
income™. compare it objectively with the assets etc., and

A only in case of the latter being disproportionate, can it
7 ST d ,"3'3_?2"‘;' CCURT-4
R -

/// / ‘ office his salary. his allowance and other privileges like

: lile the reference. It the accused is holder of a public

transport etc. are part of his known sources of rea]
income. If he happens to be a landowner as well, the

/ - agricultural income has to be included in his income. It

?\ is the duty of the Investigating Officer to thorouchly
- ' L o -
ééﬁh mquire into the “known sources of income™ of the
oy nlslity CourtT ‘ ‘
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accused and the latter has to be given full opportunity in
this regard. 'Assess.ment of agricultural income may not -
be an easy task for the Investigating Officer for more
than one reason. Firstly, in our rural culture book.
keeping is rarely done. secondly, there is no compulsion
either as it is not a taxable income, thirdly, even if some
one does it. he is not expected to maintain the record for.
a decade and. fourthlv. when the accused was holder of a
public office. it was not an offence and he was not
obligated to maintain the account of it for rainy days™.

He has contended that statement of witnesses recorded /s
161 CrPC cannot be used in evidence and IO cannot play a role
of proxy witness on their behalf. No document is said to be
proved unless it!s execution and contents are proved in
accordance with law. Here sayv evidence is to be excluded.

He any of his dependents or benamidars are used in s
9(a)(v). Prosecution has not proved dependency of any accused _
on accused no.l. Minor may not be dependant in certain" '
circumstances. Definition of benamidar is given in NAO 1999 -
as such that any person who ostehsibly holds or is in possession _' '
or custody of any property of an accused on his behalf for the
benefit and eﬁjoymem of the accused. Definition of asset is-
given in s '5(c) means any properiy owned controlled by or
belonging to any accused whether directly or indirectly are held
benami in the name of his spouse or relatives or associatesiv
whether within or outside Pakistan, for which they cannot

ATTERTED TORZ TR :
=3 70 BZ TRUE cop :
r%asonably account or for which they cannot prove payment of

full and lawtul consideration. Learned defence counsel referred
tollowing authorities:-

(a) 2016 PCr LJ 1343 (Lahore) Ghulam Sarwar Khan

Tt ey
Camr § g

e AV L e COGRT.&
Lalwani VS State Para 23. In order to prove the nature of
M transaction as benami. the prosecution was obliged to prove
following ingredients highlighted by a learned division

bench of Peshawar High Court in “Muhammad Havat and

two others VS State™ (PLD 2002 Pesh. | 18)

(1) Source of consideration
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(ii) Holder of title document
(ii1) Person in possession of the property

(iv) Intention and object of benami transaction

(b) 2013 P Cr LJ 1607 (Peshawar) Sved Anwar Badshah VS
Chairman NAB etc

It was observed that the learned counsel for the appellant is
quite correct in maintaining that the source of income of the appellant
had never been any listedl. determined or quantified by the prosecution
either during the investigation of the case or during the trial. The law
now stands settled in order to prove commission of an offence u/s
9(a)(v) of NAO 1999. it has to be proved by the prosecution as to what
were the known sources of income of the accused person at the
relevant time and that the resources or property of the accused person :.
were disproportionate to his known sources of income, because mere
possession of any pecuniary resource or property is by itself not an
offence but it is failure 1o satisfactorily accounts for such possession
of pecuniary resource or property that makes the possessxon "

objectionable and consmute the relevant offence.
(c) PLD 2009 SCMR 202 Ahmed Rlaz Sheikh and others VS State

Para 9. The word “benamidar” means any person who
ostensibly holds or is in possession or custody of any property of an

accused on his behalf for the benefit and enjdyment of the accused.

(d) 2003 P Cr LJ 1 Mehmood Hussain VS State Para 15 of the-~

Judgment is reproduced below:
ATTERTED TO BE TRIE COPY

The word “benamidar™ denotes a person who has nominal title to

the property. The person who_purchases the same I the name of
benamidar has the real title to the property. For determining the .
A ¢ COURB#nami. nature of a transaction. the August Supreme court of Pakistan

%% has laid down the following four tested, in the case of Muhammad
Sajjad Hussain VS Muhammad Anwar Hussain 1991SCMR703..

(1)  Source of consideration
(i)  From whose custody the original title deed and other

documents came in evidence
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(ii1) Who is in possession of the suit property and

(iv) Motive for benami transaction

(e) 1991 SCMR 703 Muhammad Sajjad Hussain VS Muhammad

Anwar Hussain

Some of the criter{a for determining the question, whether a
transaction is a Benami transaction or not. inter alia the following

factors are to be taken into consideration:-

(1) Source of consideration
(i)  From whose custody the original title deed and other-_

documents came in evidence |

(ili) ~ Who is in possession of the suit property and
(iv)  Motive for benami transaction

It is also a well settled law that the initial burden of proof is on "

the party who al'leges.that an ostensible owner is a Benamidar for

him and that the weakness i in the defence evidence would not reheve -

a plaintiff from discharging the above burden of proof.

() PLD 2004 Lahore 135 Akhtar Ali VS Judge Special Court ‘
(Offence in Banking) |
It was held that the expression known sources of income means '

the sources of income known to the prosecution after thorough
investigation of the case. Obviously the prosecution is not e\pected
to know every detail of the income of the accused. It is the duty of :
IO to thoroughly inquire into the known sources of income of the ."

accused and be later has to be given full opportunity in this regard.

ATTESTED O BE TRUE coPY |
He also contended that no thorough investigation is conducted

about known sources of income. Charts are exhibited which are not
admissible in evidence and not reliable. In respect of chart (Exh PW.
18713) it is not clarified that who prepared it on the basis of which

'% /75 chart was prepared is not part of the reference as chart is based on

information derived from some other record. The person who

exhibited it is not the witness.
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There are malafide on part of investigation as no effort was

made to join freefnan box. In investigation even IO of the case

visited London UK subsequentlv. The explanation given by

him is that it was not considered necessary.

Opinion of 10 is not per se admissible. He referred

following authorities:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)
(f)

Statement

PLD 2018 SC 178
1986 SCMR 1763 -
2011 P Cr LJ 885 wherein 2010 SCMR 660 is

. referred.1992 Lahore 324 10 is generally in our

setup not expert.
PLD 2000 Lahore 216

PLD 1998 Lahore 300

1998 P CrLJ 38 lo is criticized and direction to
apply independent mind in the court.

1991 P Cr LJ 62 (usurpation of judicial power) °

recorded by IO cannot be used except for -

confrontation u/s 162 CrPC amd not admissible except version of the

accused. He referred to cases reported as:-

3007 MLD 372 Karachi (statement u/s 162 CrPC -

(a)
not substantiz;l piece of evidence)
(b) 1991 MLD 2025 Lahore
(c) 1999 P CrLLi 1198 _
(d) 2003 MLD 678 IO cannot record statement _
(€)  PLD 2015 Peshawar 4157 (confession of accused
STTESTED o g TRUE C6py Jointly trialed article 43 of QSO)
() 1997 MLD 1257 Para 9-13
(2) Article 43, article 46 (absconding accused letter,
s RAR 3 statement of cd-accused)
Az &Y COURT.
% ﬁ He has also contenced that no CMA was filed by his accused

no. Iso what is mentioned in CMA is not position of respondent no.] -

: Lo '
which cannot be read agairst him. Advocate on record who filed these -

CMA’s has neither been examined by the IO nor is he produced in -

4] i
accountabiily thur?

.
. g
iy _.l"_‘ o letea ¥
i v

é r]g court as PW to establish the contents thereof. Attestation is not in
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accordance with law. Article 83(3) and 88 of QSO is referred.

The documents have not been proved in accordance with law..
Certain documents have nothing to do with the Avenfield properties.
MLA responses are not notarized/certified in accordance with law. ‘

Opinions. speculations are inadmissible unreliable .......

Affidavit filed by Tariq Shafi Exh PW16/5 is exhibited subject
to objection he is not witness therefore. IO cannot be a proxy witness. -
Same is the position of Exh PW16/6. Witnesses of share sale

agreement Exh PW16/7. scribe of that agreement are not produced.

The Qartar transaction is not related to accused no.l. Without .
prejudice to objections raised in respect of exhibition of other
documents produced by PW 16 and their admissibility/reliability, are
not related to accused no.l and they have nothing to do with him,
including Directors ‘report Exh PW16/36, Exh PW16/37, Exh
PWI16/38 incorporation certificates. Trust deeds, opinion of Stephen
Moverley Smith. Accused no.1l" does not figure in any report. Radley
reports have no concern with accused no.1. The documents of FZE has
nothing to do with Avenfield properties. Worksheet Exh PW16/13 has-

not related to accused no.1.
Transactions mentioned therein are not related to accused No.1.

Statements/speeches of co accused cannot be used against._
accused no.l who has also not admitted ownership of the Avenfield
Apartments. Even mere alleged presence does not make one in
possession of such flats. if someone goes to take tea somewhere he
would not become in possession of it No witness had said that

ATTESTED TO BE TRUE E6B%cused no.1 is beneficial owner of these flats. Prosecution did not

vide any bank transattion showing that money was transferred bv

accused no.1 for purchase of such flats. Prosecution has not produced
any witness to sav that the accused actual or benami owner of the

* CCU"‘I "’5\8" LiTY COURT-4
SLAR % #,5 companies Neilson or Nescoll.

Statemems,speechec of co accused cannot be used against.

accused no.l who has also not admitted ownership of the Avenﬁeld '

apartments.

b
r\bebm&r‘“ﬁ&’
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Malafide of P\V 16 and Investiga.ting Officer is evident on
record. The evidence which were in favor of the accused is not
brought on file. IO visited. London but did not examine relevant
witnesses such as Lawrence Radle}'. Jerry Freeman. Their addresses
were available on record. Similarly. hurdles were created for Hamad
Bin Jasim. Questionnaire as requested by him was not sent despite the
fact that questionnaire was sent to Jerrv Freeman subsequently. It 'is. '
stated by PWI16 that it was jointly decided by the JIT that no
questionnaire shall be sent to any witness and that was the reason
questionnaire was not sent to Hamad Bin Jasim. PWI18 lied in
statement while saving tﬁat flats were in exclusive use of Nawaz
Sharif as per statement of Hassan Nawaz. Hussain Nawaz and Nawaz
Sharif. Statement u’s 161 CrPC is not substantial piece of e\=idenc¢.-.
Even confession of an accused jointly trialed cannot be used against

co accused as per article 43 of QSO.

Learned defence counsel has also argued in respect of CMA,
LC regarding shifting of material Exh PW16/69, concise statements of |
CMA. two letters of Hamad Bin Jasim, report of Quist Solicitor, -
report of Stephen Moverly and Gilliard Cooper, Deutsche Bank loan,
companies of Hassan Nawaz, chart B, audit report. Those arguments

will be considered at relevant place: during discussion in the judgment.

Statements/speeches of co accused cannot be used against

accused no.l who has also not admitted ownership of the Avenfield

apartments.

Learned defence counsel has also referred an authority
reported as PLD 1975 SC 506 with the contention that language of a
penal statute has to be construed strictly. PLD 2002 Lahore 369

wherein a reference of book js given the extract from is reproduced .

below:

COURT-¢

“Criminal and penal statutes must be strictly construed. that is, -
they cannot be enlarged or extended" by intendment, -
implication. or by any equitable conéiderations. In other words.

the language cannot be enlarged bevond the ordinary rneaning- |

of its terms in order to carry into effect the general purpose

Sriart o l'_; Caurt-t

/’ﬁuw‘t“.i Es P
inlaner bad




T TO BE TRUE CCPY

104

which the statute was enacted”.(Page 460b of Crawford’s
Interpretition of Laws by Earlt T. Crawford, Saint Louis

Thomas Law Book Company.1940)
BURDEN OF PROOF/DEFENCE

2011SCMR136 Para 9

“In order to prove the case, the prosecution is required to prove

.the ingredients of the oftence. which are (1) it must establish
!

that the accused was holder of a public office, (2) the nature -

and extent of the pecuniary resources of property which were-

found in his possession. (3) it must be proved as to what were:

his known sources income i.e, known to the prosecution after

thorough investigation and (4) it must prove, quite objectively, )

that such resources or property found in possession of the.

accused were disproportionate to his known sources of income.

Once these four ingredients are established, the offence as

defined under section 9(a)(v) is complete, unless the accused is

able to account for such resources or property. Thus, mere

possession of any pecuniary resources or property is by itself

not an offence. but it is failure too satisfactorily account for

such possession df pecuniary resources or property that makes -

the possession objectionable and constitute offence. If he

cannot explain. presumption under section 14(c) of the
ordinance that accused is guilty of corruption and a corrupt

practice is requ1rec. t0 be drawn. Reference is invited to a case

Biswa Bhushan Naik Vs the state (AIR 1954 SC 350) in whlch' '

 identical provision in th7e Prevention of corruption Act. 1947

were interrupted”

PLD 2005 SC 63

In ne circumstances the defence should be expected to

prove the accusation. In a similar wake of event while

discussing the question of presumption it was held in Rehmat

Vs the state PLD 1977 SC 515 as follows:-

“Needless to emphasize that in spite of section’

106 of the Evidence Act in a criminal case the onus rests
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on the prosecution to prove the guilt of the accused
bevond reasonable doubt and this section cannot be
construed to mean that the onus at any stage shifts on to

the accused to prove his innocence or makeup for the

liability and failure of the prosecution to produce

evidence to establish the guilt of the accused. Nor does it

relieve the prosecution of the burden to bring the guilt

home to the accused.™

2004 PCr L J 984 pe 987

Even, in a case where the defence plea, on its:

face, appears to be sham the prosecution is not absolved

of the duty to prove its case. So much so if the defence -

set up by the accused is that he is protected by any of the
exceptions. special or general. burden to disprove the

charge wolild not shift on him unless it is proved on

record by the prosecution that in the absence of such a

plea he would be guilty of the offence charged.

DEFINITION OF DEPENDENT

PLJ 2005 Lahore 999

“If we take into account the dictionary meaning -
of the word “dependent” it simply means that a person. -
who is financially ‘dependent’ on someone and who -

requires financial support from a person upon whom he

depends for maintenance.”
ATTESTED TO BE TRUE COPY 4

“dependent” as per black law dictionary is as undet;

i'.:\B
, \BILILY COURTesel f without the power or aid of someone else™.

M; ADMISSIBILITY OF STATEMENT OF IO

PLD 2004 Lahore 153 pg 175

1
v?-’;nna»w

relevant only insotar as he collects the material which is to be

Learned defence counsel has stated that dictionary definition of -

R “One who relies on another for support; one not able to exist or sustam '

The statement of 'the Investigating Officer is admissible and is
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produced as evidence during trial and records statement of those -
witnesses who ultimately depose in court. However, during trial he

cannot be a substitute for any of the above piece of evidence.

He cannot prove a document of which he is not the author, nor
play proxy to the witnesses who are not produced during trial without.
anv cogent reason. His statement. in the afore-referred circumstances,

is merely an opinion. which is both irrelevant and inadmissible.

DEFENCE IN CRIMINAL CASE

PLD 2011SC 334 pg 576 para 17

At the same timr under criminal jurisprudence for the safe
administration of criminal justice. the courts are required to follow
certain settled principles. such as the innocence of the accused must be
presumed. till he is proved to be guilty; sifting “the grain out of the
chaff”; the defence may take a number of pleas and even if all are
shown to be false. yet it is the duty of the prosecution to prove its case
to the hilt: “better that ten guilty persons escape than that oneinnocenf

suffer” (William Black Stone, English Jurist)

INTERPRETATION OF PENAL STATUTE

PLD 1995 SC |

If any legal provision, which is to be relied upon in the
appraisement of evidence and is open to two interpretations, one

beneficial to the accused is to be adopted.

1998 SCMR 1794

ATTESTED TO BE TRUE COPY

(a) Interpretation of statutes---
---Provision susceptible to two interpretations--- Where

provision of a statute on criminal law is susceptible to, two

interpretations. the interpretation favorable to accused should
be preferred. [pg 1798] A

PROOF OF CONTENTS OF DOCUMENTS
PLD 1988 Karachi 131

SREE
~eeoansz ity Court-1 We may point out that there is a marked distinction between the

£
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amchad




e 107

factum of proving of signature of the writer on a document and.

proving the correctness of the contents. The latter cannot be proved -

without examining the author of the document or in his absence on
account of death or for any other admissible reason by a person who
was associated with the execution of the document and was conversant |

with the correctness of the contents.

(2010) 4 Supreme Coury Cases 491 India

Held. mere filing or exhibiting of a document in court does not
amount to proof of its contents --- Admission of a document in court

may amount to admission of its contents but not their truth

NOTICE U/S 19 OF NAO 1999

PLD 2012 SC 903

Duties of National Accountability Bureau (NAB) ---. i
scope --- Before summbning a person to attend, National
Accounfabiiity Bureau (NAB) was duty bound to identify and
particularize the information sought from any witness etc, and :
to state the nexus between such information and the subject of :

the inquiry being conducted by NAB. [pg. 914] G

PLD 2007 Karachi 469

Therefore. while calling the information from any
person. the person must be informed the fact, point, allegation,
offence. name of accused. specified 1ﬁatter, if any, concerning
the matters of the provisions in the notice so that the person can

ATTESTED T0 38 TRUE COPY furnish such information. If such specified information is of
such a nature which. if furnished through any mode will serve. |
the purpose. then such person should not normally be called to
appear in person.

PECR T $AR

| FCGevTARILITY COURT. g
SLALAZAD

7/@ The improvements as pointed out by the Learned DPG in the

investigation process before the NAB authorities are basically carried

out to facilitate all the concerned persons to give them due respect., -

P41 LI not to harass them. to provide all reasonable facilities, relieve them
»
- &z»u

,t‘l Court-1  Within shortest possible time. without detaining them unnecessary or
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put any hardship to any person then in all fairness the person at the

initial stage should not normally be asked to appear in person and

turnish such information. which otherwise. can serve the purpose by
furnishing such information through any other manner. This does not
mean that the authorities have no power to call such person, but in
unavoidable circumstances where the presence of the person is
necessary then the person can be called by signing reasons as required -
under section 24-A of General Clauses Act. which stipulates that
where any authority or officer is empowered to make order or give any -
direction. such power is required to be exercised reasonably, fairly,
justly and for the advancement of the purpose of enactment and give.
reasons for making §uch order. The cdpy of such ‘order should find -

place and be made available in the case diary.

The arguments of learned defence counsel in respect of other.-

points stressed by him were:

That despite the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan's clear

directions the Prosecution. .in this case. has miserably failed to fulfil]
even one of the conditions. Maintained that during both investigation's_.
sources of income were not probed. Added that for the sake of
argument. if it is presumed that accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz
Sharif' is the owner of flats. it was not an offence unless the
Prosecution establishes its case as per the prerequisite set out under

the superior courts precedents.

There is no connection of a company Capital FZE with
Avenfield properties vet it was brought in evidence by the PW-16
Wajid Zia who has lied regarding use of London flats. It was also
vinted out that 1.O. in this case did not collect the information_-‘
regarding known source of income in the reference and that there are . .
numerous contradictions in the statement of PW-16 Wajid Zia. That
Wajid Zia while appearing as PW-16 also alluded to his opinion and
observations which are not admissible in evidence and therefore
irrelevant. Reliance was placed on 2011 P Cr. L J 901, 2010 CMR 53,

1992 PLD 3019 Lahore. 2013 PLD 432 SC.

!
That the statement< recorded by JIT cannot be produced as
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evidence in this trial. Statement of accused may only be admissible if

thev are jointly tried and a confession is made. Reliance was placed on.

1997 MLD 237. SCMR 1182 and 2015 PLD 157. The leaned defence- ‘
counsel also read out the statement of accused Nawaz Sharif and said
that he never said that London flats remained in his possession.
Neither absconding accused Hassan Nawaz said in his statement that

accused Nawaz Sharif was owner of these flats or lived in them.

Mere presence in these properties doesn’t make one in
possession of such flats as would I become in possession if I were to
have a cup of tea there. (According to the documents received from
BVI. accused Nawaz Sharif is not owner of flats 16A and 17A. also
pointed out that no witness said in his statement to PW-16 Wajid Zia
that accused Nawaz Sharif is the beneficial owner of these flats!
Prosecution did not proved any bank transaction of accused Nawaz V
Sharif for purchase of said flats. Further added that Prosecution does
not have any witness who can say that accused Nawaz Sharif was the

actual or benami owner of Neilson and Nescoll (offshore companies).

It was mandatory for the.p[osecution to prove source of income
and transactions to establish ownership of benami properties. That -
NAB as an investigating agency should have evidence regarding
transaction of money. During cross examination, PW-16 Wajid Zia
accepted that the JIT did not receive any document, which can prove.
that accused Nawaz Sharif was owner or director of Neilson and
Nescoll. Added that Wajid Zia also accepted that none of the

witnesses gave statement that NMS held bearer share.

PECTED TO BE YRUE COPY
‘ That 01 Sidra Mansoor accepted that she did not have any such

information which may prove connection of accused Nawaz Sharif

with flats.

|
That the proseciition failed to establish which replv was

received against what MLA documents. Maintained that in NAB

cases. investigation is a huge responsibility, however it was not done

in present case. Added that NAB does not have any evidence that

ﬁ_. r'. v . o . . -
Zourt-1  accused Nawaz Sharif was benami of properties belonging to his sons.

s
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That 1.0. and NAB officials visited London but failed to
examine any of the relevant \i'imesses who could have exonerated the
accused like Lawrence Radley whereas he was very important witness '.
because he said that he did not purchase flats in 1993 on the direction
of Sharif family. Similarly Gerry Freeman of Freeman Box was not . .
examined by NAB as he had earlier stated that the trust deed was -
signed in his presence. Ffforts were made to prove connection of
accused Mian Nawaz Shar:{ with flats through Al Towfeeq settlement

and it was said that Sharif family owned flats at the time of settlement.

All the documents presented by PW 16 Wajid Ziad regarding -~
Qatari Prince. Gulf Steel Mill sale’ purchase and Affidavits of Tariq
Sharif are not admissible in evidence in these proceedings as either the-
maker of these statements. documents were not cited'as witness nor
were the documents in original and were photocopies. Similarly expert
opinion presented by the Prosecution with producing the expert as y

witness is not relevant.

Obijections were also raised on various CMAs filed in evidence :
bv the prosecution and it was said that in none of the CMAs accused
Mian Nawaz Sharif has admitted to ownership of possession of these';
flats. Further the CMAs were not verified from the Hon’ble Supreme

Court of Pakistan according to the law of evidence.

In the documents presented by the prosecution regarding the
Gulf Steel Mills in Dubai. its share sale agreement or any other
documents including the Affidavits of Tariq Sharif. no mention was
made of accused Mian Niawaz Sharif or his involvement in any matter,

ATTESTED TO BE TRUE &t . . » .
E mnelther accused Mian N‘afwaz Sharif had any connection with these -

transactions. It was also alleged that all the evidence submitted in

photocopies is not admissible under the law. Similarly regarding Shezi
JE

Ecwm_%zu coum.\NeCkVi Affidavit and Al-Towfeek settlement papers submitted by

D fraATI e - g
’Liuwriff-ﬂ‘i)'

2% prosecution. there is no mention of accused Mian Nawaz Sharif.

Arguments of Amjid Pervez Learned defence counsel on behalf of
accused Maryam Safdar and Capt (Retd) Safdar. |

1. That the accused Marvam Safdar and Captain (Retd) Safdar.‘
were not asked by. the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan to appear

before the JIT and neither were their names in the mentioned in the 13
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questions raised by, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan. The
accused also didn't iile review petition against the Supreme Court

Judgment.

That JIT was not empoweréd to engage solicitors but experts
vet the JIT engaged services of Quist Solicitors. Despite direct
question. PW-16 or PW 15 Akhtar Raja of Quist .Solicitor didn’t
disclose the fee armngeﬁtcm or the contract for hiring of his services.
He clearly had an interest in the case and hiring him was nepotism as

he was related 10 the head of HT.

The accused Marvam Safdar never remained public office
holder so she might not be tried under NAB laws. the current case is’
rrepared rather on perceptions than evidence. It is a case of week

1

evidence where the ovnership is not established.

There are conditions for establishing offence of assets beybnd
known sources as.laid down under precedents set by the superior
courts which are not me? in this case. It is a settled law that the
accused cannot be convicted on assumptions.

He has also argued on other points in line with the arguments-
advanced by learned counsel Kh. Haris about MLA responses. their
intrinsic value ete. He also maintained that Robert Radley was not font,
identification expert. His report is not supported by any material. Hé
has not mentioned font 1y pe in his first expert report about trust deed.
I 'he was expert in font identification he would have noted the same in

o - ~= = 20PNIS fiTstreported on simpit examination of the deed by naked eves. He
S el S

has also argued in line yith learned defence counsel Kh. Haris in

respect of notice under section 19 of NAO 1999 issued in name of -

accused by NAB.

. :-_;:.'; g K N . ) . . . -
TaRLITY COURT He has contented withowt prejudice to his lega! and factual

objections raised in respect of documents produced in the case that

opmion and inierences of 1.O.. the documents produced has not

csizblished any case acainst Mijan Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. When
oY, 1 AP 1o T o S P . : . ~ .

tat barrier is not crossed i o cxamination of Mian Muhammad Nawaz
Sharif or his means 15 not established. Accused Marvam Safdar cannot

Ner 2N 1 i Ty eyer 1 M
be held responsible of an riminal act. It is case of no evidence

crountabifity Couts”
stamabad




<12

against accused Marvam Safdar and Capt. (Retd) Safdar.

The authoriuies produced on different points in support of his

arguments are given bglow. His arguments are in line with and in

addition to arguments adyanced by learned defence counsel Kh. Haris.

The points in rulings produced by learned defence counsel were also

the points of discussion in arrangements of learned defence counsel

and his arguments at relevant time will be noted while appreciating the

evidence.

R =y Courte1

S
[ .-r:,_-.____np,:y

P L 11996 SC i Aprpellate lurisdiction) Tiled Muhammad Asahrif

Khan Tareen Vs State. Para E of the same is reproduced as under:

“Leamed counsel for the appellant further argued that as per
first report .\'o: 147 of Cantt. Police Station. the appellant fired
with a weapon mentioned as “Tamacha™ while the weapon
recovered trom the appellant was 38 bore revolver as per SSP Faiz-
Khan PW-4. Driver Muhammad Younas PW-12. SHO Sadiq
Hussain PW-14 and recovery memo Ex.PW-12/1. In reply learned

counsel for the complainant State argued that mis-description ofa
weapon of otfence is not material. He cited the case of Muhammad
Gul vs. The State (1970 S.C.M.R. 797) were the weapon allegedly
used in commission of the offence was described in the FIR as
“Bandook™ while dur!in.g the trial it was shown as gun and it was
held that word “Bandook™ can be used both for gun and a rifle.
Similarly in this case the work “Tamacha™ can be used for |
“revolver”,

Learned counsel for the appellant wanted this Court to consider
Certain newspaper cuttings about the incident. The newspaper
cuttings have not been properiy proved in the way required by law -
of evidence. Particularly in a criminal case such cuttings cannot be
used either infavour of the prosecution or in favour of the defence.

unless author of the same is examined in Court as a witness™.

PL D 1961 (W.p.) Karachi Titled Messrs Balagamwalla Contton
ginning and Pressing Factory. Karachi Vs. Lalchand. Part F is
reproduced as under:

"IN our opinion zHc learned Sub-Judge was not justified in -

relving on these documents without the proof of the source or-

the basis on which these jtems appear in the said newspaper™




P L D 2007 Karachi 448 titled Arif Hashwani and 3 others Vs.

Sadruddin Hashwani and 3 others: Para B is reproduced as
below:

“Article T0(8ra) inserted by the Ordinance 2002 required -
that if the electronic information was denied by the party then
documents must be proved. Electronic documents as defined in

Ordinance. 2002 required that if the electronic documents as -

definred in Ordinance. 2002 includes documents. records ete. in
ciectronic form and “information™ has been defined as voice.
sound. video ete.

Articie 2¢1wcer of Qanun-e-Shahadat Order. 1984 defines

“evidence™ but interesting to note that the legislature has not
defined that what he means bv the evidence but said that..
evidence includes a statement that the court permits or requires
to be made and or all documents produced. It is a settled
principle of faw that the word “include™ is always used in
Tinterpretation clatse™ in order to enlarge the meaning of the
word and phrase cecurring in the body of a statue and as such
contention of the learned advocate for the defendants that CD
recorded casseties does not come within the definition of
evidence oral or documentary have no force, Even otherwise

after the amendments of Qanun-e-Shahadat Order 1984 by

Electronic Transac!ions Ordinance. 2002, electronic generated

documents and intormation become admissible piece of

e DTTRECOPY evidence. _
In my humble view audio. video-records cassettes CDs are
% admissible piece of v idence. however. the authenticity of same
y /ﬁ R is always subject to Proof in case the party against which it can

. be used disputed and or denied the party against which it can be
«ﬁ?/ / % used disputed and o denied the authenticity and information
- . - t . -
contamed i the szid electronic documents™,

P985 S C M R 259 Titled Muhammad Afzal Zullah, Shafiur’
Rahman and \ian Burhan un din Khan. JJ Ch. Abdul Hamid--Vs.
Deputy Commissioner and others: Part A is reproduced below:

he value 10 e

placed and the setting in which the

handwriting expert’s apinion has to be considered appeared with
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claritv in the following passage lifted from M. Monir Law of

evidence.

TNy

~ LV COURT-
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Tpeenngd

~Of all kind of e‘\‘idcnc‘: admitted in a Court. this is the most
unsatisfactory. It is so weak and decrepit as scarcely to deserve a place
in our svstem of jurisprudence. In view of this infirmity of expert
testimony. it is settled prac tice of Courts not to base a finding merely
on expert opinion. Conclusion based on mere comparison of
handwriting must at hest be indecisive. and vield to the positive

evidence in the case’.

1969 P Cr.L J 230 Titled Jafar Alam Choudhury Vs.The State.

Para (d) and para 9 E of judament are reproduced as below:

“the opinion of handwriting expert with regard to questioned

writing and signatureis not infallible but libel to error and it is a

very weak kind of evidence. The opinion of handwriting expert .

does not conclusively prove torgery when it is to the effect that the

questioned wnting and signature are not those of the person whose

writings and signatures they purport to be. It is. however. one of
the modes of proof of handwriting and signature but its evidentiary -
value 1s slender. In the instant case. the handwriting expert was not -

himself definite that the petitioner was the author of the impugned

signature and writing appearing in the cheque.in question. This
considerably reduced the value of the evidence that it was the
petitioner who wrote and signed the cheque™.

9E.... The next point urged by Mr. Moinul Haq is that the

conviction in this u..j\c has been based on the opinion of the

best a very weak evidence. It is well settled that opinion of
handwriting expert with regard to questioned writing and signature

is not infallible but liable 1o error and it is a very weak kind of

evidence. The opinion o I'handwriting expert does not conclusively

prove forgery when it is (o be etfect that the questioned writing and

signature are not those of the person whose writings and signatures

they purport 10 be. I is. however one of the modes of proof of |

andwriting and signature but its ev identiary value is slender. In

the instant case. the handwriting expert was not himself definite

handwriting expert which is of a shaky character and which is at




1.5

that the peutioner was the author of the impugned signature and
writing appearing in the cheque in question. This has considerably
reduced the value oi the evidence that it was the petitioner who
wrote and signed the cheque™

Air 1979 Supreme Court 1011 Titled Kanchansingh .

Dholaksingh Ta Ahakur. Appellant V. State of Gujarat. Para 1
1s reproduced as urder:
“The poesition i3 ihat the entire conviction rests on the
uncorroborated twextimony of the Expert P.W. Acharva. The
High Court has cieariv found that the expert had opined in case
of even those persons who admitted to have signed in token of
the payvment thai the signatures of these witnesses were forged.
This i1s @ most extraordinary situation because when the
witnesses testified on oath that they had signed the Register and
the signatures shown to them were their own how could the
expert say that the signatures of these witnesses were forged.
At any rate the expert’s opinion does not appear to be reliable
for this reasen. Once it is proved that the appellant had not
forged his si‘gnamrc on the entries concerned in Exh. A-18 on
which the entire case of theAprosecution is based. there is no
legal evidence 1o prove either the charge of misappropriation or
use of lorged d('\cumem or the charge of corruption or
allegation ot forgery. While this contention was spec1ﬁcall\'
raised betore the Ith Court by the counsel for the appellant”
frimees e smm anpY the High Court does not appear to have given any satisfactory
explanation for this. [t is well settled that in order to rely on the
M evidence of an expert the Court must be fully satisfied that he is
- a truthful witness ond also a reliable witness fully adept in the
‘ art of” identitication of hand-writing in order to opine whether

/-—v N ..
Mﬁ/ﬁﬁ the alleged hund-writing has been made by a particular person

" not As tm evidenee of the expert has been disbelieved bv

the High Court en the most material points. we find it whollv

unsate to base the conviction of the appellant merely on the

tesu mom of'1 h-c rory
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2001 ¥ 1. R 448 (L ahore) Titled Kh. ljaz Ahmad and others Vs.

D.R.O. and others. Paras 9. 12 and 13 are reproduced as below:

“So far as the newspapers are concerned. there in no evidence

or for that matter ﬁlnt‘omwation as to when the event reported in

the newspaper took place. No statement or affidavit of the -

person who had aliegedly reported the event in the newspapers
is forthcoming on the record. Now it is settled that newspapers
or the newspaper articles are not ordinarily admissible as

evidence of the fzets stated therein. In the case of Abdul Wali

Khan PLD 1976 SC 37 the Supreme Court of Pakistan had .

observed while agreeing with the learned Attorney general who

had relied upon Volume 29 of the American Jurisprudence

(Sceond Editiony. page 989 that ~it cannot be denied that so far
as  newspaper reports of  contemporaneous events  are
concerned. they may be admissible particularly where they

happen to be events of local interest or of such a public nature

as would be gcne}uli'\' known throughout the community and-

tesimony of an cye-witness is not readily available™. It was

further observed by the apex Court “The contemporary

newspaper account may well be admitted in evidence in such
circumstances as has often been done by Courts in the United

States of America not because they are “business records™ or

“ancient documents™ but because they may well be treated as a

trustworthy contemporaneous account of events or happenings .

which took place 2 long time ago or in a foreign country which
cannot easily be proved by directed ocular oral testimony™.
Reference thereafter was made to the case of Sher Muhammad
Vs THE Crown (PLD 1949 Lah, 3I1) where newspaper
reports were aceepied of and articles published in a daily

newspaper the contents of which were not denjed by the

Crown. It was turther observed that thus if g person does not -

avail ot the  oprortunity 1o contradict or question the
truthtulness of the statement attributed to him and widelv
published in newspaper he cannot complain if that publication

s used against him.
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So far as the video film is concerned there is nothing in the

order of learned R.O. as to who provided him with the same. [ may

refer here to the same judgment of Abdul Wali Khan to state that in

the said case 1ape recorder of speeches of the NAP Leaders were
admitted only when the Officer recording the speeches was produced.

He produced the tape. The tape was run in open Court and Officer

identified the voices of persons speaking. What to speak of production

of any such person or his affidavit who had made the recording we do

not even know who that person is. The video film of course seen by -

the learned R.O in isolation was not a piece of legal evidence and

could not have been relied upon by the learned R.O.

As to the photographs. Here again the order or learned R.O. is

silent as to who provided him photographs as to who had taken

photographs who had dc‘!’clnped the photographs and as to where are’

the negatives. Here again photographs could not have been admitted in"

the evidence without the evidence of alleged photographer and the

developer of the film with reference to negatives thereof.

PLD 2016 Lahore 370 titled Before Shahid Hameed Dar. J Mst. .

Rehana Anjum Vs. Additional Sessions Judee). Paras 9(F) and 10

(G) are reproduced as helow:-

Production of a document and proof of the document were two

different subjects. A document can be produced in evidence. which is

always subject to proof as required under Article 78 of the Order

~eemem = ~2mmT CORTMY, IF a document was relied upon by a party and it had been

5

formally exhibited but was not proved in accordance with the law.

theretore. it could not be relied upon in circumstances. A medical

B .
L ‘\,:._:RT"
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required to prove each and every bit of the descriptions/ contents. so

a5 10 prove the said documents. the reason being that the reports

prepared by him do not have the coverage of provision of section 510.

Cr.P.C.. which underlines that “any documents purporting to be 2

report. under the hand of amv. Chemical Examiner or Assistant

Chemical Examiner :o Governmeént or of the Chief Chemist of

Pakistan. Securir Printing Corporation Limited or anv Serologist.

officer having scribed a medico-legal report or a necropsy report is,
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finger print expert or tire-arm expert appointed by Government upon

anyv matter or thing duly submitted to him for examination or analysis

and report in the course of any proceeding under this Code. may

without calling him as a witness. be used as evidence in any inquiry. .

trial or other proceeding under this Code™. It is further provided that
“the Court may if it considers necessary in the interest of justice
summon and examine the person by whom such report has been

made™.

“The DW does nof tall within any of the categories mentioned

in section 310 Cr.P.C.. therefore. he has to depose about the contents
of EXDW-4 A and petitioner complainant shall be within her right to

cross-examine him so as to shake his credibility. if possible. Merely

by tendering the said document in evidence. without saving a word to

the contents thereof by the DW. it would not be possible for the trial

court to assess the evidentiary value thereof .

1995 SCMR 1621 Supreme Court Of Pakistan. titled Malik

Khuda Baksh Vs. The State). Paras 11 is reproduced as below:-

It may be seen that in case of Mst. Naseer Begum Vs. Sain and 6

other. reported in 1972 SCMR 384 the Supreme Court has observed

that “Evidence Act does not make a finding of fact arrived at on the

evidence before the Court in one case evidence of that fact in another -

case”. Thus. a judgment in a Civil Court. as pointed out by M. Munir

in his Law of Evidence.  is not admissible in a criminal proceedings .

to establish the truth of the tacts upon which it is rendered. in a
criminal trial it is for the Court to determine the question of the guilt

of the accused and it mus: do so upon the evidence before it”. In the

_case of SN.Gupta & Co. Vs.Sadanada Ghosh. it was held by the

Dacca High Court that o iudgment of acquittal in a criminal case onlv
decides that the accused has not been proved guilty and to this extent
only and no more is it 10 be taken as correct and conclusive in a

subsequent civil between the parties”,

PLI 2004 Cr.C. (1.ahore) 734 (DB) titled Muhammad Ajmal

Vs, State. Paras 121 is reproduced as below:

These reports stand on a much weaker footing than the judgment

6L . e 1 \ S . o . .. )
Fourty Civil Court. Fven the Judgments of a Civil Court cannot per se be
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used to establish facts constituting an offence before a Criminal Court.
This 1s in line with the iaw laid down by the August Supreme Court in
Mst. Naseer Begum V. Sain and 6 others (1972 SCMR 384) wherein
at page 385 it was held as under:-

“Learned counsel apqcaring in support of this petition reiterates thg
contention that the judgment of the Civil Court should have been
taken into account. befure arriving at a decision in the criminal case.
We are unable to agree. because. as pointed out by the Privyv Council
in the case of Kumar Gopika Raman Roy Vs. Atal Singh (1) = the
Evidence Act does not make a finding of fact arrived at on the‘_
evidence before the Court in one case evidence of that fact in another
case”. Thus. a judement :in a Civil Court. as pointed out bv M. Munir
in his Law of Evidence. ~ is not admissible in a criminal proceeding to"
cstablish the truth of the facts upon which. is rendered. In a criminal
trial it is for the Court to determine the question of the guilt of the

accused and it must do so upon the evidence before it

=016 S € M R 2084 iitled Asfandvar and other Vs. Kamran and’

another. Para 3D and'E are reproduced as under:

“The record reveals that during investigation the petitioner tried.
to produce the footage of some C.C.T.V. which were produced by the
petitioner-accused betore the investigating officer. No doubt the trial
Court. under 164 of the Order. 1984, may allow to produce the said
footage of C.C.T.V buz_iii i3 incumbent upon the defence to prove the
ame in accordance \\ii,h the provisions of the Order. 1984 The
defence had ample opportunity- to produce in his defence. the -
concerned person who had prepared the said footage from the
C.C.T.V. system in order 1o prove the same. In that eventuality. the

adverse party would be given an opportunity to cross-examine the said

CIOURT-A

Witness regarding the genuineness or otherwise of the said document.
Any document brought on record could not be treated as proved untj]

the same is proved strictiy in accordance with the provisions contained

i the Order. 1984, While discussing these aspects of the case. the

High Court restricted the admissibility only to the extent of article 79

of the Order. 1984 whereas there are certain other provisions/Article

m the Order. 1984 for proving the documents which are procured

Irough the modern de\'icf\' and techniques. Mere producing anv
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tootage of C.C.T.\". as a piece of evidence in the Court is not

sufficient to be relied ugon unless and until the same is proved to be

cenuine. In order to prove the genuineness of such footage it is

incumbent upon the defence or prosecution to examine the person who -

prepared such footage from the C.C.T.V. system. So we modify the

impugned judgment to the extent that the accused is at liberty to

produce evidence and prove the same strictly in accordance with the

provisions of the Order. 1984 and it will not confine only to the

Article 79 of the Order. 1934,

2016 Y L R 2347 titled \uhammad Igbal Ahmad \/"s. The State: Paras

11. 13 & 14 are reproduced as under:

=P 11.. Before adverting to the evidence in support of charge
qua the above mentioned properties. it is necessary and advantageous
to examine the necessary ingredients for proving an offence under

Section 9aivy of “NAO. 19997, It is by now well settled that the

prosecution in order to prove the culpability of an accused in terms of

above referred penal clause has to prove the following ingrédients:-
(v) the accused 15 a holder of public office.
(Vi) he accumulated. owns or possess title or interest in the
properties.

“u. . 1 ~ e
(vi1)  his known ources of income.

I
(vin) - and the expenditures incurred the accused on acquisition -

properties or disproportionate his known sources of income.

[t is manifest from the above that mere holding of assets in the

shape of moveable and immovable property in his own name or in the

name of his dependant is not the sole fact to determine the culpability
of an accused in term of section 9(a) (v) of “NAO 1999". The

prosecution is alwavs burden with heavy onus to prove that assets so

sy courT-gicquired do not commensurate 1o the known sources of income of the

accused. The Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan in the case of

“Ghani-ur-Rehman v. Nationai Accountability Bureau and others™

(PLD 2011 SC 1 144). while dealing with a similar proposition has laid

down the following princ":}ics:-
"6. The law now stands settled that in order to prove

commission of as offence under section 9(a)v) of the National
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Accountability Ordinance. 1999 it has to be proved by the prosecution -
as 10 what were the known sources of income of the accused person at -
the relevant time and that the resources or property of the accused
person were disproportionate to his known sources of income and it is
after such proot has been led and the necessary details have been -
provided by the prosecution that the onus shifts to the accused person
1o account for such resources or property because mere possession of
anv pecuniary resource or property is by itself not an offence but it is
failure to satistactortiy account for such possession of pecuniary
resource or properts that makes the possession objectionable and
constitutes the relevant offence. In the case in hand the appellant’s
sources of income had ncver been brought on the record by the
prosecution and had never been quantified by it at any stage of this
case and. therefure. it was not poésible for the learned trial curt to
conclude or 1o held that the appellant or his dependants or so-called
benamidars owned. or possessed assets or pecuniary resources

!
disproportionate 1o the appellant’s income. It is unfortunate that the

investigating officer of this case-as well as those responsible for
prosecution of this case betore the learned trial court had. probably on
account of their sheer incompetence. utterly failed to do the needful in
this regard and it is regrettable that even the learned trial court as well

as the learned appellate court had completely failed to advert to this

critical aspect of the present case.”

“P13. So far charge relating to seement (h) is concerned. the
appellant was held guiltv on the basis that he failed to account for 69

tolas of gold as he failed to declare the same in his tax return and

-+ zcurranedlth statement. Suffice 1o obhserve that mere non mentioning of

detail of jewelry in the relevant tax document does not constitute anv

oftence under Section *)(;1'

v of "NAO. 1999. unless other necessary

ingredients for the constitution of said offence were proved by leading

vogent and convincing evidence. Reliance in this respect can be placed

on “Khalid Aziz \", the Sware.”

“PI4... Though leamned Prosecutor  strengthened hjs

contentions by submittine that the
enttons by submitting that the appellant at some stage opted for

v © en iy .
PUNTary retumn of the assets but the same never matured. The




appellant was sent te face the trial instead of accepting his plea of
voluntary return in terms of Section 25 of “NAO. 1999". The
conviction cannot be recorded on the basis of presumptions and
suppositions. When once an accused has faced the regular trial then
his guilt or innocence is to be determined from the evidence adduced
in this regard. Mere fact that some offer was made by the accused at
carly stage of his prosecution to enter into voluntary return. is not
sufficient to hold him guiltv of the offence. The Hon ble Supreme"
Court of Pakistan in somewhat similar circumstances in the case of

“Syed Al Nawaz Shah and 2 others v. The State and others™.

2011 SCMR 135 titled Khalid Aziz Vs. the State wherein it is
held that in order to prove the case. the prosecution is required to
prove the ingredierts of'the offence. which are (1) it must establish .
that the accused was helder of a public office. (2) the nature and extent
of the pecuniary resources of property which were found in his
possession. (3) it must proved as to what were his known sources of
income i.e. known to the prosecution after thorough investigation and"
(4) it must prove. guite objectively. that such resources or property
found in possession of the accused were disproportionate to his know
sources of income. Once these four ingredients are established. the -
offence as defined under section 9a)(v) is complete. unless the
accused is able to account for such resources or property. Thus. mere
possession of any pecuniary resources or property is by itself not an
offence. but it is failure to satisfactorilv account for such possession of -
pecuniary - resources or property that makes® the possession
abjectionable and constitute offence.  If he cannot explain.
presumption under section Idic) 6f the Ordinance that accused is
guilty of corruption and a corrupt practice is required to be drawn.
Reference is invited to a case Biswa Bhushan Naik v. State (Air 1954

eoe e o 2m 77T 2OPYSC 350y in which identical provision in Prevention of Corruption Act.

1947 were interpreted.” ’

“Similar view was also taken in the cases of Farrukh Javed
Gumman and State of Maharashtra supra. Thus. it is clear that the
prosecution has to establish the above mentioned four ingredients and
*t_:T“CCURT’ﬁwn the burden would shift upon the appellant o explain his

o // possession as required under section 14(c) of the Ordinance.’ '

/M;//g “In the present case. the prosecution has simply produced the

Declaration of assets for the years 1995-2000 filed by the appellant

before the appellant betore the department. which show that he

appellant owned  various propertics and was earnine

theretrom. The prosecution has not lead any evidence to show about
the‘amount received by the appellant from his salary, allowances etc.
during the period of his service i.e. 1969 to the relevant time. Thus
the prosecution did not produce the required evidence to prove that the;
amount alleged or fin al umount determined by the Hich Court was
Rnown sources of income, as such. the

disproportionate to the
- Thumed Prosecution has faiied 1o prove the main appellant to furnish

income

W




explanation as provided under section l4(c) of the Ordinance..
However. in spite of that the appellant explained his position by giving
details of each and every transaction in the accounts of his wife and
produced the relevant evidence in the shape of the statements of his-
wife (D.W.3). his father-in-law (D.W.2). Ishfaq Ahmed. Chartered
accountant (D.W.1) and Haji Maqsood Ahmed. Advocate (D.W.4)
along with documentary evidence. They have fully supported the stand
taken by the appellant with the documentary evidence. The question as
to whether these amounts were not mentioned in the Income Tax
Department or that the resolution was not filed with the Registrar,
Cooperative Societies 1\: by uself will not affect the explanauoq or
draw any adverse inference against the appellant as the appropriate
action can be taken under the Income Tax Laws or by the Registrar. -
Cooperative Societies Act tsic) against the Firm under the relevant
provisions of aw. it such laws are violated. While interpreting section
140¢) of the Ordinance. it has been observed in the case of Hakim Ali
Zardari supra. as under:--

]

"As regards the burden of proof. the normal rule of law is that -
an accused is presumed to be innocent until his guilt is proved. .
established and the onus of establishing the guilt is always on the
prosecution. But the rule of law laid down in section 14(c) of the
Ordinance is a departure from normal law and under this section. a
presumption of corruption and corrupt practices is required to be
drawn. if the accused or anv person on his behalf is in possession of
pecuniary resources or property disproportionate to his known sources
of income of which sources he cannot satisfactorily account. For
shifting the burden upon accused to account for the sources of income,
the words of the statue are preemptory and the burden must lie all the
lime on the accused 1o Ifmm the contrary. after the conditions laid
down in the earlier part! of the section have been “fulfilled by the
prosecution through evidence to the satisfaction of the Court and then
the Court is required to draw the presumption that the accused person -
is guilty as provided under section 14(c) of the Ordinance. Such

CPY presumption continues to hold the field unless the Court is satisfied

that the statutory presumption has been rebutted. The onus upon the
dceused is not as strict as the initial onus on the persecution which has
first 10 establish the disproportion was not satisfactorily explained by
the accused it could not be said that excessive burden was thrown on

e a1.41'm 1o explain the disproportion. A reference is invited to Rameswar

s

s o4

Prasad Upadhya \. State of Bihar (AIR 1971 sc 2474). Thus. the
Rature and extent of the burden cast on the accused is that he is not
bound to prove his innocence bevond any reasonable doubt. therefore. -
while examining the. explanation of the accused the above principle is
required to be Kept in view and if the accused is able to explain the

circumstances to the satistaction of the Court then that wil] be enough
i discharge the burden. ™ ' )

P_L D 1973 Karachi 832

tited Mohammad Usman Vs. Lal
Mohammad and 12 other< P

aras & & 10 are reproduced as below:

“P.&. Now section AR

. : 5 10 be noticed. only makes admissible
secondary evidence in some eq

¢ | Sest it does not prescribe the mode by
waich secondar evidence mav be given though in some cases—and




clauses (e) and «f) are such cases---a certain mode is stated and all
others forbidden. This mode is by means of a certified copv. What a
certified copy is stated in section 76 which read:

6. Certified copies of public documents.---Every public officer
having the custody of a public document. which any person has a right

to inspect. shall give that person on demand a copy of it on pavment of
the legal fees therefore. together with a certificate written at the foot of
such Eop}' that it is a true cop) of such document or part thereof. as the
case may be. and such certificate shall be dated and subscribed by
such officer with his name and his official title. and shall be sealed.
whenever such officer is authorized by law to make use of a seal. and
such copies so certified shall be called certified copies.™

A plain reading of this section shows that Exh. 49 is not a -
certified copy within the meaning of section 76. This section requires
that only the public officer having the custody of a public document .
may give a certified copy and it must then be dated and subscribed by
such officer with his name and official title. 1 have already stated that
E:xh. 49 although it does bear a signature does not purport to indicate
the designation of the person who has put the signature. much less that
he was such a public officer as is contemplated by section 76.

P.10. Reliance was then placed upon Exh. 49-A, it being
claimed that since this fvas notorially attested there was sufficient
compliance of section "8 Now it is to be remembered that Exh. 49-A
was claimed to be a Photostat copy of Exh. 49 which was then
notorially attested. In fact it was not even that: it was a photostat copy
of such a photostat copy of the Exh. 49 as had been attested notorially
before being re- photographed. In the first place on general principles”

I' should be extremely reluctant to accept as admissible the
photographic copy of a document which itself is inadmissible. It -
would ke remarkable indeed it a document although not admissible
itself became admissible only because it was photographed and then
attested. Unless. therefore. the law compels me to come to such a
conclusion I would hold that Exh.-49-A is inadmissible on that ground .
alone. It was claimed. however. that Exh. 49 was being held
madmissible only for the want of an attestation by a Notarv Public and
that Exh. 49-A bear such an auestation. I do not think the matter is as
simple as that. What section 78 requires is the certificate under the
seal of a Notary Pubiic that “the copy is duly certified bv the officer
having the legal custody of the original”. In other words from the
.f)omrial attestation is being derived the guarantee that the copy is -
indeed certitied by that officer. The Notary Public in this case even if
he had put a stamp upon Exh.49 itself could not have and did not give
such a certificate. In the absence of any certificate the utmost that the
altestation amounts to is a certificate that he has compared the.
;*‘vhotostat copy with the document from which it has been made and
that the photostat copy ix accurate, This by no means complies with

.xcczi'on ~&and I am quite unable 10 hold. therefore. that Exh. 49-A was
admissible either .

- P L D 1999 Lahore titled Msiy K
. .Raga 4 is reproduced as below

alsoom Begum Vs. Ahmad Raza Bukhari.

T . NP B O » M : N
The only question. which calls for determination. is whether
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applicant is entitled to obtain the certified copies of certified copies of .

the orders of Deputy settlement Commissioner dated 17.1.1960.. the
order of Settlement Commissioner dated 11.3.1960 and order of Chief
Settlement Commissioner dated 3.6.1962 appended with the memo. of
Writ Petition No. 368-R of 1963. The answer to this question beings
upon Articles 83. 87 and Q8 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat (10 of 1984),
Article 83 enumberates defines what are the public documents.

According to this AArticle. written instruments are divisible into two.

classes namely public and private. Public documents consist of act of
public functionaries. in the executive. in the Legislature and in the

iudicial wing of Government which are required to be entered into

books reisters in the course of their public duties. The relevant sub-
clause in this Article is 1(3). Next we move to Article 87 and 88,
These provisions are exceptions to the rule which requires that each
document is to he proved by primary evidence. Article 87 says that
every public functionary having the custody of public document of
which any person has right to inspect. such give that person. on
demand. a copy of it on the pavment of legal fee therefore together
with certificate written al the foot of the copy that it is a true copy of
such document or part thereof. It further postulates that such

certificate shall be dated and subscribed by such officer with his name.

his name. his official title and his seal. It. so. state that such copies
shall be entitled 10 be designated as certified copies. Form the above. it

clearly follows that Aricle 87 only applied firstlv. where a public
officer is in custody of a public document mentioned in article 85: .
sccondly. that such document is open 8 to inspection; thirdly that such -

officer is empowered 1o give the copy of such document to any person
who makes a request for its copy and pays the legal charges due on
requested copy copies: fourthly. that such officer is to give him that

copy after comprising it with the original and has to make a certificate
that effect. The question is whether a certified copy of the orders

mentioned above do satisty the above requirement. Answer is verv
simply. *No'. The functionaries of the High Court were not required

under any law to prepare and maintain the record of Settlement of

cvacuee properties. This was within the domain of Settlement
oo oo m22%Department. The incharge of the copying agency of the High Court

cannot certify: the copies of the certified copies annexed with the

memo. of  Constitutional Petition No, 368-R of 1963 with heir
) corresponding originals. This being the position we have no difficulty

in holding that copyving agency of this Court cannot give certified -

= - ~ruregPies mentioned abqve. '{he applicant. if so chooses. may approach
the copying agency of the Settlement Department.

2041 CLT 233 (Peshawar titled Mst. Nishata Vs, Muslim Khan alias

Musaliete. Para 11 B s reproduced as below:

L. . e . | .
M connection with the expert about the signature of Mst. Nishat

1
plainutt petitioner and A bhdy! Hakeem. PW-4. ACW-1 and 2. where

examined. As per opinion. the signatures are fake and fictitious not
matching with admiied siznatures. The evidence of ACW-3, wherein
e opmed that the thumb 'mpressions are similar to that of admitted

.- humb impression of Mst, \;

\
t
.

-
1]
]

:
N
i l‘

shat. This evidence cannot be considered.
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notwithstanding  being weak tvpe of evidence. but the

defendants-respondents have failed to comply with the provisions

contained in Articles “2.79 and 0 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat therefore.
under Article &84, expert opinion made permissible. in the instant case.
same was also about thumb impression. but negates the claim of
defendants-respondent: about the signing of disputed sale-deed.
therefore. not of any importance as it’s supportive evidence of the rest
of the material on the ﬁ’}c. even otherwise the mere expert evidence
cannot be considered in supersession of other material available on
record. whereby inference can be drawn altogether contrary to the

expert report. When the party has failed 10 prove its case not entitled

to have given the benefit of the sole opinion of expert which is by its

nature is a weak evidence. in this respect reliance can be placed or a’

case titled Syed Muhammad Umer Shah vs. Bashir Ahmed.

“Article 61. Hand;\\'riting Expert opinion. Scope. Evidence of

Handwriting Expert is alwavs considered to be a weak tvpe of

evidence. In present of overwhelming evidence, oral,

documentary as well as circumstantial. it would be futile to
examine the expert. Lven if examined. it would not outweigh

the available evidence™

P L D 2003 Quetta | titled Ashfaq Khalid Vs. the State. Para 33

MN.OP.33C & 370 are reproduced as under:

“So far report of Handwriting Expert is concerned. it
may be observed that same is not infallible. The Hon’ble
Supreme Court. i the case-law reported in 1985 SCMR page
339 observed that the opinion of Handwriting Expert I not fina]
word on the subject. Relevant observation is reproduced below:
“Opinion of Handw riting E.\'pert---Opinion of Handwriting
Expert. of all kinds of evidence admitted in g Court. was the
MOost unsatistuctory---Such evidence Was so weak and decrepit
as scarcely 1o deserve a place in svstem of Jurisprudence----

Couris not 10 hase g finding merely on expert opinion---

Coneluci ol . . -
nclusion based or mere comparison of handwriting must at

- best be indecisive and vield to positive evidence in case.”

i
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Likewise'in the judgment reported in AIR 1947 Oudh page 130

their Lordships have held that it would be dangerous to place implicit

reliance on the opinion of Handwriting Expert. It would be

advantageous to reproduce the relevant observations herein below:

~the last witness ’o be considered in the connection in D.W.22.

[ wish to state 2t the outset that had the evidence of the

Handwriting Expert in proof of these disputed documents stood

alone. I would have had great hesitation in accepting it. Mr.

Wasim has cited the opinion expressed in numerous authorities

and text books in regard to the evidence of a handwriting -

expert. | am fuily conscious of the fact that it is dangerous to

place implicit reliance upon the evidence of such witnesses.™

It has also been held in number of cases that an expert is

unconsciously prejudiced in favour of the party calling him. Here we

may refer to the judgment reported in PLD 1958 Lahore page 447.

AT

s eres ~ady was

_:fl'.E';"Y CCURT-{

TV
‘ page 23

39 while discussing the opinion of Handwriting Expert held as
under:-

- e

coeete,
e

Sourtd

" The opinion of a Handwriting Expert should be received with

great caution: however impartial an expert may be. he is likely

to be unconscious!y prejudiced in favour of the said that calis

him. From the mere fact that an expert has said that a document

was written by a certain person one will not be justified in

arriving at the conclusion *that the scribe was the person
mentioned by the expert because before giving a finding to that
effect the Court has to consider the entire evidence on the
point.” :

turther held in the s'amejudgmem as under:

“The opinion of un exper-t is admissible but it cannot be
considered to be intallible. There must be some circumstances
or evidence wherahv 10 test the accuracy of the statement of an

expert.”

There Lordships in the ludgment reported in 1969 P.CrL.J

“The opinion of Handwriting Expert with regard 1o questioned
wniting and signature is not infalliple but liable to error and it js
expert does not conclusively prove foreery when it is to the

etfect that the questioned Writing and signature are not those of

!

SO R
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the person whese writings and signatures they purport to be. It
1s. however. one of the modes of proof of handwriting and

signature but its evidentiary value is slender.”

33-S. Likewise the Court can come to its own conclusion

independently of the Lxpert opinion after taking into consideration the .
- facts and circumstances of the particular case as observed in PLD
1966 Dacca Page 444. Réproduced herein below:-

“A plain reading of the section will show that it is the Court -

which has o Il'\rm the opinion of an Expert is relevant but the

duty of the Court is not thereby altogether abrogated. The Court
in order to form its opinion may call upon the opinion of an

Expert 1o aid the Court to come 10 its conclusion. Therefore. in

a case. where the impressions are clear and the similarity or

dissimilarity is obvious. we do not use why the Court cannot

iself come to itz own conclusion independently of an opinion
of'the Exper..”

37 U=~ “In order 10 compare wwo different handwritings or
signatures. Handwriting Expert is required to examine different
characteristics of both the hand writings or signatures such as Pen
hold. Pen pressure. siant. speed. sizing. alignment. spacing. line
quality. tremors. Curves. connections. rhythm. moment in pulse.
position in all ietters. paper ink and writing instrument, Similarly
before comparison the principle “like with the like™ is to be observed.
In other words the specimen for comparison must provide similar

Mox\naterial for comparison. As far as possible while taking specimen
~writing similar paper Ink and writing instruments he provided to the
person whose specimen writing are requxred If dlsputed Writings are

in pencil. pencil specimen bust be obtained. If they are in Ball Pen

yjr,,OJRT_ BTitings must be  obuined. “(Hardless’s  Disputed Documents.

M// Handwriting and Thumb rrint. identification”™ revised by T.J. Gajjar

third Edition 1983 referredy.”

010 P Cr. L J &3 Titlﬂd Mir Favaz Ahmed Vs, The State. Paras
N 19,20 and 21 A are reproduced below:

9....In Abdul Rashid's case (supra). it was held that smce»

there was no evidence ar to connect the appellant with the

commussion of offence with which he stood charged and that it
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was “well-settled that since conviction cannot be based
uncorroborated testimony of an expert witness which is
certainly a weak type of evidence.”

=P 20..... Lastly in Qazi Naseem Ahmed’s case (Supra). -
the appellant was convicted under section 3-C ‘of the Prevention
of C orruptio{l Act. It was alleged that being a public servant. by
improper means. he had acquired in his own name and in the
names of his dependent mother and voung brother a host of
properties. Court 2nalvzed each of the property and came to the
conclusion that the charge had not been proved. Regarding
probative value of opinion of the Handwriting Expert. the Court ™
observed that in the absence of any corroborative evidence.
opinion of Handwriting Expert is not sufficient to hold that the
appellant had foreed the documents. as such evidence is not
infallible.” '

P 21 D.... X reading of the above case-law indicates that
the law seems io be well-settled that opinion of Handwriting
Expert is what it is i.e. only an opinion. Therefore. standing
alone the opinion will not be sufficient for reaching a definite |
conclusion as to the alleged handwriting or the alleced
signatures. The opinion has only corroborative value and
therefore  unless  independent corroboration is available
conviction cannot be based on sole testimony of Handwriting -

expert.”

P L D 2014 Supreme Court 696 titled Land Acquisition

Collector. Sargodha and another Vs. Muhammad Sultan and

another. Paras 3 D and 6 B are reproduced as below:

“3D... The pm\'i:\‘ions of the Qanun-e-Shahadat Order. 1984 ‘
mncluding Article 39 thereof make it clear that the opinion of a

witness is only relevant and carries some probative value if h'e.»
IS an expert in the fields specified in the said Aricle.

Furthermore. even for the purpose of giving an opinion. the
witness has firstiy 1o establish the expertise vested in him either

on-account of academic qualification or experience or

otherwise. Without such foundation. an opinion cannot be

iself. be taken as having evidentiary value for proving a fact in
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6 B: In the present case. the reasons which prevailed with the Courts -
below were based on an opinion expressed by a person who is neither
an expert. nor has he established any basis for the opinion expressed
by him.”

P L D 1995 Supreme Court 88 Titled Altantic Steamer’s Supply-

Company Vs. m.v. Tutisee and others. Para 13 is reproduced as

below:
“There seems to be controversy between the parties as to the
mode of proot ot a foreign law. In this regard. reference may be
made to scction 3& of the late Evidence Act and the
corresponding provisions contained in Article 52 of the Qanun-
e-Shahadat. It \\iHl suffice to reproduce the latter. which reads
as follow:- '

“32. Relevaney of statements as to anv law contained in law

books.--- When the Court has to form an opinion as to a law of
any country any statement of such law contained in a book

purporting to be printed or published under the authority of the

government of such countrv and to contain any such law. and -

any report of a'ruling of the Courts of such country contained in

a book purporting to be a report of such rulings. is relevant.”

A plain reading of the above article indicates that a foreign law
can be proved by producing a book purporting to be printed or
published under the authority of the Government of the country
concerned containing a statement of the relevant law. It may also bhe

observed that under .»\rtiLlc 39 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat. an expert

"7 Trrz popPinion on a foreign faw s a relevant fact and therefore. an expert can

also be examine. It may further be mentioned that in England as is

indicated from the abo ¢-quoted para. from Cheshire on Private
International Law. the foreign law is 1o be proved through expert

.5, 7 COURT.evidence.

PL D972 Supreme Court 23 Titled Mst. Khair-Ul-Nisa and 6
others Vs,

Malik ML;h;Uﬂlﬂﬁd Ishaque and 2 others. Were it is

mentioned that Written satements cannot be the exhibits in the case -

without the person wha filed the same being examined in the Court.

The statements made in the writlen statement are not on oath. They are

4 gt
Il A AP
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only verified and theretfore. they cannot be treated as evidence in the
case. This view finds support from the case of J.B. Ross & Co. \
C.R.Seriven and others (A I R 1917 Cal. 269(2)) and Muhammad
Siddique v. Bhupendra Naravan Rov Chowdhury (P L D 1962 Dacca
643, It was held in the tormer case as:----

“A vertficauon s required with a view to discourage. if not “to
prevent. the instituiion of false suite: the legislature never
contemplated that v criI‘EL;d statements should be treated as evidence on
behait’ of a plainitt’ against 1 defendant. “The inference may
fectiimately be drawn irom the language used in section 191 read with
section 193, [P CL that a veritied statement would not be “evidence™
but for the special provision of section 191 which has been enacted for
a speciai purpose.”

2016 S € MR 274 | Supreme Court of Pakistan] Titled Azeem Khan

and another Vs. Mujahid Khan and others. (J) Penal Code (XLV of 1960)...

ATTESTED TO B TREETTPY

sSTRAR
AGCOUMTAE:LITY COURT.-€

SLAMAE 52
A

U’

JU‘ %
~CCo ::':J;tv C,,urf-

LS SRS & RU2(Dyemee- Anti-Terrorism Act (XXVII of
F9971 S Tie---Criminal Procedure Code (V 'of 1998). S. 510--
-Nidnapping for ranso. qatl-i-amd---reappraisal of evidence ----
Recovery of henes to identifyv deceased---DNA report of bones-
---Not admissibi¢ in evidence-----Not sufficient to award
capital punishment---—-Even if in the present case such DNA
report was admitted into the evidence and relied upon. it would
In no manner be sufticient to connect the necks of the accused-
persons with the commission of the crime when the bulk of |
other evidence against them was found to be unbelievable thus.
no reliance could be placed on such DNA report to award a
capital sentence---- 10 ensure fair-play and transparency. the .
samples in the laboratories from the parents (of deceased)
should have-been taken in the pruence of some independent
authority like a Magistrate and also the recovered samples from
the erime scene i the same way to dispel the chances of
tabrication of evidence through corrupt practices---- Transition
of the samples to the laboratory should have also been made in

a safe and secure manner. but all such safeguards were 10nored

i the present cise---Supreme Court set aside convictions and

death sentences o arded 1o accused persons and acquitted them

of the charge.”
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P L 12002 Lahore 434 Titled Mugarrab Hussain. (deceased) through

his Legal Representatives and other Vs. Pirzada Muhammad Rafique.

(deceased) through his Legal representatives. Paras 4. 7. 8A & 10 C are

reproduced as below:

ATTESTED 70 BE TRUE LOPY

y -
HFEE

—wieliiti s

"

[
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“P 4....The appellants on the other hand have relied on the said order.
dated 13.1.1962 for apportionment of rent. an uncertified photo copy

of grounds of appeal dated [ 7.08.1965 Exh. DW-3:2. certified copy of
crounds of revision dated 3.1.1966 Exh. DW3/4. copy of he plan Exh.

DW 9 and copy ot ihe plan Exh. DW3 197

P 7.... The impact and eftect of order Exh. P3 is stated to be withheld.
down. by the appellants. with reference to documents Exh. Dw3/2 and
Exh. D34, These documents are respectively grounds of appeal and
grounds of revision filed by the respondents against the order of
apportionment of rent duted 12.1.1962 relied upon by both the parties
as Lxh. P4 and Exh. DW3 1. According to the leamed counsel these
o documents constituted admission on the part of respondents that
the plot in front of the Bdmgalmv and arrange/quarter was in fact given
o the appellants as part of portion C.”

“P 8A...I must say that a plain reading of the said documents does
give the impression as @Ihefed by the learned counsel for the
appellants. However. it is also apparent on the face of record that the |
facts so constituting an admission according to the learned counsel for -
the appellants are against weight of evidence on record which shows

otherwise. Be that as it may. [ find that so far as the Exh. DW 3/2 is
concerned it is a photo copy and not a certified copy. 1 also find that
the document was duly objected to when it {\*as sought to be entered in
the statement of the appellant as DW3. To my mind this document is ‘-
not admissible at all under any provisions of Qanun-e-Shahadat Order.

P984, Exh. Dw3 4 has been issued from the record of writ petition
itled in this Court. It has come out in the statement of DW 3 that this

document is also copy o't' uncertitied copy. This too is not admissible"
in evidence.” |

0L T am abo in agreement with the learned counsel for the

respondents that even it by some streteh it be deemed that the said two

documents constitute admission and are also admissible in evidence
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and have been duly proved. nothing will turn on the same because
these admissions would be relatable only in proceedings in which they
were made and cannot be used as admission for the purpose of present
suit which had been tried on its own merit in the light of evidence
recorded therein.

2016 S C M R 208 titled :-\si‘;md_\ ar and other Vs. Kamran and another.Para

3D and E are reproduced as under:

 The record reveals that during investigation the petitioner tried to
produce the footage of some C C.T.V. which were produced by the
petitioner-accused betore the investigating officer. No doubt the trial
Court. under 164 of the Order. 1984, may allow to produce the said
faotage of C.C. TV buzri: i~ incumbent upon the defence to prove the
same in accordance with the provisions of the Order. 1984. The .
defence had ampie opportunitv to produce in his defence. the
concerned person whe had prepared the said footage from the '
C.C.T.V. system in order 1o prove the same. In that eventuality. the

adverse party would be 2iven an Opportunity to cross-examine the said
winess regarding the senuineness or otherwise of the said document.
Any document brought on record could not be treated as proved until
the same is proved sti'icil}’ in accordance with the provisions contained
i the Order. 1984, While discussing thesf: aspects of the case. the

High Court restricted the admissibility only to the extent of article 79

) - 3 £y ‘ 3 . - . -
%4 of the Order. 1984 whereas there are certain other provisions/Article

in the Order. 1981 for proving the documents which are procured
through the modern devices and techniques. Mere producing any
tootage of C.C.T\. s picce of evidence in the Court is not-
suticient to be relied upon unless and until the same is proved to be
genuine. In order to prove the genuineness of such footage it is
meumbent upon the detence or prosecution to examine the person who
prepared such tootage fom the C.CTV. svstem. So we modify the
impugned judgment o ihe extetn that the accused is at libertv to
produce evidence and prove the same stricil}' in accordance with the - |
provisions of the Order. 1984 and it will not confine onlv to the

Article 79 of the Order, Yhe.
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2011 CLY 235 (Peshawury tiled Mst. Nishata Vs. Muslim Khan alias
Musali ete. Para 11 B 15 reproduced as below: |
" in connection with the expert about the signature of Mst. Nishat.
plaintiff petitioner and Abdul Hakeem. PW-4. ACW-1 and 2, where
examined. As per epinion. the siénatures are fake and fictitious not
matching with admitted signatures. The evidence of ACW-3. wherein.
he opined that the thumb impressions are similar to that of admitted
thumb mmpression of KIJL. Nishat. This evidence cannot be considered.
notnithstanding héizt-_; weak  tvpe  of  evidence.  but  the
defendants respondents have failed to comply with the provisions
contained in Articles T87Y and 80 of the Qanun-e-Shahadar therefore. _
under Articie R4, expert opinion made permissible. in the instant case.
same was alse about thumb impression. but negates the claim of
detendants respondent: about the signing of disputed sale-deed.
|
therefore. not of anv importance as it's supportive evidence of the rest
of the material on the file. even otherwise the mefe expert evidence
cannot be consideéred in supersession of étlxer material available on
record. whereby inference can be drawn altogether contrary to the
expert report. When the party has failed to prove its case not entitled
to have given the benetit of the sole opinion of expert which is by its
natere ix a weak evidence. in this respect reliance can be placed or a
case titled Sved Muhammad Umer Shah vs. Bashir Ahmed.
“Arniele 61, Handwriting Expert opinion. Scope. Evidence of
Handwriting Expert is alwavs considered to be a weak type of
evidence. In presemt of overwhelming evidence. oral.
documentary as well as circumstantial. it would be futile to
examine the expert. Even if examined. it would not outweigh

the mvailable evidence™

P 1L D 2005 Quena 1 titled Ashtag Khalid Vs. the State. Para 33 MI\OP

I3S & 27U are reproduced as under:

“So far report of Handwriting Expert is concerned. it may be
observed that same is not infallible. The Hon’ble Supreme-
Court. is the cune-ion reported in 1985 SCMR page 3359
observed that the opinion-of Handwriting Expert 1 not final

word on the subiect. Relevang abservation is reproduced below-
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“Opinion of Hundwriting” Expert---Opinion of Handwriting
Expert. of all Kinds of evidence admitted in a Court. was the
most unsatisfactorv---Such evidence was so weak and decrepit
as scarcely to ddserve a place in svstem of jurisprudence----
Courts not to buse a finding merely on expert opinion---
Conelusion based on mere comparison of handwriting must at
best be indecisive and yvield to positive evidence in case.”

Likewise in the judement reported in AIR 1947 Qudh page

IR0 their Lordships have held that it would be dangerous to place -

implicit reliance on the epinion of Handwriting Expert. It would be

advantageous to reproduce the relevant observations herein below:

“the last witness to be considered in the connection in D.W.22.
I wish 1o state w the outset that had the evidence of the
Handwriting Expert in proof of these disputed documents stood
alone. 1 would have had great hesitation in accepting it. Mr.
Wasim has cited the opinion expressed in numerous authorities
and text books in regard to the evidence of a handwriting
expert. I am fuily conscious of the fact that it is dangerous to -
place implicit reliance upon the evidence of such witnesses.™

It has also been held in number of cases that an expert is

unconsciously prejudiced in favour of the party calling him. Here we

may refer to the judement reported in PLD 1958 Lahore page 447.

It was

" The opinion of a Handwriting Expert should be received with
areat caution: however ifnpunial an expert may be. he is likelv
to be unconscious!y prejudiced in favour of the said that calls
him. From the mere tact that an expert has said that a document -
was written by « certain person one will not be Justified in
arriving at the conclusion that the scribe was the person
mentioned by the cxpeﬁ because before giving a finding to that-
effect the Court has to consider the entire evidence on the
point.” |
turther held in the same Judgment as under:

“The opinion of uan expert is admissible but it cannot be

considered to be e, There must be some circumstances

or evidence whereby to test the accuracy of the statement of an

|

expert.” '



There Lordships in the judgment reported in 1969 P.Cr.L.J.
page 239 while discussing the opinion of Handwriting Expert held as
under:-

“The opinion oi Handwriting Expert with regard to questioned

writing and signature is not infallible but liable to error and it is

expert does not conclusively prove 1‘0rger}'-\\‘hen it is to the
effect that the questioned writing and signature are not those of
the person \\'ﬁ(wsc writings and signatures they purport to be. It
is. however. one of the modes of proof of handwriting and
stgnature but iis evidentiary value is slender.”
35S, Likewise the Court can come to its own conclusion
independently of the Lxpert opinion alter taking into consideration the facts
and circumstances ol the particular case as observed in PLD 1966 Dacea
Page 444. Reproduced herein beiow:-

“A plain reading of the section will show that it is the Court

which has to form the opinion of an Expert is relevant but the

duty ol the Court fs not thereby altogether abrogated. The Court

in order to form its opinion may call upon the opinion of an

L e oss) . 4

Expert to aid the Court to come to its conclusion. Therefore. in
@ case. where the impressions are clear and the similarity or-
dissimilarity is chvious. we do not use why the Court cannot

itself come 1o its own conclusion independently of an opinion

’7 of the Expert.” :
/7‘4 37 U= ~In order 1o compare  two  different handwritines or

signatures. Handwriting Lxpert s required to examine different

characteristics of both the hand Writings or signatures such as Pen.
hold. Pen pressure. slant. speed. sizing. alignment. spacing. line
quality. tremors. Curves. connections. rhythm. moment in pulse.
pesition in all letters. paper ink and writing instrument. Similarly
before comparison the erinciple “like with the like™ is to be observed.
[n other words the sgmfimcn for comparison must provide similar
material for comparison. A\s fur as possible while taking specimen»

writing similar paper Ink and w riting instruments he provided to the

\4\--w - I -\\'\';\:- \".‘; 3 M s " 1 1t
person whese snecimen ~-Ne are required. It disputed writines are

th pencii. pencil specimen bust be obtained. 14 they are in Ball Pen
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writings must be obtained. “(Hardless’s Disputed Documents.
Handwritine and Thumb print. identification™ revised by T.J. Gajjar
third Edition 1983 referredy.”

2016 P Cr. L 11343 Lahore Titled Ghulam Sarnwar Khan Lalwani Vs.

The State. Para 20D is reproduced as below:

“the prosecution was obliged and required to collect and
praduce evidence regarding known resources of income of
appellant for the period during which plots were purchased and
installments were paid. Admittedly no such evidence was
coilected”

P L D 2002 Peshawar 118 titled Muhammad Havat and 2 others Vs.’

the State. Para 81 is reproduced as below:

if we take into account the Dictionary meaning of the word
dependent”™. It simply means that a persons who is financially
“dependent™ on someone and who requires financial support from a
person upon whom he depends for maintenance™.

PLD 1993 Supreme Court 8R titled Altantic Steamer’s supply Company Vs. m.v,

Titisee and others. Para 13 G is reproduced as_below:

" a plain reading ot the above Article indicates that a foreign law can

W

e e be proved by producing a book purporting to be printed or published
under the authority -0t the Government of the country concerned
containing a statement of the relevant law. It may also be observed
that under Article 39 of the Qanun-e-Shahadat. an expert opinion on a
foreign law is a relevam fact and therefore. an expert can also be

%/"‘ examined.”

PL D 1972 Supreme Court 23 Titled Mst. Khair-Ul-Nisa and 6 others Vs.

Malik Muhammad Ishaque and b others.

“Written statements cannot be the exhibites in the case without the person
who filed the same being examined in the Court. The statements made in the
writien statement are not on oath. T hev are only verified and therefore. thev

cannot be treated as evidence in the case. This view finds support from the

case o L BURoss & Cou v, CL R Seriven and others.” :
2010 P Cr. L J 1832 Karachi tit'ed Mir Fayaz Ahmed Vs. The State, Para 21

is reproduced as under:

JPEE @ reading of the above case-law indicates that the Jan seems to be
souniabitity Sourt? |

X
5
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well-settled that opinion of Handwriting Expert is what it 1s 1.€. only
an opinion. Therefore. standing alone the opinion will not be sufficient

for reaching a definite conclusion as to the alleged handwriting or the
alleeed sienatures. The opinion has onlv corroborative value and
theretore unless independent corroboration is available conviction

cannot be based on sole testimony of Handwriting Expert.”

P L D 2003 Karachi 443. titled Mansoor Ahmed Qureshi Vs. The State. Para-

14| is reproduced as below:
~Where new offences are created along with corresponding
punishments or new punishment are provided for existing offences. by

virtue. of amendments o the Ordinance. they would not apply

retrospectively.”

P L D 2010 Supreme Court 1109 titled Bank of Punjab an another Vs. Haris

Sreel Industries (PVT: LTD. Para 30L is reproduced as below:
~Only an honest investication which could guarantee a fair trial and
conceiving a fair trial in the absence of an impartial and a just
investigation ofticer \-\'ould be a mere illusion and a mirage™.
BURDEN OF PROOF AND EXPLANATION BY THE ACCUSED

JETE catem ~~=y 2007MLD 210Karachi Hakim Ali Zardari Vs The State Last para at page
923 is reproduced below:

As reeards the burden of proof the normal rule of law is that an
accused is presumed to be innocent until his guilt is proved. established

and the onus of establishing the guilt is always on the prosecution. But the

rule of law laid down in s 14(¢) of the Ordinance is a departure from
normal law and under this section. a presumption of corruption and
corrupt practices is required to be drawn. if the accused or any person on
his behalt’ is in possession of pecuniary resources or property
disproportionate te his known sources of income for which sources he .
cannot satistactorily account. For shifting the burden upon accused to
account for the sources of income. the words of the statute are pre-
emptory and the burden must lie all the time on the accused to prove thé

contrary. after the conditions laid down in the earlier part of the section

'Mha\e been tultilied by the prosecution through evidence to the satisfaction -
of the Court and then the Court'is required to draw the presumption that |
‘ N ~ s . - . - ’
the accused person is guilty as provided under section 14(c) of the

Ordinance. Such presumption continues 1o hold the field unless the Court



i< satistied that the statutorn presumption has been rebutted. The onus

upon the accused is not as strict as the initial onus on the prosecution
which has first to cstablish the disproportion between the properties held
v accused and the known ?;,OU!'CCS of income. But where from the facts
the disproportion was not satisfactorily explained by the accused it cannot
he said that excessive burden was thrown on him to explain the
disproportion. A\ reference is invited to Rameswar Prasad Udhapya Vs
atate of Bihar (AR 1971 '\lL 2474). Thus. the nature. and extent of the
purden cast on the accused is that he»is not bound to prove his innocence '
bevond any reasonable doubt. but the prosecution is required to prove the
charge bevond a reasonable doubt. therefore while examining the
explanation of the accused the above principle is required to be kept in
view and if the accused is able to explain‘ the circumstances to the
satistaction of the Court then that will be enough to discharge the burden.
STANDARD OF PROOF are of three kinds.
(1) Preponderance of evidence balance of probabilities
(11) Proof bevond 2 reasonable doubt
(ir  Intermediate standards of clear and convincing evidence _

In offences u's 9 (aiv) read with section 14(c) the standard of
proof cited above as «iibfis applied.

A case reported as 2009 SCMR 790 can be referred to here.
wherein 1t is held that » 14 if NAO cannot be used to undermine the
well established rule of law that burden to proof guilt of accused
initially 1s on the prosecution and it never shifts to accused unless

discharged through cogent and reliable evidence.

2010 SCMR 1697 titled Muhammad Hashim Babar vs. the

State and other. citation a. b and ¢ are reproduced as under:

" iUis pertinent to mention here that in order to prove the
case is the duty and obligation of the prosecution to

prove the ingredients of the offence which are as
follows;

(v It must establish that the accused was holder of a
public office.

(v1) The nature and extent of the pecuniary resources

ol property which were fond in his possession.
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(vir) It must be proved as to what were his known
sources of income.

(vili) It must prove. quite objectively. that such |
resources -or property found in possession of the f
accused  wére disproportionate to his known

sources of income.

The aforesaid ingredients are proved then the offence as
defined under section Ytan vy is complete. unless the accused is able to
acceunt for such resources or property. It is also settled proposition of
law that mere possession of any pecuniary resources or property is by
itself not an offence. but failure to satisfactorily account for such
possession of pecuniany resources or property that makes the
possession objectionabic and constitutes oftence meaning there by that
if an accused cannot explain. presumption under section 14(c) of the .
Ordinance that accused is guilty of corruption and corrupt practices is
required to be drawr. dee Biswa Bhushan Naik V. State (AIR 1954
SC 350). The evidence brought on record read with the presumption
under section 14 of the said Ordinance established the charge against
the petitioner beyond any reasonable doubt. As the learned counsel of
the petitioner has tailed 1o point out any piece of evidence which was |
misread or non-read by the Courts below while rendering finding of”
cuilt against the petitioner by merely mentioning Rs. 14 lac in the
expenses head cannot discharee the onus of the petitioner to furnish
explanation with regard to having Rs. 14 lac. The explanation of
sources with regard 1o the amount meﬁtioned hereinabove is not
turnished by the petitioner as is evident from the finding of guilt ,7
recorded by the courts below 'rcpro.duced hereinabove. It is also settled
principle of law thart the initial burden of proof'is on the prosecution to
establish the possession of properties by an accused disproportionate

;
i his known sources of income to prove the charge of corruption and
corrupt practices under NAB Ordinance. 1999 and once this burden is
satisfactorily dischareed. onus is shified to the accused to prove the
contrary and give satisfactory account of holding the properties and in
case of his tailure. Coun may raise the presumption of euilt.
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2009 SCMR 790 titled Sved Qasim Shah vs. the State, citation

“c"is reproduced as under:

~Hence. notwithstanding the presumption contained in section
13(c) of the Ordinance. the initial burden of proof always rests on th_e
prosecution. 1t is weilsettled that the burden to prove all the
ingredients of the charge always lies on the prosccution and it never
shifts on to accused who can stand on the plea of innocence. assigned
to him under the law. tll it is dislodged. In other words unless he
presumption of innocence imputed to the accused is crossed out by the
force of suspicious circumstances he cannot be called upon the prove
that the charge was ["alsc or he was innocent. The prosecution.
therefore. is never absolved of from proving the charge bevond
reasonable doubt and burden shifts to the accused only when the -

prosecution succeeds in establishing the presumption of guilt.

I have heard the arguments and perused the record.

So many authorities are referred to during arguments. Therefore. -
discussion is started with a well settled principle of criminal

administration of justice that:

Each case is to be adjudged in the background of its own facts and
circumstances and fhe facts of two criminal cases seldom coincide.
Precedent will be applicable on a given case when it will be on fours to
the same (my this view is fortified by an authority reported as 2010 YLR -

230
Z 2301. Lahore).

™
N

Therefore. the background of the present case is taken first for

discussion to depict its actual picture.

BACKGROUNDS OF THE CASE:-

In vear 2016. the international consortium of investigative

Journalists released certzin information that have been hacked from

the data base of a’Panama based law firm/corporate service provider |

namely Mossack Fonseca. T1

1at information described as the Panama

as published worldwide in both print and electronic media. It

\/ reveals the names of hundreds of persons who formed offshore
COMPANIES in \arious 1y he

papers w

aven jurisdictions for obtainine secrecy

U and tax in 1y of private :
o ax immunity ef private property and wealth secured by means
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anv. showing that respondent no. |
dependents or benamidars owns, possess or has

interest therein disproportionate 1o its kn

that include monev laundering. tax evasion. fraud etc. The list was
includine the names of Heads of the States. their relatives. associates.

public officials and politictans.

In the wake of documents (Panama papers) leaked from the
record of a Panama based law firm (Mossack Fonseca). The accused
no. 1 10 5 were alleced to have connection with offshore companies.
The matter was taken up’b_\' Hon ble Supreme Court of Pakistan on the
basis ol constitution petitions filed before Hon'ble Supreme Court of
Pakistan. Accused persons also joined the proceedings before Hon ble

Supreme Court of Pakistan.

By a majority of three to two of Hon'ble Judges of Supreme
Court of Pakistan. certaih questions were {ramed. and it was held that
a thorough investication in this behalf is required. Para 2 of order

dated 20-04-2017 is reproduced below for a ready reference:-

“In normal circumstances. such exercise could be conducted by

the NAB but when i1ts Chatrman appears to be indifferent and even -
unwilling to perform his part. we are constrained to look elsewhere

and therefore. constitute a loint Investigation Team (JIT) comprising

of the following members.

A senior officer of the Federal Investigation Agency (FIA) not below |
the rank of Additional Director General who shall head the team
having first hand experience of investigation of white collar crime and
related matters.

-\ representative of the National Accountability Bureau (NAB)

A nominee of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

(SECP) familiar with the issues of money laundering and white collar -
crimes '

A nominee of the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)

A scasoned ofticer of Inter Services Intelligence (ISI) nominated by its
Director General. and

A seasoned officer of Military Intelligence (MI) nominated by its
Director General.

The JIT was authoerized 1o investigate the case and collect evidence if
(now accused no.1) or anv of his
acquired assets or any

own means of income. Respondent
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no. 1 (now accused ne.i) 7 & & (now accused no. 3 & 4) were
directed to appear and associate themselves with the JIT as and when
required. The T might glso examine the evidence and material if any
already available with the FIA and NAB relating to or having any
nexus with the possession or acquisition of the Avenfield apartments

or any other assets or pecuniary resources and their origin.

In pursuance to the order of Hon'ble Supreme Court of -

Pakistan. the foliowing members constituted the I1T:

(1) NMro Wuaid Zia. PSP, Head of JIT (Addl Director
General. FiAy

(ii) Bngadu Muhammad Nauman Saeed (R) Member (Rep.
ISh

(i) Brigadier Kamran Khursheed. Member (Rep. MI)

(i) Mr. Amir Aziz. Member (Executive Director. SBP)

(vi Mr. Bilal Rasul. Member/Secretary (Executive Director,

SECP)

(viy M. Irtan Naeem Mangi. Member (Director NAB)

The JIT was to conduct thorough investigation to answer the
following questions and other matter which is assets of accused no. 1
or any of his dependents or benamidars bevond known sources of his
income.

How did Gult steel mill come into being:

What led 10 its sale: -

What happened to its liabilities:

Where did its sale proceeds end up:

How did they reach Jeddah. Qartar and Uk:

Whether respondent no. 7 & 8. in view of their tender
ages had the means in the early nineties 1o possess and,-
purchase the flats:

Whether sudden appearance of the letters of Hamad Bin
Jasem Bin Jabar Al-Thani is a myth or a reality:

How bearer shares crystallized into the flats:

Who infact is the real and beneficial owner of Mfs

Nveison an rrises Limited and Nescoll Limited:

How did }‘ It metal establishment come Into existence:



Where did the monev for flagship investment limited
and other companies set up:taken over by respondent no.
& come {rom. and

Where did the working capital by such companies come’
from and

Where do the huge sums running into millions gifted by
respondent no.” (accused Hussain Nawaz) to respondent'i
no. 1 taccused Mian Muhammad Nawz Sharif) drop in

from:

HT iniuated investication on 08-05-2017 and the final
investigation report comprising on ten plus two volumes was filed by

the IT on 10-G7-201"7.

In final order dated 28-07-2017 Hon’ble Supreme Court of
Pukistan directed the NAB to prepare and file before the
Accountability Court Rawalpindi-Islamabad the following references
on the basis of the material collected and referred to by the JIT in its
report and such other material-as mayv be available with the Federal
Investigation Agency (I'IA) and NAB having anv nexus with assets

mentioned  below or which may subsequently become available
M including material that may come before it pursuant to the Mutual
/ Legal Assistance requesis sent by the JITto different jurisdictions:-

_— j (a) Reference against Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif.
W (rcsﬁomlem ne. 1). Marvam Nawaz Sharif (Marvam
Satdar) (respondent no.6). Hussain Nawaz Sharif-
(respondent no. 7). Hassan Nawaz Sharif (respondent
no. & and Capt. Retd Muhammad Safdar
trespondent no. 91 relating to the  Avenfield
properties (Flat no. 16.16-A.17.17-A Avenfield
[-Iousc."]’:n'k Lane. London. UK). In preparing and
filing this reference. the NAB shall also consider the

material already collected durine the course of

investications conducted earlier. as indicated in the
!

detatted judement.

P s X ]
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(by Reterence against respondent no. 1.7 & 8 regarding
Azizia Steel Company and Hill Metal Establishment,_
as indicated in the mainjudgment..v

(¢) Reference against respondent no. 1.7 & 8 regarding
the Companies mentioned in paragraph 9 of the -
judgment unanimously rendered by Mr. Justice Ejaz
Atzal Khan, Mr. Justice Sh. Azmat Saeed and Mr.

Justice 1uz ul Ahsan.

In pursuance of direction of Hon'ble Supreme Court of
Pakistan. NAB filed first interim reference against five accused in
respect of Avenfield apartments no 16. 16-A. 17 & 17-A. Park
Lane. London with the allegation that accused failed to justifv
legal bonatide sources means for purchase of said property.

After supphy of cbpies 'oti the reference. a charge was framed
which was subsequent)y amended the last charge framed in this

reference is reproducced below;

TRy

CHARGE SHEET

—1. Mian Muhammad Nawaz Shahrif son of Muhammad Sharif, aged about 69

vears. resident of Shamim Farms. Jati Umra. Raiwind Road. Lahore. A
Maryam Nawaz (Marvam Safdar) Daughter of Mian Muhammad Nawaz
+--" Sharif. aged about 43 years, resident of Shamim Farms. Jati Umra. Raiwind
Road. Lahore.

Captain (Retd.) Muhammad Safdar. son of Muhammad Ishaq. aged about
34 vears. resident of Shamim Farms. Jati Umra. Raiwind Road. Lahore.

‘s
B

ABSCONDING ACCUSED

4. Hussain Nawaz Sharif s/o Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif, aged about 45
years. resident of Shamim !"n'ans. Jati Umra. Raiwind Road. Lahore.

Hassan Nawaz Sharif s/o Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif, aged about 41
years. resident of Shamim Farms. Jati Umra. Raiwind Road. Lahore.

h

"I (Muhammad Bashir. Judge,  Accountability Court-I,

Islamabad) hereby charge vou above named accused No. 1 to 3. as under
that:

You accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif were holder of public
office. You and vour family dependants are . owner in possession of

Avenfield"May fair Properties namely Apartment No. 16.16A. 17 & 17A Park



Lane London and those ﬂ:n; were in possession of vou and yvour family since
1993, Source of investment for purchase of said properties through offshore
companies M's Niclsen Enterprises Lid and M/s Nescoll Ltd which owned
the said Avenfield Apartment is not justified and bearer shares of said

companies were crystaliized into the said property.

You accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Marvam Nawaz and
absconding accused Hussain Nawaz. and Hassan Nawaz failed to justify

legals bonafide sources ‘means tor purchase of said property.

You accused Marvam Nawaz was beneficial owner of above
mentioned companies which ownled Avenfield Properties. A false. fabricated
trust deed dated 02-02-2006 in Calibri Font was filed whereas no such Font
was available for such purposes of that deed in that vear. That deed was
signed by vou accused Marvam Nuawaz as well as vou co-accused Capt Retd.
Muhammad Safdar. signature of you accused Capt (Retd) Muhammad Safdar
was as a wimess. By filing such declaration. vou both allegedly tried to
mislead the investigation agency.

R T T L S
EREIE N

You Marvam Nawaz Shari{ accused consciously concealed the actual

facts regarding history of ownership of the said assets and the companies and
there is tailure on part of vou all accused including absconding accused to

account for sources means availability of fund and its lawful transfer abroad.

e,

‘ % Absconding accused had also no source of income at relevant time.
% l

Thereby vou accused NMian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif. Marvam
Nawaz Si

defined under section 9 ra)ivyivi&(xii) as per details given above and

urif and Capt. (Retd.) Muhammad Safdar committed offences as

offences cited at serial No. 02 of the schedule and punishable under section

FO OFNAO 1999 read with schedule attached thereto.

And T hereby direct that v ou be tried by this Court on the said charee™

The accused facing trial pleaded not guilty to the charge. however they

satd that charge is groundless and investigation was'conducted with malafide

and is politicallv motivated, They are being denied their fundamental right to
tair ial cuaranteed by Amicle (0.4 of the Constitution. on the basis of
mtenm reference as well as the directions eiven by the Honble Supreme

- Court of Pakistan in the tinal order dated 28-07-2017 and the adverse

: TN ot
- 1(5(/“\\\., observations made in i order dated 07-11-2017. Their rights.
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euaranteed under Article 23 of the Constitution as well as right to bch'
rreated in accordance with law under Article 4 of the Constitution are
heine violated because of unprecedented directions for conclusion of
proceedings and decision of the case within 06 months and the

appointment of Monitoring Jludge. especially for this case. They shall

produce defence if required in the case.

Prosccution has produced eighteen witnesses in the case. The-

. . . . A
charee is framed u s 9 (ayiviv)&xii) and offence cited at serial No. 02
of the schedule and punishable under section 10 of NAO 1999 read with
schedule attached thereto. The relevant provisions of law are reproduced

below for a ready reference:

Section 9 (a) a holdér of a public office or any other person is said to -

commit or 1o have committed the oftence of corruption and corrupt practices.

R oloics SRLRRREREPERS

1w e N RS

(1v) 11 he by corrupt. dishonest. or' iflegal means. obtains or seeks to obtain for
nnselt. or for his spouse [...] or tdcpendents or any other peson. any property.
valuable thing. or pecuniary advantage: or

g

{v) if he or any of his dependenis or benamidars owns. possesses. or has
[acquired] right or title in any [assets or holds irrevocable power of attorney in
respect of any assets] or pecuniary resources disproportionate to his known

sources of income. which he cannot [reasonably] account for [or mantains a -
standard of living. bevond that which is commensurate with his sources of .

income}

Section 14 (¢) NAO 1999 In any tial of an offence punishable under [clause (v) |

of sub-section (a) of section 9 of] this Ordinance. the fact that the accused person
or any other person on his behalf. is in possession. for which the accused person

cannot satistactorily account. of assets or pecuniary resources disproportionate to-

his known sources of income. or that such person has. at or about the time of the
commission of' the offence with which he is charged. obtained an accretion to his
pecuniary resources or property for which he cannot satisfactorily account. the
Court shall presume. uniess the contrary is proved. that the accused person is
cuilty of oftfence.

Article 122 of the Qanoon e Shahadat Order 1984, burden of proving
fact especially within knowledee. When any fact is especially within the
knewledge of any person the burden of proving that fact is upon him.

. .-\gicle 129 of Qanoon ¢ Shahadat Order 1984. Court may presume
existence Ql certain facts. The court may presume the existence of anv fact
which it thinks likely 10 have happened. recard being had to the common Eourse

[~ B R ) g . .
or natural events. human conduer and public and private business. in their

relation to the facts of the particuiar case.

b
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ILLUSTRATIONS

The court may presume--

(0 ceernnnns . ’ .
(g) That evidence which could be and is not produceq would. if
‘ produced. the unfavorable to the person who withholds it

THE POINTS FOR DETERMINATION

I. BURDEN OF PROOF _AND REOQUIREMENT OF.
EXPLANATION BY THE ACCUSED

There are three tyvpes of Standard of proof required cases.
(1) Preponderance of evidence balance of probabilities
{i1) Proof bevond a reasonable doubt.
tiih Intermediate standard is'ol clear and convincing evidence.

-\ case reported as 2007 MLD 210Karachi titled as Hakim Ali Zardari,
V's The State can be referred to on the subject above.

Last para of page 923 of the said authority is reproduced below:

As regards the burden of proof. the normal rule of law is that an
accused s presumed 1o be mnocent until his guilt is proved. established
and the onus of establishing the euiltis always on the prosecution. But the - »

ATTTEZTIOTINTOTNY fude of law laid down in s I4(c) of the Ordinance is a departure from -
normal law and under this section. a presumption of corruption and =
corTupt practices is required to be drawn. if the accused or any person on
us  behalf is in possession of pecuniary resources or property
disproportionate to his known sources of income for which sources he

" zzunT.e cannot satisfactorily account. For shifting the burden upon accused to -
. ' account for the sources of income. the words of the- statute are pre-
emprory and the burden must lie all the time on the accused to prove the

% contrary. after the conditions laid down in the earlier part of the section
ﬁ’/ have been fultilled by the prosecution through evidence to the satisfaction
of the Court and then the Court is required to draw the presumption that

the accused person is guilty as provided under section 14(c) of the

Ordinance. Such presumption continues to hold the field unless the Court -

1s satisfied that the Statutory presumption has been rebutted. The onus

upen the accused is not as swrict as the initial onus on the prosecution

which has first to establish the disproportion between the properties held -

by accused and the known sources of income. But where from the facts’

the disproportion was not satisfactorily explained by the accused it cannot

be said that excessive burden was thrown on him to explain the
disproportion.

2010 SCMR 1697 (titled Muhammad Hashj;
other). Relevant portion is reproduced as under:

!

" iLs pertinent to mention here that in order to prove the case is
the duty and obl; 2ation of the prosecution to prove the

m Babar vs. the State and
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ingredients of the oftence which are as follows:

(ix) [t must establish that the accused was holder of a
public office.

(x) The nature and extent of the pecuniary resources
of property which were found in his possession. -

(x1) It must be proved as to what were his known
sources of income.

(xil) It must prove. quite objectively. that such
resourcees or property found in possession of the
accused were disproportionate to his known
sources of income.

o~ . - ! .

The aforesaid ingredients are proved then the offence as
defined under section Yhawv) is complete. unless the accused is able to
account for such resources or property. It is also settled proposition of
law that mere possession of any pecuniary resources or property is by
itself not an offence. but failure to satisfactorily account for such
possession of pecuniary resources or property that makes the
possession objectionable and constitutes offence meaning there by that
if an accused cannot explain. presumption under section 14(c) of the

Ordinance that accused is guilty of corruption and corrupt practices is

required to be drawn.

It is also settled principle of law that the initial burden of proof

s on the prosecution to establish the possession of properties bv an .

accused disproportionate 10 his known sources of income to prove the .

charge of corruption and corrupt practices under NAB Ordinance, -

1999 and once this burden is satisfactorily discharged. onus is shifted

to the accused to prove the contrary and give satisfactory account. of

holding the properties and in case of his failure. Court may raise the

presumption ot guilt.

PROOF OF FACTS

According to Article 2.(4) Qanoon-e-Shahadat Order. 1984. a ‘ 
fact is said to be proved when. after considering the matters before it
the court either believes it to exist. or consider its existence so
probable that @ prudert man ought. under the circumstances of the

particular case. to act upon the supposition that it exists.

Fhe word “maiters™ has been used instead of evidence for
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consideration in respect of proof of a fact. In this regard a case
reported as 2016 MLD 1411 (Lahore) Mst. Bakhat Bibi Vs.
Muhammad Aslam can be referred to. Wherein it is observed that the
expression “matters before it” being a term wider than “evidence™.

[he court has 10 necessanly co through the entire record before it

including pleadings and demeanors of the witnesses.

One of the allegations in the present matter is that the offshore
companies in wax heavens are used in purchase of Avenfield

Apartments.

The accused namelv Hassan Nawaz and Hussain Nawaz has
taken stance that Aventicld Apartments were belonging to two
offshore companies Nielson Enterprises and Nescoll Ltd and their

bearer shares were handed over by Qatari Roval Family in settlement. -
JT has conducted investigation in this regard.

First responses of MLAs requests are taken into consideration.

It 15 noteworthy here that Section 21 of NAO pertains to MLASs

matters. Wajid Zia in his statement recorded as PW-16 has stated that

e e amm gy o o am ,.,.;,\7
ETTIUTTDYC

T requested and got a notitication issued for powers as conferred by
Section 21 of NAO. 1999, that notification is ExX.PW-16/3 (Page 28

interim reference volume -I) and he being head of the JIT was"

AN authorized to exercise the powers conferred u/s 21 of NAO 1999, He

W wrote letters of request to United Kingdom, British Virgin Island.
é/ Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. United Arab Emirates etc.

Certain documents win respect of Avenfield Properties were

received subsequent 1o submission -of report of JIT before Hon'ble

Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Mr. Zahir Shah Director General Operations NAB HQ
produced documents received in response to MLA request sent by JIT.
Those documents which were penaining to Avenfield properties are

available as Exh PW 172 10 Exh PW17/10 (under objection that those

are neither nor attested in accordance with law. The handing over of

those documents is also disputed as person Osman is not produced in

{z L (\ the court. and that the statement of this witness hearsav that
o .‘,,__bfu 7’ iﬁwn.

r . .v__,r.~.
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documents were handed over to him by that person. CO: In fact this
PW is high ranked ofticer and has given statement on oath it is not
hearsay that documents were handed over to him by that person. He is
stating the fact which he himself observed. Objections raised during
examination of this witness are overruled). So far as objection in
respect of documents Exh PW 1772 10 Exh PW 1710 that PW is not
recipient. scribe.  exccutants and documents are redacted are

concerned. S 21 (21 of NAO 1999 is required to be interpreted ion this

-
pes

recard:

S 21 (g2) says: Notwithstanding anything - contained in the
Qanoon e Shahadat Order 1984 (P.O 10 of 1984) or any other
law for the time being in force all evidence, documents or any
other material transferred to Pakistan by a Foreign Government -
shall be receivable as evidence in legal proceedings under this
Ordinance

It clearly indicates that despite the other laws. the documents
ctc are receivable as evidence in the legal proceedings under this
Ordinance. The requirement of s 89 (3) QSO is not required probabl\"
for the reason documents are considered authentic as transferred from

other Government. Generally such documents are redacted. The term

P LR AR S A LV
o et

“receivable as evidence in legal proceedings™ is also very significant.

The term “receivable as evidence in legal proceedings™ is used to say

that evidence is not detgcted in respect of admissibility, relevance and -

o270 iosugrn, materiality. The term “evidencel is used that it generate the proof.

W Therefore. response of MLA cannot be brushacite simplyv on technical
;/ grounds particularly when legislature itself has made it receivable as

evidence in legal proceedings.

According te those documents/official copy of register of title. -
absolute title (31-67-1993) of flat no. 16 avenfield house Park Lane.
London is with Neilson Enterprises Limited care of M/s while. title
absolute (31-07-1993 of fiat no. 16-a avenfield house Park Lane,
London is with Neilson Enterprises Limited similarly title absolute
(01-06-1993) of flat no. 17 avenfield house Park Lane. London
proprictor Nescoll Limited care of Dibb Lumton Broomhead.
Absolute title (23-07-1 \?‘56» of flat no. 17-a avenfield house Park Lane.

U!\ London car parking space is with proprietor Nescoll Limited care of

. . - Ll
s Sy Toqrtad

-
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Dibb Lumton Brumhead.

These documents show that the flats came into ownership of
Neilson and Nescoll during the vears 1993. 1995 and 1996, It is also
noteworthy here that Wajid Zia PW 16 was also asked about
Avenfield Properties and he has given those details in cross
examination as such that “As per official copy of register of title
(EX.PW-16 39 pe-73.76, CMA 7331°2016) it is mentioned under title
absolute "01.(\.1993 proprictor Nescoll Ltd. care of Dibb Lupton
Broomhead™. The said ofiicial copy of register of title pertains to Flat
No. 17, As per official copy of register of title (Ex.P\WV-16/40 pe-77-
78 CMA 733120169 it is mentioned under caption. “title absolute
23.7.1996 proprietor Nescoll Lid. care of Dibb Lupton Broomheagl
23 London Wall. London EC2Y SALE". The said official copy of
register of title pertains 1o Fla No. 17-A. As per official copy of
register of title (Ex.PW-16 4] pe-79-80. CMA 753172016) it is
mentioned under caption. “title absolute™ “31.7.1995 proprietor
Nielsen Enterprises I.td care ot Messrs Dibb Lupton Broomhead 123
London Wall. London ECDY SAE". The said official copy of register -
of title pertains to Flat \o. 16-A. As per official copy of register of |
title (Ex.PW-16.42 pe-81-82. CMA 7331°2016) it is mentioned under
caption. “title absolute™ 31 7 993 proprietor Nielsen Enterprises Ltd
care of Messrs Dibb‘ Lupton Broomhead 123 London Wall. London
EC2Y SAE”". The documents exhibited by PW-16 from CMA No. -
331 2016 were objected ar the time of there exhibition that those are
attested photocopy of copy. Firstly. this objection s not acceptable as
documents in response 1o MLA has been recejved. So much so-those
documents are availghie on CMA No. 733112016 filed by accused
Marvam Nawaz and abyconding aceused. (Objections in respect of

Ex.PW-1639 0 Ex.PW-16 32 are overruled).

It is established now that the documents are reliable and it s
established that Aventield Apartments had become ownership of

Neilsen Enterprises Lid and Nescoll Lid during the vear 1993 1o 1996.

PW Wajid Zia has produced attested copy of letter of Financia]
Investigation Agency, Photocopies of which are available at pe-8 and

"2 Yon volume CMA NOC TN I6(A) which are ExPW-16:48.

I £ 2]
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Attested copy is returned o witness.

A letter dated 12..06.2012 from Director of Financial Investigation
Agency Mr. Errel Jeorge addressed to Money Laundering Reporting
Otticer Mossack Fonseca and Company seeking information about
Nescoll and Neilsen Lid. In CP-29:2016 at pg 37. (Ex.PW-16/49) is the
response of Mossack Fonseca dated 22.06.2012 regarding Nescoll Ltc.ir_
whereas at pg 38 (Ex.PW-i6 30) is their response regarding Neilsen
Enterprises. In response 1o the MLA the BVI Authorities have responded .
vide their covering letter. which is Ex.PW-16/79 (Original seen and
returned back). has enclosed the response of Financial Investigation
Agency which is placed at pe 32 10 pg 56 Volume 1V (already exhibited
under objection as Ex PW-16 -2 10 Ex.PW-16/73) which confirmed and
certified the copies of documents 5ttached i.e. from Director FIA to
Mossack Fonseca dated 12.06.°01> regarding Neilsen and Nescoll and
the response from Mossack Fonseca dated 22.06.2012 responding to
queries raised by FIA (Financial Investigation Agency). it also confirmed
that the FIA received the reply from Mossack Fonseca regarding Nescoll
Lid through its letter dated 22-06-2012. The response from Mossack
Fonseca regarding Nescoll Ltd duly certified bv FIA states that basing on
their due diligence record. the beneficial owner of the company is

Maryam Safdar and provides the address of Saroor Palace Jeddah. It also

-, States that they did not have amy names of trustees. beneficiaries of any

trust'concerned with this company. Similarly. the response from Mossack
Fonseca regarding Neilson ['td duly certified by FIA states that basing on
their due diligence record. the beneficial owner of the company is

Maryam Safdar and provides te address of Saroor Palace Jeddah.

(The different objections were raised in respect of above said
documents that the attested copy produced by the witness is attestation of

u photocopy. the document is not attested in accordance with article 89(5)

of Qanoon-e-Shahadat order 1984, witness is deposing about contents of

document of which he is not the author or addressee the same is

imadmissible in evidence).
(CO: In fact the witness i producing attested copies of a letter which

was subsequently confirmed by the concerned authority through MLA

equest. Moreover. stating of contents at the most can be said as
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undesirable and not as inadmissible. Moreover. witness has to give some .
explanation in his statement aBout the documents and this e.\'planatiop V
cannot be discarded unless and until it is found contrary to the contents of
the documents. It is also immaterial whether he is not author or addressee

of the documents because he is stating on the basis of response of MLA.

All the objections stated above are overruled.

The lenter dated 04.07.2017. Ex.PW-16/79 available at pg 241 of
Volume IV shows that Attorney General Government of Virgin Island
was contacted by HT 1hrouoh MLA and Erel George Director FIA BVI .
has confirmed certain thm&x that a letter dated 12.12.2012 bearing
reference No. SAR 1478 was lsmed by FIA BVI signed by R. Erel
George Director. the above said letter - document was received to JIT in
response of its MLA request sent to Attornev General Virgin Island. It
can be taken into consideration within the meaning of section 21(g) of
NAO. 1999,

The other objections were raised that there is no seal. stamps and
authentications therefore. it is not receivable in evidence. Such seal and
- stamp are required under schedule (i) FIA Act 2003. when a document is

executed by the Agency. Diligent record is not available on file,

In cross examination so many questions were put on the witness
regarding MLA Requests. photocopies of which are placed on file. The
' bbjection that copy of which was not supplied to the accused has not
,M;M caused prejudice to the case of the accused. On this objection the

&/ document stated above cannot be discarded from evidence. CO: these
objections are considered but as discussed above that 21 (g) NAO has
eNcluded the application of Qanoon ¢ Shahadat Order 1984 by using term -
notwithstanding any other law. Moreover wnness has been asked so many
questions during cross examination. Photocoples of MLAs sent by
witness are also placed on file. Nop supply of any MLA has not prejudice
the case of the accused and document cannot be discarded which is
eceived in response of MLA. Diligent record if not annexed the accused

Marvam Nawaz can produce record to rebut the ML A response.

A specific question (No. 1001 in this regard was put on the accused

during her statement recorded u < 542

N

Cr.P.C. certain technical objections
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- were recorded in it. No document to contradict the documents exhibited

above was produced by the accused Marvam Nawaz. It is worth
mentioning that offshore companies are incorporated in tax heavens and

the money is concealed hehind veils of secrecy and it is extremely

difticult to lift those veils ot secrecy.

When the documents produced by the witness has established that .

:
accused Marvam Nawaz is beneficial owner of the companies. She is also -
claiming herself as trustee of those companies. She must have produced
the documents if any to prove the contrary. meaning thereby that she had
no such document and she is beneficial owner of said companies as

shown in above documents.

A letter dated 3.12.2003 Exh PW16/52 of Assistant General
Manager SAMBA financial group to Minerva service limited shows that
Marvam Muhammad Safdar is one of their valued customer in SAMBA.
her address of Saroor Palace Jeddah was given in that letter. This letter is
indicating that accused \arvam Safdar is connected with avenfield
apartments before 2006. To rebut this assertion accused Maryam Nawaz

should have placed detailed documents of both the companies.

e Ty

CMAs

HT has also collected and considered the documents of .CMAs'

filed by the accused and also recorded statement of the

witnesses accused.

In CMA 7531 dated 15.11.2017 Exh PW16/4. PW16 Wajid Zia
has stated that the’ explanation to the poséession and acquisition of
avenfield apartments was given in supplementary concise statement
contained in CMA 7331 dated 15.11.2017. that CMA was on behalf of
accused Maryam Safdar. Hussain Nawaz Sharif and Hassan Nawaz
Sharif. It was explained that a Steel Factory by the name of Gulf Steel
was established by the Jate Mr. Muhammad Sharif. the father of -
accused Muhammad Nawaz Sharif in 1974, that the said Steel Mj]

was run by Mr. Tariq Shali as its owner whereas the real owner was .
Mr. Muhammad Shariy, 730, of shares of Gulf Steel Mills were sold
tor a consideration of 2} million Abu Dhabi Dhiram (AED). which

were paid directiy to BCCY for settlement of the loan liability and
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another agreement was signed with the purchaser Mr. Abdullah
Ahli who became,a partner of 75% whereas Mr. Tariq Shafi
became the partner of 23° of the shares in Ahli Steel Mills
(previous name Gulf Steel Mills). In 1980 Mr. Tariq Shafi on
behalf of Mr. Muhammad Sharif sold 25% shares that he sold to
Mr. Ahli for a consideration of 12 million AED which were
invested with the Qattery Roval Family. The Qattery Roval Family
had purchased the above said Apartments in question through
companies Neilsen and Nescoll and the sons of accused Mian
Muhammad Nawaz Sharit started living in those apartments.
payving the zround rent and services charges. That in vear 2006 a
settlement between er. Huss!ain Nawaz Sharif and the Qattery
Royal (Prince Hammad Bin Jasim Althani) resulted in the change
of the ownership of the flats in question through handing over the
bearer shares to ;\{r'. Hussain Nawaz accused. who has since then
been the beneficial owner of these apartments in question. That |
accused Maryam Safdar became a trustee for Mr. Hussain

beneficiary in pursuance of a trust deed that was signed in 2006.

i Objection was raised when the above document was exhibited

on the ground that the witness is neither scribe nor executant and

he cannot prove such documents.

In this regard article 76. of Qanoon e Shakiadat is reproduced

below:

Cases in which secondary evidence relating to document may
be given—secondary evidence may be given of the existence.

condition or contents. of a document in the following cases:-

(a) When the original is shown or appears to be in the possession or
power of the person against whom the document is sought to be
proved. or of any person out of reach of. or not subject to the process
of the Court: or of am person legally bound to produce it and when
En'tcr the notice mentioned in Article 77. such person does not produce
11: .

tb) When the existence. condition or contents of the original have been
proved 10 be admitted in w riting by the person against whom it is
proved or by his representative-in-interest: } :

() \\_"hen the original has heen destroved or lost. or when the party
utlering evidence of its contents cannot. for any other reason not

arising from his own default or neglect produce it in reasonable time-



(d) When. due to the volume or bulk of the original copies thereof have
been made by mean of' microfilming or other modern devices:

(e) When the or'igina! 1s of such a nature as not to be easily movable;

(1 When the original is a public document within the meaning of Article
33: ' '

(2) When the original is a document of which a certified copy is

) permitted by this Order or by any other law in force in Pakistan to be
given in evidence:

(h) When the originals consists of numerous accounts or other documents

which cannot conveniently be examined in Court. and the fact to be

proved is the general result of the whole collection:

When an original document forming part of a Judicial record is not

available and onlv a certified copy thereof is available. certified copy

of that certified copy shall also be admissible as a secondary evidence.

—
—

Article 77 Rules 'as to notice to produce:- secondary evidence
of the contents of the documents referred to in Article 76 paragraph (a) .
shall not be given unless the party proposing to give such secondary
evidence has previously given 1o the party in whose possession or
power the document is. or 1o his advocate. such notice to produce it as
is prescribed by law: and if no notice is prescribed by law then such
hotice as the Court considers reasonable under the circumstances of
the case: | :
Provided that such notice shall not be required in order to
render secondarv evidence admissible in any of the following cases, or
in any other case in which the Court thinks fit to dispense with it.
(1) when the document to be proved is itself a notice . :
(2) when. from the nature of the case. the adverse party must know |
that he will be required 10 produce it:
(3) When it appears ar i proved that the adverse party has obtained
possession of the original by fraud or force:
(+) When the adverse party or his agent has the original in court:

. . (3) When the adverse party or his agent has admitted the loss of the
W document:

ﬁ/ (6) When the Persen in possession of the document is out of

reach of. or not subject to. the process of the Court.

Section 89:- Proof of other public documents:- The following public
documents mat be proved as follows:

(3) public documents of &y other class in a foreign country. by the
original. or by g copy certified by the legal keeper thereof, with a
certificate under the seq] of'a Notarv public. or of a Pakistan'counsel
or diplomatic agent. that the copy is duly certified by the officer
having the legal custody  of the original. and upon broof of the
character of the document according to the law of foreign country,

In view of ahove provision, secondary evidence of document
can be given in cases w hen original is in custody of opposite party. In
“Crain cases notice gs required Article 77 cap also be dispense with.

In view of the nature of this case firstly he document is being referred

from the C\1A filed by ihe accused

and attested copy of judicial

S Cwﬁpprd Is admissible in evidence. There is aise ne need 1o prove such
V L’ .\' i 17 Y
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document as required under provisions of Qanoon e Shahadat Order
because facts in issue to be proved in the present case are not the
contents of a written instruments but independent facts. The above

said document is being used as collateral. When the contents of a
document are not in is?suc but a document is brought on file as
collateral the strict procedure of its proof is not required. Learned
defence counsels have also raised objections in respect of documents
exhibited during examination in chief of similar nature. All the
objections raised by defence in respect of exhibited documents stands

overruled.

A number of documents were also filed with CMA 432 to

elaborate money trail and that CMA was filed by accused Hussain

Nawaz and Hassan Nawaz on 26.01.2017. Copv of affidavit of M.

Tariq Shafi dated 12.11.2016 was also annexed with CMA 7531Exh

PWI16'5 (same objection was taken that witness IS not scribe.-r

executants and subscriber and the deponent is not the witness. this

objection is also overruled on the reason stated above). the other

affidavit o’ Tariq Shati is also annexed with concise statement in

CMA 432 (Exh PW16 6) (under same objection as a bove/ overruled).,"

TR TERRELseY T found contradictions and anomalies those arte mentioned at pages
310 21 vol 3. Wajid Zia PW16 has further explained that Guif Steel
Mill was set up with zero equity and 100% loan as per para 7 of the

said affidavit shows. Tariq Shafi and other witnesses had failed to

el Rl explain that there was no equity involved and he was not a working

W partner then what was his role in setting of Gulf Steel Mills. Share sale

é/ agreement Exh PW 16 " shows three parties Muhammad Shafi, Ahli
and BCCI. All sale proceeds of]! million AED were to go to BCCI.
After pavment 1o BCCI still about 14 million AED of liabilities were
outstanding against Gulf' Steel Mills. these liabilities were the
responsibilities of Tarig Shafi who was running under the real
ownership of Mr. Muhammad Sharif. These included another about 6
million  AED owed 10 BCCI. while the remaining two utility -
companies like Water and Electricity charges. Share sale agreement of

23% was also found bogus by the I1T on the basis of response to MLA

fequest sent to UAL. It does not matter that agreement of 1980 was

N - - 4 -
senuine or not for the reason that if any consideration was recejved
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that was to be utilized 1o clear the liabilities. The assertion of the
accused Hassan and Hussain is that. that 12 million AED were
invested with Qatter_\‘! Roval family is not acceptable in the
circumstances shown by them. Two letters of roval families were -
presented before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan when those
letters are analvzed those could not establish that investment was
made by Muhammad Sharif with Roval family through Tariq Shafi.

No details are given in those letters as alleged.

Learned defence counsel has raised so many objections on the
crounds that certain portion of the statement of PW16 is opinion.
analvses. speculative and argumentative. He also referred so many
authorities that op‘inion of 10 is not admissible. The reason in those
authorities is that generally in our set up 10s are not experts. While
HT was consttuted wt hich level by Hon’ble Supreme Court of
Pakistan. 30 to 40 experts assisted the JIT as stated by PW 16 in cross-
examination. This court has already given opinion that report of the
JIT is not binding on the court but same can be considered, if it is
convincing and found based on reliable documents/material that

opinion can be accepted and relied upon.

Moreover. the wimess has to say something about the
documents for the purpgses of explanation of evidence. as it is noted
above that when a document is_being used for collateral purposes .

there is no neced 10 prove it. All the objections raised during

examination are hereby overruled.

JIT tried 1o record the statement of Hamad Bin Jasim AlThani
member of Qattery Roval Famliv too but he was not cooperative with

the JIT. He was asked 1o provide relevant documents. record and

material. He was asking for questionnaire. No questionnaire in fact

could be prepared for relevant material. record and documents because

LY '
tf any such document. maierial and record was available Hamad Bin

Jasim. He was the best persen who could enlist those documents

material. Sending ol anv such questionnaire would mean to confine

the scope of JIT in that mfatter.

T Cauren
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Accused have not gci;'p recorded statement of Hamad Bin Jasim

. - -
in the court. His statement could be got recorded through videolink.

As regards possession of Avenfield apartments, prosecution has
produced cd/dvd of speeches and interviews of the accused and their -
transcripts. So far as such evidence is concerned, those are admissiblg |
during trial within the meaning of Article 2(e)/164 Qanonn € Shahadat
Order 1984. Evidence procured through modern devices as mobile
phone data. tape recorded. video recording/cd/dvd are admissible in
cvidence during trial. CD and transcript of interview of Hussain
Nawaz in program “kal tak™ express news are Exh PW09/10 and Exh
PW09/09. (Objection of defencé is that Hussain Nawaz is neither a
witness in this case nor he is accused present before the court. thi§ :
objection is overruled for the reason that the said accused 'is. ,
absconding, evidence in his absence can be recorded). Similarly cd of
address to National Assembly of Mian Nawaz Sharif is Exh PW 09/11
and its transcription is Exh PW09/08. (Objection of defence is that by
virtue of Article 66 of the constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan
speech of Nawaz Sharif is in admissible. Keeping in view that accused
Mian Nawaz Sharif delivered l;is speech to explain the financial
sources that were used to purchase and it was aired for nation. It was
also an address to the nation. Therefore, Article 66 of the constitution
is not applicable on such speech). CD’s as well as transcripts were
handed over to accused Mian Nawaz Sharif. CD and transcript of
interview of Hassan Nawaz with Tim Sebestian in hard talk are Exh
PW10/04 and Exh PW 10/05. Transcripts Capital talk is Exh PW11/03
and transcript of program “Lekin™ is Exh PW 11/04 and one dvd Exh

PwO1/5 were produced by senior coordinator Geo news Islamabad.

Questions were also asked in respect of the said CD’s, DVD
and transcripts u.s 342 CrPC. Questions and their answers of Mian

Nawaz Sharif and Maryam Safdar are rcproduced below respectively. |

It is in evidence that vou accused delivered speech as address to
Nation aired on 05.04.2016, CD of which is Ex.PW-9/11 and
transcript is Ex.PW-9/7 wherein you had inter-alia stated that sale

proceeds of Dubai Factory was utilized for factory in Jeddah and
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Teddah Factory was sold for 64 Million Rivals (17 millions Dollars)

and those were the sources for purchase of London Flats. What do vou

say about said docyments and vour speech?’

The speech made by me as address to the Nation on 5.04.2016 was
based on copies of the various agreements and related documents
pertaining to Dubai Factory and another agreement relating to Azizia
Steel Co. and the information shared with me by Hussain Nawaz
Sharif and not on my personal knowledge. In-fact as already submitted*

by me in reply to the earlier questions I had never participated in any
of the transactions pertaining to Dubai Factory including its sale and
subsequent use - disposal of its sale ﬁroceeds. Similar is my position
with respect 1o the establishment. running. operation and sale of
Azizia Steel Mill Co. These facts stand un-contradicted and
uncontroverted by any evidence produced bv the prosecution in the -
instant case. I may add here that I never stated in either my address to

the nation or speech in the National Assembly that I was ever the real

vwner or beneticial owner of Avenfield Properties. Rather it had been
my consistent stand that I am not the real or beneficial or benami
owner of Avenfield Properties and that I never owned/held any bearer |
or shares certificate of Nescoll Lid and Nielsen Enterprises Ltd. I may .
add here that the prosecution has miserably failed to bring on record

any evidence to even remiotely establish anything to the contrary.

[t is in evidence thar Hussain Nawaz (absconding accused) gave
interview. his that interview with Hamid Mir in program Capital Talk
aired by GEO News on ]!’).01.2016. CD of which is Ex.PW-11/5 and -
transeript is Ex. PW-11 3. Wherein inter-alia he has stated that Park .
lane Apartments were purchased from the income of sale of factory in

RSA. What do you sav about said documents and that interview?

It is for Hussain Nawaz 1o explain. As stated by me in answer to the
previous question I'was never involved in nor have any personal

knowledge regarding purchase of Avenfield Properties.

It is in evidence that Hassan Nawaz (abscondine: accused) gave
mterview aired on BBC in November 1999 His interview bv Tim

Sebastian in program HARD TALK in shape of CD is Ex. PW-10/4
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and transcript is Ex.PW-10'3. Wherein he has inter-alia stated that he
is living in Park Lane Flats on rent and amount of quarterlv rent

received from Pakistan and he did not know who own these flats.

What do vou sayv about said documents and that interview?

It is for Hassan Nawaz to explain. However it is known fact that my
father was looking after the entire familv and providing for their
expenses and even fixing the per month pocket money for each of the

family member and he continued to do so throughout his life time.

[tis in evidence that Hussain Nawaz Sharif (absconding accused) gave
interview aired by Express TV on 07.03.2016. His interview by Javed
Chaudhary in shape of CD Ex. PW-9/10 and Transcript Ex.PW-9/9
were produced by PW-9. He Hussain Nawaz has inter-alia stated that
Park Lane Apartments are belonging to them. offshore Companies
Nescoll Ltd. and Nielsen Enterprises Ltd own them/apartments and he
1s beneficial owner of these companies and his sister Marvam Safdar

is holding those offshore companies through a trust deed. What do -

yvou say about said documents and that interview?

Itis for Hussain Nawaz to explain. As I have already submitted by me
that T have no personal knowledge in this regard. nor was [ ever
involved or associated in the purchase of Avenfield Properties or in

their management or main!tenance.

[t is in evidence that vour father accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz
Sharif delivered speech as address to Nation. aired on 05.04.2016. CD
of which is EX.PW-911 and transcript is Ex.PW-9/7 wherein he had -
inter-alia stated that sale proceeds of Dubai Factory was utilized for
tactory in Jeddah. and Jeddah Factory was sold for 64 Million Riyals
(1" millions Dollars) and those were the sources for purchase of

London Flats.. What do You say about said documents and his speech?

Without prejudice as to the admissibility of.Ex.PW-‘)"'/' and Ex.PW-

911 and objection as 1o the relevance to this question to me. the

speech made by myv father gs addressed to the Nation on 05.04.2016

was based on copies of various agreements and related documents

Pertaining to Dubai Factory and another agreement related 1o Azizia

Steel Company. and the mformation shared with him by Hussain
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Nawaz Sharil and not his personal knowledge. He had never
participated in any of the transactions pertaining to Dubai Factory
including 1s sale and the subsequent use / disposal of its sale
proceeds. Similar is his position with respect to the establishment."
operation. running :md'sale of _Azizia Steel Mill Company. It is‘
relevant to submit here that these facts stand un-contradicted and
uncontroverted by any evidence produce by the prosecution in the
instant case. [ may add here that he never stated in either his address to
the nation or speech in the National Assembly that he was ever real or
beneficial owner of Avenfield Properties. Rather it has been his. -
consistent stand that he is not real or beneficial or benami owner of
Aventield Properties and that he never owned/ held any bearer or
share certificates of Nescoll Ltd and Nielsen Enterprises Ltd. [ may
add here that here that the prosecution had miserably failed to bring on
record any evidence to even remotely established anything to the

contrary.
!

It is in evidence that Hussain Nawaz (absconding accused) gave
mterview. his that interview with Hamid Mir in program Capital Talk
aired by GEO News on 19.01.2016. CD of which is Ex.PW-11/5 and
transcript is EX. PW-11 3. Wherein inter-alia he has stated that Park
lane Apartments were putchased from the sale proceeds of the factory:

of KSA. What do vou say about said documents and that interview?

This question does not relate to me. Be that as it may, Ex.PW-11/3 and
Ex.PW-11'5 are inadmissible and have not been proved in accordance

with law,

It is in evidence that Hassan Nawaz (absconding accused) gave
interview aired on BBC in November 1999. His interview by Tim
Sebastian in program HARD TALK in shape of CD is Ex. PW-10/4
and transcript is Ex-PW-10 5. Wherein he has inter-alia stated that he
15 living in Park Lane Tlats on rent and amount of quarterly rent’
received from Pakistan and hé did not Know who own these flats,

What do you say about said documents and that interview?

This question does not relate 1o me. However. | may add that it is

Known fact that my late crand father was looking after the entire’ |
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family and providing for their expenses and even fixing/specifving the

per month pocket monev for each.

i
Q.No.49.  Ttis in evidence that Hussain Nawaz Sharif (absconding accused) gave

interview aired by Express TV on 07.03.2016. His interview by Javed
Ch. in shape of CD Ex. PW-9/10 and Transcript Ex.PW-9/9 were
produced by PW-9. He Hussain Nawaz has inter-alia stated that Park
Lane Apartments are belonging to them. offshore Companies Nescoll
Ltd. and Nielsen Enterprises Ltd own them/apartments and he is
beneficial owner of ‘these companies and you Maryam Safdar / (his
sister) is holding those offshore companies through a trust deed. What

do vou sayv about said documents and that interview?

The CD and transcript have not been proved in accordance with law.

Ans
However. it is admitted that Park Lane Apartments were/are owned by
Hussain Nawaz and Offshore Companies Nescoll Ltd and Neilsen
ATTESTES T2 E2TVE27"Y Epterprises Lid held thein and he (Hussain Nawaz) was/is the real and

L AN

” ) > > wel. . N : .
Saurtst The term ~known sources of

beneficial owner of these companies and I was made trustee vide trust
deed EX.PW-14 2.

Interviews of Hassan Nawaz and Hussain Nawaz accused are

showing that thev had ln ed in those apartments during vears 1993 to 1996 -

and it was the time when those apartments were purchased through offshore

companies.

JIT has also prepared analysis chart of assets and liabilities Exh PW
16/80 for accused Marvam Safdar. Exh PW 16/81 for accused Hussam.
Nawaz and Exh PW16 82 for accused Hassan Nawaz on the basis of j Income
tax. wealth tax and wealth statement, Another analysis chart of assets and
liabilities for accused Mian Nawaz Sharif Exh PW 18/13 prepared by JIT and
questions were also asked ‘from the accused in this regard during statements
recorded u s 342 CrPC. They have aiven evasive answers without giving any ‘.

turther details of mncome other than which are mentioned in the chart,

They did not have income w hich could justify the acquisition and

possession during early nineties.

income™ has been interpreted as become

” . ~ . » . ‘- -
RNOWN 10 prosecution after thoreugh investigation. the reason behind it is
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that the accused is in the best position to say about it as he knows his sources

of income. Prosecution has calcuiated their income on the basis of available

material. However. it is also not the case of the accused that the avenfield
apartments were purchased from their income but from the income of
investment with Qattery family made by Muhammad Sharif which proves

othenwise. !

Trust deeds were sent twice to handwriting experts Robert
Radley by the NIT. His reporis are available as Exh PW 14/1 and Exh
PW14 4. As per his 2™ repert type of font was identified as Calibri which
was not commercially available until 31.01.2007. therefore the documents
have to be prepared after 31.01 .?’_‘007. The accused Marvam Nawaz has stated -
i her reply to question posed in this reeard u’s 342 CrPC that it is evidently.
deliberately malicious opinion C alibri font was otherwise available even as

early as 2005 as admitted by the said expert in his cross-examination.

Mr. Radley has explained that Calibri Fond was available for testing
purposes etc and it was not available commercially. From perusal of
statement and cross-examination it is clear that it is not disputed that Calibri

HEITOTRITTT T T font was not commercially available before 31.01.2007. The trust deeds are

filed to mislead the court and does not prepared on date noted in this deed.

The British virgin Island (BV]) laws and regulations regarding the.
Y~ zroffshore companies (Internetional Business Companies Act 1984) allowed -
% any individual to have beneficial ownership of a company or property
4 / //‘A through the -bearer share centificates’ meaning thereby that whoever was in
physical possession of the bearer share certificates would be considered the
owner of that company and any assets'of such company. Therefore it was as
ideal arrangement till the law was changed to hide with absolute certainty the
ownership. as there could be no documentary proof of such ownership.
However as no crime goes undetected. in this case when the law in British

Virgin Island changed in 2006, cenveniently the accused went and registered

the bearer share certificates into registered shares and accused Marvam =

Safdar became the beneficial owner, This fact becomes known to BV]

Attorney General in response to MJA .
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RELEVANCE OF AL-TAUFEEQ PROCEEDINGS

Mazhar Raza Kh':m PW 5 has deposed that affidavit of service
was relating to him. when it was shown along with other documents
by ihe 10. He submiited that afﬁdavit of service to his company,
photocopies of which are mark B. In cross-examination he restrained
himself from commenting on the contents on Order of Queen’s Bench
division. He effected service of order of Queen's bench on Mian
Muhammad Sharit. Mian Muhammad Shahbaz Sharif and Mian
Muhammad Abbas Sharif. A suggestion was made in cross-
examination to the effect that it is incorrect to suggest that he has
denied having read the Queen’ bench order mark A and avoided ',
referring to its contents for the reason that said order pertains to
beneficial interest of second. third and fourth defendance in Al-
Taufeeq company case in respect of all the four properties situated in -
Park Lane. London (16.16a.17.17a) while Mian Nawaz Sharif accused
or any of his children is not shown to have any imterest whatsoever in
the said property. This situation is not showing interest of Qatri Roy.al
Family. Qattery Roval family has no interest in the Avenfield property
during the vear of order of Queen’s bench of 1999, Apartments had
been purchased during the vear 1993.1995 & 1996. It is also a worth
mentioning here that first defendant was Hudaybia paper Mill in Al-
Towteeq litigation. accused Mian Nawaz Sharif was asked about the
fact that his daughter accused Maryam Safdar and his son accused
Hassan Nawaz were share holder in Hudaybia Paper Mills. His reply
Was. as per his information Marvam Safdar and Hussain Nawaz have
been nominated as Directdrs at some stage and for some period by his
father. while Hassan' has also remained a share holder in Hudaybia |
Paper Mills. Sidra Mansoor P\WV] brought certified copies of annual
audited accounts of Hudavbia Paper Mills from 2000 to 2005 upto
30.06.2005 as Exh PW 0] 2 10 Exh P\W 01/8. According to her a long
lerm loan was amounting 10 Rs. 494.960.000.- Status of long term
loan remained the same from 30.06.2000 to 30.06.2005. Shareship and

Directorship of Hudavhia Paper Mills and attachment of avenfield

properties by order of Queen's Bench speak about interest therein of

Sharif family.

T R e 11 ( oY
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As discussed above it was difficult to dig out actual owner/
beneficial of oftshore companies formed in tax heaven jurisdiction due
to rules regulations prevailing there. Mian Nawaz Sharif has distanced
from any transaction in respect of avenfield property by seeing that he
has got no concern with it. Despite the fact that he had remained
Chariman of FZE which is the company of his soﬁ. As per statement
of PW 16 vide CN-IA R93. a Deutche Bank which provided for a
charge on Mayfair apartments to provide loan to Coomber company

had been submitted at P

uQ

VIl those are financial statements available of Hassan Nawaz
companies Que holding. flagship securities and Quint Paddington for
the year 2007-2012. The document shows that the loan from Coomber
was provided 1o Que holding -limited owned by Hassan Nawaz which
further provided funding to Quint Paddington during the year 2008.
Quint Paddington was aiso provided loan of 614.000 pounds by FZE
in which accused was c;mplo_\‘ee. These all acts show that the entire”

~qz=-=+ 777 family daughter. sons and. father are one and the same monolith. The

O e elabra AR PR
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accused Mian Nawaz Sharif cannot disassociate by oral assertions that

he has got no connection.

This case has differemt set of facts therefore. distinguishable
I

from usual cases of assets bevond sources. The accused had also not

appeared before NAB where a proforma would have been given to
them for the purposes of showing the sources of income, assets and -

property. Accused have also not given detailed answer in respect of

their sources of income.

The ages of children namely Hussain Nawaz. Marvam Nawaz |
and Hassan Nawaz of aceused M 1an Muhammad Nawaz Sharif in vear -
1993 were about 20 years. 18 vears and 16 vears respectively. They
were studyving in those davs. They .were dependents financially and

could not purchase aventield apartments without financial assistance

of anvone else father. The story of investment with Qattery Roval

family as already dxscusstcd above is not convincing one. Accused .

(7 N Mian Nawaz Sharit had remained holder of public office as Chief

Minister Punjab. Finance Minister Punjab. Prime Minister of Pakistan

R RN R e T 124
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(three times) and member of National Assembly of Pakistan.

Generally children are considered dependents on their parents.

In the above scenario of the case. four ingredients which are
required to be proved by the prosecution in case u/s 9(a)(v) of NAO 1999 '_

are:

I. Prosecution must establish that accused was holder of a public

office. ‘
This ingredient of the offence has been established ‘as

admirtedly accused had remained holder of public office as Chief
Minister Punjab. Finance Minister Punjab. Prime Minister of Pakistan

(three times) and member of National Assembly of Pakistan.

2. The nature and extcxﬁ of the pecuniary resources of property which.‘
were found in his prosecution.

Accused Hassan Nawaz. Hussain Nawaz and Maryam Nawaz

had admitted that avenfield apartments are in possession of Hassan

Nawaz since 2006. Those apartments are in name of two offshore

companies. [t alleged that their bearer shares were received from
e member of a Qatteri Roval famii}‘ however, when those apartments |
o were attached in a case in which Huda;vbia Paper Mill Muhammad
Sharif. Shahbaz Sharif and Abbas Sharif were defendents. Hussain
Nawaz and Marvam Nawaz were Directors of Hudaybia Paper Mills
while Hassan Nawaz was share holder. there is no evidence to the .-
o 7/,/\ effect that member of Qatters Royal family had filed any objection

. al , a )
%/ ' agamnst that order of artachment of avenfield apartments passed by

Queen’s bench in vear 1999,

In interview Hassan Nawaz'in program Hard Talk aired by
BBC in year 1999 siated that he was living in Park Lane flats on rent
and amount of the quarterly rent received from Pakistan, he did not
Know who own these flat and accused Maryam Nawaz Sharif in an

terview with Sana Buchy in program lekin aired by Geo news on

08.11.2011 stated that she did not own any' property in Pakistan and in -

Central London (It also showing her alleged financial status). Hussain

Nawaz in program Capital Talk with Hamid

(P Mir while explaining the
&_{:q ,L means for purchase of menfield flats did not mention about any

¥ Sourt-nvestment with Al-Th

ge ant amily and purchase of avenfield properties
e
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from proceeds of any such investment. However he stated that Park -

Lane apartments were purchased from the sale proceeds of factory in
UK. Hussain Nawaz in program kal tak dated 07.03.2016 stated that _

Park Lane apartments were owned by him as offshore companies

Neilson enterprises and Nescoll Limited holds them and he was

beneficial owner of these offshore companies. Accused Mian

Muhammad Nawaz Sharif has also not stated in his speech dated
16.05.2016 that avenfield apartments were acquired by accused.

Hussain Nawaz as a result of an investment amounting to AED 12
million by Mian Muhammad Sharif with Al-Thani Family. The

sudden appearance of letters of Al-Thani family is managed

subsequent to their interviews:speech. The other documents discussed

above showing that Marvam Nawaz is beneficial owner of the

avenfield apartments even prior to vear 2006. .

The accusednamlel_\‘ Hussain. Hassan and Maryvam statedlv
were not financially sound durir‘lg-the vears 1993.1995 & 1996 when

those flats were purchased through offshore companies, beneficial

owner of which. was Marvam Nawaz. Hence. accused no. 1 is also

~m----~--+ responsible to account for properties in name of his son/daughter
during their tender ages. It is also in evidence that accused no. 1 and

his father used 1o reside In the said apartments.

Thus prosecution has succeeded to establish the possession of

accused on the Avenfield Apartment even during nineties and

admittedly they are inpossession at present.

It must be proved as to what were his known sources of
income. JIT has prepared analvsis charts of assets and liabilities of
accused namely Mian Mluhammad Nawaz Sharif. Hassan Nawaz,
Hussain Nawaz and Marvam Safdar. The accused have not alleged
any other source of income in their statements recorded u/s 342 Cr.P.C
5o much so thev are clain ning that flats were given to Hussain as a

result of settlement of preyious investment of their grand father so this
ingredient is also established.

A worksheet is also annexed with CMA which is Ex.16/13
(Page 63 CMA 433) Wand Zai PW

7[\
-16 has r10htl\ stated that
~-~ S un\mrl\sheel was filed for filling the gaps which came to light during the

proceedings of Hcm ble Supreme Court of Pakistan between the first




and second letter of Qatri Roval Family. Objec;(ion is that it isv
opinion‘inference of JIT. It is infact inference based on document and
which is right. objection is overruled the witness himself has also
explained this inference in remaining portion of the statement. He has
stated that worksheet itself is- unsigned without any notarization or
authorization. Concise statcment in CMA 432 is asserted that bearer

share certificates of the companies of Nielsen and Nescoll which”
owned the apartments were transferred from representative of Mr.
Hamid Bin Jasim Al-Thani to the representative of Mr. Hussain
Nawaz Sharif but no receipt or documents for handing over these
bearer shares of twwo companies and assets worth 8 million dollars was

provided to JIT to suppork the claim.

The letters of the Hamid Bin Jasim Ex.PW-16/11 and ExPW- .
1612 are having hearsay writer has used words in it that “I was-
informed™. T understand at that time™ ~I can recall that™. these words
without any supporting documents which could be produced by
accused or Hamid Bin Jasin, those letters cannot be given anv benefit .

to the accused.

Prosecution in the circumstances of the case and evidence
produced has established that Avenfield Apartments were not

purchased from sources of income shown by the accused in their
CMAs.

- W In the above scenhrio of the case heavy burden of proof was

é / shifted to the accused within the meaning of section 14 (C) NAO-
1999.

The accused did not appear before the NAB despite notice u/s
19 of NAO. 1999. Addresses on the notices were of the accused. they . _

must have appeared and had produced relevant supporting documents

i their favour. Their attendance would have clarified certain

ambiguity in their stances. Accused had also not produced a sinole |

witness in their detence. Muhammad Tariq Shaif and Hamid Bin

, R lasim were the withesses whose documents are being relied upon by
M \._ the some of the accused.
- oourt-t
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As discussed above. Avenfield apartments were purchased in

the vears 1993. 93 and 96 through two offshore companies. It is

alleced that beneficial owner of which is one of the accused while

accused Marvam Nawaz is trustee. The document of incorporation,

Article of association has not been produced by them to clear facts in

this regard.

Notice under section 19 NAQO. 1999: The presence reference

is filed in continuitv of cases which were pending before Hon'ble

Supreme Court of Pakistan. therefore. there was no need to give
details of facts in the notice issued uw/s 19 of NAO. 1999 by NAB

authorities. However. accused did not co-operate with NAB. They

submitted replies for postponement of investigation till disposal of

their review petition. Thev were asked in the notices inter alia to-

produce any additional documents. evidence / record whatsoever in

support of their plea - defence and they were also requested to attend

the office for verification of their statements. documents handed over

10 /IT and confrontation with the record. Their reply was infact refusal’

to eive information within the meaning of Srl. No.2 of the schedule.

Those notices are available on file as Ex.PWI18/Dx2,

Dx3.DX4.Dx5.Dx6 and IB\" and showing the above said facts.

Prosecution” have not bright evidence in respect of 9(a)(iv)
NAO. 1999. So the accused are acquitted under that section of law.

The accumulative facts of the evidence produced by the prosecution is

that accused Muhammad Nawaz Sharif was holder of public ofﬁce..

He had remained Chief Minister of Punjab. Finance Minister. Prime

Minster of Pakistan (three times) and member of National Assemblv

of Pakistan.

It was difficult to establish ownership of properties which was

purchased through offshore companies formed in tax haven

Jurisdictions due to veils of secrecy. Certain laws as discussed above

were made during ,\'em‘s‘ 2003-2004 by BVI Govt. hence. bear shares

were o be converted into registered shares and the name of owner and

other particulars were to be disclosed.
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Aventield apartments have been purchased during the vears
1993.1995 and 1996 throuch offshore companies Nielsen Enterprises
and Nescoll Ltd. Certain documents have shown that accused Maryam
Nawaz has remained beneticial owner of those companies prior to
2006. The vear from which handing over of bearer shares of two
companies Nielson and Nescoll are alleged by accused Maryam
Nawaz and his brothers co-accused. Two letters and worksheet were
produced before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan but those were
found not reality by the JIT. As discussed above those are not good |

defence of the case in absence of supportive documents or direct

evidence. Both the letters are based on hearsay.

The ages of accused .\/larymﬁ Safdar was 18 vears and ages of; :
his brothers (co-accused) were about 20 and 17 vears in years 1993.
They have no source of income to purchase those apartments.
Analysis charts of assels’ and liabilities prepared by JIT are showing

their sources of income.

Generally children remain dependent on their parents during

their tgender ages therefore. accused No.l cannot say that he had not

provided any money to them to purchase the apartments.

The Avenfield apartments had remained in possession of

accused as stated in interviews by Hassan Nawaz.

Accused Hassan Nawaz and Hussain Nawaz even accused
Muhammad Nawaz Shairf and Marvam Safdar have never stated that
the bearer shares of two companies were procured as a result of

investment with Qatri Royal Family in their interview/ speech.

The Prince Hamad Bin Jasim had not noted the name of

Muhammad Tariq Shafi to be representative of Muhammad Sharif.

while giving cash amount for investment purposes.

Withholding of relevant documents from the court can be
presumed as that submission of documents would be adversed to

interest of withholder of the documents.
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All the four ingredients of the offence as define w/s 9(a)(v) of
NAO 1999 are established therefore. heavy burden was shifted to the

accused to account of assets Avenfield apartments that those are not

disproportionate to kno“‘n sources of their income.

In the above circumstances prosecution has succeeded to bring -

home the guilt of the accused as below:

The guilt of the accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif u/s
9(a)v) NAO.1999 read with Serial No.2 of the schedule attached with .
the said Ordinance punishable uss 10 of NAO. 1999/said Serial No.2 -

of schedule. Therefore. he accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif is
hereby convicted and selxluenced to Rigorous Imprisonment for a term
of ten vears with.fine 08 million pounds. He is also convicted and
sentenced under offence cited at Serial No.2 for one years. Both the

sentences shall run concurrently.

The trust deeds produced by the accused Maryam Nawaz were
also found bogus. She-accused Marvam Nawaz was instrumental in

concealment of the properties of his father accused Mian Muhammad |
Nawaz Sharif. This accused Marvam Nawaz aided. assisted. abetted. '

attempted and acted in conspiracy with her father accused Mian

Muhammad Nawaz Sharif who was holder of Public Office.

Therefore. prosecution has succeeded to establish her guild within the

meaning of Section 9(a)v) (xii) NAO. 199 read with serial No.2 of the -

schedule and punishable vs 10 ‘and schedule attached therewith. In

view of the role of this accused Mst. Marvam Nawaz. she is convicted

and sentenced to Rigorous Imprisonment for seven vears with fine of

o million pounds under section wrs 9(a)(v) (xii) NAO. 1999/ read
with section 10 of NAO 1999 and simple imprisonment for one year

under Serial No.2 of the schedule. Both the sentences shall run

concurrently.

The accused Muhammad Safdar had signed the trust deeds as .

witness. he also aided. assisted. abetted. attempted and acted in
conspiracy with the accused Mian Muhammad Nawaz Sharif and
Marvam Safdar within Iht. meaning of Section u/s 9(a)(v) (x11) NAO.
1999 read with section m of NAO 1999 and Serial No.2 of the




schedule and he is comvicted and sentenced to rigorous imprisonment
for one vear u:s 9(a)v) (xii) NAO. 1999 read with section 10 of NAO
1999 and one vear under Serial No.2 of schedule attached with NAO,
1999.

Avenfield Apartments Nos. 16. 16-a. 17 and 17-a stand
forfeited to Federal Government within the meaning of 10(a) of NAO.

1999.

The above said accused shall be disqualified-to contest election
or to hold public office for a period of 10 vears to be reckoned from
the date he is released after serving the sentence and they shall not be
allowed to apply for or to be granted or allowed any financial facilities |
in the form of loan etc for a period of 10 vears from the date of their 1

conviction within the meaning of section 15 of NAO. 1999.

Two accused namelyv Hussain Nawaz and Hassan Nawaz are
absconding therefore. they are declared as proclaimed offenders. Non

bailable perpetual warrants of arrest shall be issued against them.

Announced -
06.07.2018 ~ ( Muhammad Bashir )
e 70 BETRUE COPY z Judge
ATTESTEDTOB Accountability Court-,
Islamabad.
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It is to certify that this judgement is comprising upon 174
pages. Each page has been signed by me after making vnece'ssal:y,

corrections therein wherever required.

( Muhammad Bashir )
Judge
Accountability Court-l,

Islamabad.
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